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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
BT BETT  BEFT  BETFT | BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
E44 Results
B B Profit before taxation 272,087 536,923 610,526 593,585 472,187
e H Income tax expense (6,475) (20,033) (32,436) (22,099) (36,125)
KT REE Profit attributable to
B shareholders of the Company 265,612 516,890 578,090 571,486 436,062
7R 8] iR R R & R
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
BT
HKS Thousand
600,000 578,090 571,486
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200,000 436,062
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300,000 265,612
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0
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BT T
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0
(50,000)
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
[ Ordinary business B & %7 [ Dilution in shareholding & fE & Disposal H&

B 5%@BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited




hFERREE
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
BT BEFT BEFT BT T BEFT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ME - HERE Property, plant and equipment 17,999 16,878 20,935 26,499 25,609
BB E Intangible assets - 2,504 1,573 735 270
KEYE Investment properties 170,536 169,818 169,632 159,415 173,113
e NE] Associates 4,082,002 4,842,032 4,988,673 5,532,229 6,117,020
BAFETAEA Financial assets at fair value through
PHNGZNEREE other comprehensive income - - 570,417 423,343 361,001
AEHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 551,158 503,514 - - =
R AT ERNS A E Financial assets at amortised cost - - 3,129 - -
BRI HReREE Held-to-maturity financial assets 3,091 3,119 - - =
BEET R Loans to customers and
FEUWFH B interest receivable 436 39 - - =
BRBEE Reinsurance assets 4,420 213 1,546 1,029 2,335
Ho{to U IR K Other debtors 1,500 180 6 15,777 16,826
BITHETF Bank balances - - 227,800 506,009 299,977
ERESHEE Deferred income tax assets 10,767 10,150 535 451 170
TEEAE Current assets 1,497,393 1,693,972 1,312,644 1,037,740 1,409,543
mEBE Current liabilities (928,549) (4673300 (323,516 (254,225)|  (583,438)
RBEH Insurance contracts (38,268) (37,659) (17,482) (19,316) (63,309)
HEaE Lease liabilities - - - (65) -
RITER Bank borrowings (552,774) (198,131) (199,966) (199,965) =
ERREED Loan from the controlling shareholder - - - (149,943) (99,985)
BLEREHAE Deferred income tax liabilities (32,614) (28,397) (24,106) (36,376) (61,041)
EERE Net assets 4,787,097 6,510,902 6,731,820 7,043,337 7,598,091
AR A Share capital 891,135 1,715,377 1,715,377 1,715,377 1,715,377
HihE e Other reserves 1,036,270 1,628,236 1,504,672 1,393,720 | 1,512,068
R i Al Retained profits
R E Proposed dividend 22,971 47,781 59,726 59,726 59,726
Hi Others 2,836,721 3,119,508 3,452,045 3,874,514 4,310,920
AT RRELES Total equity attributable to
e shareholders of the Company 4,787,097 6,510,902 6,731,820 7,043,337 | 7,598,091
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

XA fR 22 BE R AN SR B 2020 FF Z R S TR HA
ISR

| am pleased to report that the Group recorded an
expected full-year results for 2020.

*E ®IE
Chairman YAN Zheng

The coronavirus pandemic has significantly changed our way
of life. The economic activities around the world have been
severely disrupted, which has led to major shifts in patterns
of consumer demand. The operations of the Group have
been affected to a certain extent by the global economic
recession and more turbulent financial markets.

OUR PERFORMANCE

Under the challenging operating environment in the year
under review, we adopted a prudent investment strategy
and remained our commitment to reward our shareholders
with stable returns. During the year, we paid a final dividend
for 2019 of 10 HK cents per share to our shareholders. The
Directors have also resolved to recommend a final dividend
for 2020 of 10 HK cents per share, maintained at the same
level as compared to the final dividend for 2019.
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FTHREHRES
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

OUR PERFORMANCE (Continued)

The Group recorded a profit after tax of HK$436.06 million
in 2020, decreased by 23.7% when compared to HK$571.49
million in 2019. Basic earnings per share decreased by 23.7%
to 73.01 HK cents.

Total assets of the Group recorded an increase of 9.1% to
HK$8.4 billion at 31 December 2020 as compared to HKS$7.7
billion at the end of 2019.

Total assets of our banking business accounted for 72.2% of
the Group's total assets at 31 December 2020. The net asset
value per share of the Company amounted to HK$12.7 at
31 December 2020, about 79.9% came from the investment
in Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. (“XIB", together with
its subsidiaries, Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited (“CYB")
and Luso International Banking Ltd. (“LIB"), are collectively
referred to as “XIB Group”).

XIB, the most significant financial investment of the Group,
contributed about 89.7% of the results of the Group in 2020.
The weakened credit environment resulted in an overall
increase in expected credit loss for the year and the profit
after tax of XIB for the Group’s reporting purpose recorded
a decrease of 22% as compared to 2019. The Group’s share
of results of XIB Group was HK$444.78 million in 2020, a
decrease of 22.7% as compared to HK$575.17 million in
2019.

XIB Group achieved a steady growth in its balance sheet
and the total assets grew by 3.7% to RMB952.28 billion at
31 December 2020 as compared to RMB918.34 billion at the
end of 2019.

In order to meet the capital requirements for long term
development and strategic plan, XIB had completed the
issuance of new shares to third parties to enlarge its share
capital in December 2020, which resulted in the dilution
of the Company’s shareholding in XIB from approximately
9.7635% to approximately 8.8543%. Accordingly, the Group
recognised a loss on dilution of HK$28.75 million during the
year. The Company is still the second largest shareholder
of XIB upon completion of the capital contribution in XIB.
The Company shall use its best endeavors to obtain the
approval from the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Commission Xiamen Office in respect of the possible capital
contribution plan in order to maintain its shareholding in
XIB.

ZEZFF3R Annual Report 2020
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

OUR PERFORMANCE (Continued)

As being one of the very few banks in Mainland China
that owns subsidiary banks both in Hong Kong and
Macau, XIB will leverage its advantages of its branch
network in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau and
internationalisation to serve the real economy and provide
inclusive finance business for local small and micro business
owners. XIB will focus on improving the level of localisation
and decentralisation, actively and steadily developing cross-
border financial business, and embarking on the unique
development path of city commercial banks. We expect
that our banking business will continue to maintain a stable
financial performance and achieve reasonable value growth
in the long term.

XIB was ranked 153th in total assets and 189th in Tier-one
Capital in the 2020 Top 1000 World Banks announced by The
Banker.

We continued to focus on improving the operation of
our insurance business during the year. The efforts of
management were fully recognised by the premium growth
and underwriting results achieved during the year. The
premium growth momentum continues for both Hong Kong
and Macau insurance businesses. The total gross insurance
premiums increased by 79.1% to HK$160.86 million in 2020.
We have achieved an underwriting profit after charging
management expenses for underwriting business of
HK$14.35 million in 2020, an increase of 37.8% as compared
to HK$10.41 million in 2019 which was mainly due to the
improvement in quality of business.

Our insurance business management team will continue
to identify profitable new business opportunities through
different distribution channels and continuously improve
the underwriting performance in order to provide
satisfactory returns to the shareholders.
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FTHREHRES
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

PROSPECTS

It is likely that the coronavirus pandemic will continue to
affect our way of life and global economy. The economic
outlook and operating environment for 2021 is far from clear,
however, we have full confidence in the future development
of Mainland China and Hong Kong. We will continue to focus
on developing our core business and strengthening our
financial services investments in the Greater China region.
We will continue to explore new investment opportunities
prudently to achieve income diversification and create long-
term value to uphold the expectations of the stakeholders.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to thank Sincere
View International Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, for assisting the Company in restoring the public
float during the year. | also wish to extend my grateful
thanks to my fellow Board members for their invaluable
advice and support and thank the management team and all
our staff for their commitment and dedicated services.

YAN Zheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021

ZEZFF3R Annual Report 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

BUSINESS REVIEW

The global economy was adversely affected by the
coronavirus pandemic and financial market became more
volatile. The financial performance of our banking business
was affected by the increase in expected credit losses
caused by the impact of economic uncertainty.

Operating Results

The Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders
of HK$436.06 million in 2020, representing a decrease of
HK$135.43 million or 23.7%, as compared to HK$571.49
million in 2019. Basic earnings per share for the year was
73.01 HK cents, a decrease of 22.68 HK cents or 23.7%, as
compared to 95.69 HK cents in 2019.

Financial Services

The financial services business of the Group includes
the engagement of banking business through its major
associates, XIB Group in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau respectively, and the provision of micro credit
business in Mainland China.

The Group’s financial services business reported a profit
after tax of HK$405.99 million in 2020, a decrease of 27.6%
as compared to HK$560.87 million in 2019. Such decrease
in the results was primarily originated from the decrease
in share of results of XIB Group and the loss on dilution of
shareholding interest in XIB during the year.

Banking Business

XIB Group offers comprehensive financial services in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau through its
well-established branch network and technological
infrastructures.



EiZ0RE (18)
ERARES (£8)
WITHF (78)

EIREESESARERRE B WO EEF
ARBAETL HE2019FH ARE2(E
T RO AREIIETH 2% - Z NTHREE
A AEREBR 2020 FHEEERBAIME
EERERBIE N - FREFREAEH
R 2020 FHFF BUA LB 2019 F EF
18.1% °c AR KRB A AT EFABZNERT
BB FEENE K EEIZN - 2020 F /I IEF
BN 25.6% ©

R2020F 12 A31H ESREBERNEEEE
BETER  EXEBEEFPHFRARES
MEMIER - R20205F128318 B8 E
2019 FFRMARE,183.418T - F3.7%
EAR®BO528ETL BRFEFMHA2019F
FEMARKE46663FITEH128%E AR
¥ 5262187 c EEFHAHEBRTHRENR
B BEREBRFRONEELS - QRE
ERHBEFERLERER 1% - EEFHA
2019 F F R AR 6,346.8 1870 = FF3.3%
= AR®6,554.1187C °

EREERKREN2020F 12 AKE » =
MEARERHDARESISETEMELN A
R# 92471870 » BRIRAEIRKE ARKF -
ERR2020F 12 AEERIEERERE - K
NAINERMIRED A% 9.7635% V> 24
8.8543% ° AR AN FANEEREFEHELD
B 2,8758 7T ©

S [E51m A iR
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Services (Continued)

Banking Business [Continued)

XIB Group reported a profit after tax for the Group’s
reporting purpose of RMB4.1 billion, a decrease of RMB1.1
billion or 22%, as compared to RMB5.2 billion in 2019.
Such decrease was mainly driven by the overall increase in
expected credit losses and other credit impairment charges
in 2020. Net interest income grew by 18.1% in 2020 as
compared with 2019, which was achieved by the growth in
loan portfolios. Non-interest income decreased by 25.6%
in 2020 due to the increase in net losses from financial
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss
and foreign exchange loss.

XIB Group achieved a stable growth in its total assets with
satisfactory growth in both loan books and customers
deposits at 31 December 2020. At 31 December 2020, the
total assets grew by 3.7% to RMB952.28 billion as compared
to RMB918.34 billion at the end of 2019. Gross loans to
customers were RMB526.2 billion, an increase of 12.8%
as compared to RMB466.63 billion at the end of 2019.
XIB achieved a continuous and stable growth in its loan
portfolios while upholding good asset quality with gross
impaired loans and advances as a percentage of gross loans
and advances to customers less than 1%. Total deposits
from customers were up 3.3% to RMB655.41 billion from
RMB634.68 billion at the end of 2019.

'

The capital contribution of XIB had been approved at
the end of December 2020 and the registered capital
was increased from approximately RMB8.386 billion to
approximately RMB9.247 billion, effectively improving the
capital level of XIB. The Company’s shareholding interest in
XIB decreased from approximately 9.7635% to approximately
8.8543% upon completion of capital contribution of XIB at
the end of December 2020. The Company has recognised a
loss on dilution of approximately HK$28.75 million during
the year.

ZEZFF3R Annual Report 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Services (Continued)

Banking Business [Continued)

The Company had evaluated the applicable accounting
treatment in respect of its approximately 8.8543%
shareholding interest in XIB immediately after the
completion of the capital contribution and considered that
the Company will continue to have the ability to exercise
significant influence over the financial and operating
policy decisions of XIB in accordance with the terms of the
constitutional documents of XIB. Accordingly, the Company
considered that XIB will continue to be classified as an
associate of the Company.

Micro Credit Business

Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit Company
Limited (“Sanyuan Micro Credit”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, had been engaged in the provision of micro
loans to small and medium-sized enterprises and individuals
in Sanming City, Fujian Province. Sanyuan Micro Credit will
continue to proactively manage and apply all measures to
recover its non-performing loans.

At 31 December 2020, non-performing loan balances were
RMB221.64 million (equivalent to HK$263.42 million), a
decrease of 5.3% from RMB233.97 million (equivalent to
HK$261.7 million) at the end of 2019. The allowances to
total loans and interest receivable ratio was 92.4% at 31
December 2020, an increase of 0.1 percentage point as
compared to 92.3% at the end of 2019. Sanyuan Micro
Credit received RMBO0.9 million (equivalent to HK$1.02
million) interest income from customers during the year, as
compared to RMB1.24 million (equivalent to HK$1.4 million)
in 2019. Sanyuan Micro Credit recorded a profit after tax
of RMB13.09 million (equivalent to HK$14.74 million) in
2020, an increase of 24.7% as compared to RMB10.5 million
(equivalent to HK$11.92 million) in 2019, mainly due to the
recovery of impaired loans.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Insurance Business

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited (“Min Xin Insurance”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, underwrites
general insurance businesses in Hong Kong and Macau.

Min Xin Insurance recorded gross insurance premiums of
HK$160.86 million in 2020, increased by 79.1% as compared
to HK$89.82 million in 2019. The Macau insurance business
has outperformed the Hong Kong insurance business once
again during the year. The gross insurance premiums of
Macau insurance business registered a 29.4% growth to
HK$95.21 million supported by high-quality bancassurance
business, and the gross insurance premiums of Hong Kong
insurance business recorded an increase of 304.5% to
HK$65.65 million.

Underwriting profit before deducting management
expenses for underwriting business increased by 11.7%
to HK$24.74 million as compared to HK$22.14 million in
2019, mainly due to the improvement in quality of business.
Min Xin Insurance recorded an underwriting profit of
HK$14.35 million in 2020, an increase of 37.8% as compared
to HK$10.41 million in 2019, after charging management
expenses for underwriting business.

Min Xin Insurance recorded a profit after tax of HK$15.49
million in 2020, an increase of 349% as compared to a
profit after tax of HK$3.45 million in 2019, mainly due to
the increase in underwriting profit and revaluation gain of
investment properties.

The management team of Min Xin Insurance will continue
to broaden distribution channels and identify new business
opportunities, and at the same time will make great efforts
to continuously improve the underwriting performance and
provide satisfactory returns to the shareholders.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Investment in Huaneng Power International, Inc.
(“Huaneng A-Shares”)

At 31 December 2020, the Shanghai Composite Index
increased by about 13.9% as compared to that at the end of
2019. The closing bid price per A-Share of Huaneng Power
International, Inc. (“Huaneng”) as quoted on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange decreased from RMB5.57 per share at 31
December 2019 to RMB4.47 per share at 31 December 2020.
The fair value of the Huaneng A-Shares measured with
reference to the closing bid price per A-Share of Huaneng
stood at HK$361 million (equivalent to RMB303.74 million).
In 2020, the Group recorded a loss of HK$62.34 million
(2019: HK$147.07 million) arising from the net movement
in its fair value change in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling).

The Group aims to hold Huaneng A-Shares in the long term.
Huaneng A-Shares continues to contribute a satisfactory
dividend yield to the Group. During 2020, Huaneng declared
a final dividend for 2019 of RMBO0.135 per share with ex-
dividend date on 6 July 2020. The Group recorded dividend
income totalling RMB9.17 million (equivalent to HK$10.05
million) in 2020, as compared to the final dividend for 2018
of RMBO.1 per share totalling RMB6.8 million (equivalent to
HK$7.71 million) recorded by the Group in 2019.

Huaneng has announced its 2020 annual results under the
PRC Accounting Standards. Its operating revenue decreased
by 2.4% and the operating expenses decreased by 5.7% as
compared to 2019. Its profit attributable to shareholders was
RMB4.56 billion in 2020, increased by 191.5% as compared
to RMB1.57 billion in 2019 primarily attributable to decline
in fuel prices. Earnings per share was RMBO0.18 for the year
under review, an increase of 200% as compared to RMB0.06
per share in 2019.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Property Investment

The property investment business of the Group represents
the leasing of certain investment properties in Mainland
China. In 2020, the property investment business reported
a profit after tax of HK$3.87 million, an increase of 18.4% as
compared to HK$3.27 million in 2019, mainly due to increase
in the revaluation gain of investment properties.

The market rental of office space in Fuzhou, Fujian Province
remained soft in 2020. The commercial properties and
parking spaces in Fuzhou (the “Fuzhou Property”) of the
Group maintained full occupancy at 31 December 2020 and
the monthly rental of new leases also maintained at the
same level of expired leases. The Group recorded a rental
income of RMB3.56 million in 2020, decreased by 0.9% as
compared to RMB3.59 million in 2019 which was mainly due
to the partial rental waivers by the Group to support small
and medium-sized enterprises facing operational difficulties
arised from the outbreak of the coronavirus pandemic. At 31
December 2020, the fair value of the Fuzhou Property was
HK$58.01 million, an increase of 4.7% as compared to the
fair value of HK$55.41 million at the end of 2019. The Group
recorded a fair value gain of HK$2.61 million, as compared
to a fair value loss of HK$3.38 million in 2019. A fair value
gain after deferred tax of HK$1.12 million was recognised in
2020, as compared to a fair value gain after deferred tax of
HK$0.53 million reflecting the write back of deferred tax in
respect of the reclassification of an investment property to
an owner-occupied property in 2019.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group adheres to the principle of prudent financial
management and strives to maintain a healthy financial
position.

Net Asset Value per Share

Based on 597,257,252 shares in issue at 31 December 2020
(2019: 597,257,252 shares), the net asset value per share was
HKS$12.72 at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$11.79).

Total Liabilities to Equity Ratio and Current Ratio

At 31 December 2020, the total liabilities of the Group were
HK$807.77 million (2019: HK$659.89 million) and the ratio
of total liabilities to total equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company was 10.6% (2019: 9.4%). At 31 December
2020, the current assets and current liabilities of the Group
were HK$1,409.54 million (2019: HK$1,037.74 million) and
HK$583.44 million (2019: HK$254.23 million) respectively
with a current ratio of 2.4 (2019: 4.1).

Borrowings and Charged Assets

The Group monitors its liquidity requirement on a short to
medium term basis and arranges refinancing of the Group's
borrowings as appropriate.

At 31 December 2020, the Group had borrowings of
HK$521.6 million, comprised HK$371.6 million granted
by local banks and HK$150 million granted by the
controlling shareholder, increased by 13.4% as compared
to HK$460 million at the end of 2019. Based on the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan facilities, the
outstanding amount of HK$421.6 million will mature and is
repayable within one year and the balance of HK$100 million
will mature and is repayable more than one year but within
two years. The Group will consider to arrange refinancing of
the borrowings if necessary. These loans are in Hong Kong
dollars and subject to floating interest rates. The effective
interest rate at 31 December 2020 ranged from 1.5% to 2.5%
(2019: 3.5% to 4.5%) per annum.

In addition, the Group had undrawn term and revolving bank
loans of approximately HK$794.65 million at 31 December
2020. The undrawn term loans balance of HK$654.65 million
were secured by the self-used office building owned by a
wholly-owned subsidiary.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Borrowings and Charged Assets (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, the term bank loan of HK$200
million was secured by a standby letter of credit issued
in favour of the lending bank. The standby letter of credit
was collateralised by a three-year bank deposit of RMB200
million (equivalent to HK$237.7 million) (2019: RMB200
million, equivalent to HK$223.7 million) placed by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company in Mainland China.

At 31 December 2020, the revolving loans balance of
HK$111.6 million were secured by the self-use office
building owned by a wholly-owned subsidiary in Hong Kong
with a net book value of approximately HK$9.15 million at
31 December 2020.

Pursuant to the requirement of a standby letter of credit
issued by a bank in Hong Kong in favour of a reinsurance
company that has entered into the Non-life Reinsurance
Facility with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
that wholly-owned subsidiary has placed a bank deposit of
HK$15 million as a collateral for the standby letter of credit
at 31 December 2020.

Save for the above, no other assets of the Group were pledged
at 31 December 2020 and 2019 respectively.

Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio of the Group (total
borrowings divided by total net assets) was 6.9% (2019:
6.5%).

Cash Position

The Group’s bank deposits are interest bearing at prevailing
market rates. At 31 December 2020, the total bank deposits
of the Group amounted to HK$1,175.62 million (2019:
HK$1,352.64 million) of which 17.7% were in Hong Kong
dollars, 80.3% in Renminbi and 2% in other currencies (2019:
7.2% in Hong Kong dollars, 87.6% in Renminbi and 5.2% in
other currencies).
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Cash Position (Continued)

Pursuant to the requirements from the Insurance Authority,
Min Xin Insurance, a wholly-owned subsidiary, shall maintain
at all times a portion of its funds of not less than HK$16
million in the name of “Insurance Authority account Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited” in bank deposits as a statutory
deposit. At 31 December 2020, Min Xin Insurance has placed
fixed deposits of HK$16 million (2019: HK$16 million) in the
name of “Insurance Authority account Min Xin Insurance
Company Limited” with a bank in Hong Kong for fulfillment
of such requirements. That subsidiary has also maintained
bank deposits of MOP15.39 million (equivalent to HK$14.94
million) and HK$42.03 million (2019: MOP15.32 million,
equivalent to HK$14.87 million and HK$26.21 million) for
fulfilling certain requirements under the Macau Insurance
Ordinance (Decree-Law no. 27/97/M of 30 June) (the “Macau
Insurance Ordinance”).

Risk of Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group operates in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macau, thus the exposure in exchange rate risks mainly
arises from currency fluctuation between Hong Kong dollar
and Renminbi. As the Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi are
both under managed floating systems, the Group reviews
and monitors periodically its foreign currency exposure and
considers hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise. The Group did not enter into any
derivative contracts aimed at minimising exchange rate risks
during the year.

Capital Commitments

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s capital commitments
relating to property, plant and equipment and investment
properties amounted to HK$0.25 million (2019: HK$0.19
million).

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had no
significant contingent liabilities.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 December 2020, the Group had 74 employees. The
remuneration of the employees is based on individual merits
and experience. The Group also provides other benefits to
employees included but not limited to retirement benefits
and medical scheme.

The Group regards human resources as its valuable assets.
The Group offers numerous employee benefits and group
activities to our staff members. To motivate our employees
to enhance and develop their professional knowledges
and skills, the Group provides on-the-job trainings and
workshops for our employees as well as encourages them
to attend seminars and trainings with topics of relevance
to their jobs and duties sponsored by the Group. The Group
also organises recreational activities such as Christmas party,
monthly birthday party and company trip.

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

With respect to the Group’s insurance business, we are
committed to establishing good long-term business
relationships with our brokers and agents. Insurance
products together with the pricing philosophy and other
guidelines will be provided to brokers and agents if needed.
Our staff of business department visit our brokers and
agents regularly to maintain good relationships. Our claims
and customer service staff swiftly and carefully manage and
respond to our brokers’ and agents’ enquiries in relation to
the insurance products and other related matters.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Group continues
to support the environmental protection initiatives to
conserve the natural resources. We place a high priority on
minimisation of the environmental impact of our business
activities by promoting energy-efficient lighting and use
of public transportation to reduce energy consumption. In
addition, we proactively encourage staff to consume less
energy, water and paper, by applying such as e-filings and
paper recycling in our offices. Details are disclosed in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be issued
by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance is an integral part of the Group’s corporate
governance and we are aware of the potential risks of
regulatory non-compliance. As far as the Board is aware, the
Group has complied in material aspects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects may be affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties. The following key risks and
uncertainties identified by the Group are not exhaustive
or comprehensive, and there may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are
not known to the Group or which may not be material now
but could turn out to be material in the future.

Insurance and Financial Risks

The Group’s business activities are exposed to a variety
of insurance risk and financial risks including market risk
(foreign exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The details of the Group’s insurance
risk and financial risks exposures are set out in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Business Risks

Banking Business

The growth of XIB Group depends on the macroeconomic
factors that affect Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau,
including the growth of gross domestic product, inflation
levels, changes in laws and regulations related to banks
and financial products, changes in macroeconomic control
policies, market liquidity, changes in credit policies, changes
in loan demands as well as progress of financial reform and
interest rate liberalisation. XIB Group may be unable to
maintain its growth rate as a result of an adverse change in
any one or more of the above factors or any other factors,
which could have a material and adverse effect on its
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Business Risks (Continued)

Insurance Business

The insurance industries in Hong Kong and Macau are
highly regulated. Companies carrying on insurance business
in Hong Kong and Macau must obtain authorisation
from Insurance Authority and Autoridade Monetaria De
Macau respectively and are subject to the requirements
imposed by Insurance Authority and Autoridade Monetaria
De Macau from time to time. Authorisation will only be
granted to insurers when certain requirements under the
Insurance Ordinance (Chapter 41 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “Insurance Ordinance”) and the Macau Insurance
Ordinance are met. Compliance with applicable laws,
rules and regulations may restrict the operations of the
Group’s insurance business and requires the Group to
deploy significant resources and to devote considerable
time to such compliance efforts. New or revised laws, rules
and regulations may be introduced from time to time and
such changes may have an adverse effect on the insurance
business of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau.

Huaneng A-Shares

Huaneng is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and
Huaneng A-Shares is classified as a long-term financial asset
of the Group. The dividend income from Huaneng A-Shares
is affected by various factors which are beyond the Group's
control, included but not limited to the results of operations,
liquidity position and dividend policy of Huaneng.

The Group is required to measure Huaneng A-Shares at
its fair value at the end of each reporting period and the
change in fair value is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity. The fair value
of Huaneng A-Shares is measured with reference to the
closing bid price of A-Share of Huaneng. The closing bid
price of A-Share of Huaneng may be volatile and is affected
by various factors which are beyond the Group’s control,
included but not limited to the results of operations of
Huaneng, investor sentiment or confidence in the stock
market and changes in economic conditions of Mainland
China.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Business Risks (Continued)

Property Investment

The monthly rental and the occupancy rate depends on
various factors, including but not limited to prevailing
supply and demand conditions of office building, economic
conditions of Mainland China as well as the quality of the
properties. There is no assurance that the Group is able to
look for new tenants within a short period of time or procure
new leases or renew existing leases at the prevailing market
rental.

The Group is required to revalue its investment properties
at the end of each reporting period and the change in fair
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
There is no assurance that changes in market conditions will
continue to generate gains or losses on revaluation at similar
level or at same level, or there will be no further decline in
the fair value of the Group's investment properties.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr YAN Zheng, aged 59, has been appointed as an
Executive Director, the Chairman of the Board, the Chairman
of both the Executive Committee and the Nomination
Committee, and an Authorised Representative of the
Company since April 2018. He holds a Bachelor degree
in Finance from the Department of Economics of Xiamen
University and a Postgraduate degree in Economics
(Economics Management) from the Party School of the
Central Committee of C.P.C.. He is a Senior Economist in
Mainland China and has been appointed as a member of
Fujian Provincial Senior Economist Evaluation Committee
since 2006. He has also been elected as deputy to the 13th
National People’s Congress since 2018. He has extensive
experience in financial institutions management, corporate
management and capital operations. He is currently the
secretary of the Party Committee, the chairman of the
board of directors and the legal representative of Fujian
Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd., which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company.

He was the deputy director of the Department of Education
from 1987 to 1991, the deputy director of the Rural
Commercial Credit Department from 1991 to 1995, and
successively served as the deputy general manager and the
general manager of the International Business Department
from 1995 to 1996 at Fujian Branch of Agricultural Bank of
China. He was the deputy general manager from 1996 to
2000 and the deputy secretary of the Party Committee from
1998 to 2000 at Xiamen Branch of Agricultural Bank of China.
He served as the deputy general manager, a member of the
Party Committee and the secretary of the Commission for
Discipline Inspection from 2000 to 2005 at Fuzhou Branch of
F BRI & E B T2 A &) (China Great Wall Asset Management
Corporation*, the predecessor of China Great Wall Asset
Management Co., Ltd.). He was the deputy director-general
and a member of the Party Committee from 2005 to 2009,
and the director-general, the vice chairman and the deputy
secretary of the Party Committee from 2009 to 2016 of
Fujian Rural Credit Union. He served as the secretary of the
Party Committee of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. from
2017 to 2020.

ZEZFF3R Annual Report 2020

23



24

> >

EENSREBASEABE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MTES

BRANFEE 5855 BE2020F 12 AEEZ T
BARRNRRTES BEFLRETELREBE
EXEENE M EREREREELE
REFEKBERBEZXRELBBARERER
MARBRELEEREXEREFT BN -
HEEHRBRAEESRSHAIEE - R
HEBFTBECXVBEEIE B8
ENFBESREEERULRCETKER
e o IR REARERBEEREREMT
RAIBEZZENBEEHE - ZRARABARAH
IR - thREMIEETEEERNDAE
BAa (EHMNTE : 600686) EEE € X fF -
ZARBLEBBEERSG ETAR -

ftb 5 1990 F £ 2002 F L& FE T @12 & BT I
EEMERE  BIXTAERIE  IARIERE
¥REBIER it §2002F F 2007 FEEE
BEAGMesmERRLOEEREBES M
B EWwER - b B2007F £20174F
G BETERREEAVRBEEERNERER
MENGANERE R °

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr CHEN Jie, aged 58, has been appointed as an Executive
Director, the Vice Chairman of the Board and a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company since December
2020. He holds a Bachelor degree in Agricultural Economics
Management from Fujian Academy of Agriculture and
a Doctor of Management degree in Economics and
Management of Agriculture from Fujian Agriculture and
Forestry University. He is a Senior Accountant in Mainland
China. He has worked in government finance and corporate
financial management, and has extensive experience
in financial capital management, financial budget
management and corporate financial management. He is
currently a member of the Party Committee and the Chief
Accountant of Fujian Investment & Development Group Co.,
Ltd., which is the controlling shareholder of the Company.
He is the chairman of the Supervisory Board of Xiamen King
Long Motor Group Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 600686), a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

He worked in Fujian Provincial Department of Finance from
1990 to 2002, and successively served as staff member,
senior staff member and principal staff member of the
Agricultural Finance Department and deputy director of
Agriculture Department. He served as the director-general of
the Management Center of Fujian Provincial Certified Public
Accountants and the secretary-general of Fujian Provincial
Association of Certified Public Accountants from 2002 to
2007. He successively served as a director of the Accounting
Delegation Department and Rural Comprehensive Reform
Department of Fujian Provincial Department of Finance from
2007 to 2017.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr CHEN Yu, aged 57, has been appointed as an Executive
Director, the General Manager, and a member of the
Executive Committee and the Remuneration Committee of
the Company since September 2018. He joined the Company
as the Executive Deputy General Manager in August 2018.
He is also the chairman of the board of directors of Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited and Fujian Minxin Investments
Co., Ltd., and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He holds a Bachelor degree in Water Resources
and Hydropower Engineering from Department of Civil
Engineering and Architecture of Fuzhou University. He is
a Senior Economist in Mainland China. He has extensive
experience in financial technology, capital operations and
financing re-guarantee. He is the chairman and the general
manager of Vigour Fine Company Limited, which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. He is also a director
of Samba Limited, which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

He worked in Fujian Branch of China Construction Bank
from July 1985 to April 2000, and successively served as a
staff member of the Investment Department and the Sales
Department, the deputy manager of the Sales and Credit
Department, the manager of the Business Development
Department, and the section chief of the Asset Preservation
Department. He successively served as the deputy general
manager of the Private Business Department, the principal
of the Credit Management Department and the deputy
general manager of the Office Management Department
of Fuzhou Branch of China Everbright Bank from April 2000
to July 2004. He was the general manager of Gulou Sub-
branch, Fuzhou Branch of China Everbright Bank from July
2004 to April 2007. He worked in Fujian Rural Credit Union
from April 2007 to February 2018, and successively served
as the deputy director of the Technology Department from
April 2007 to December 2007, the director of the Technology
Department and the general manager of the Technology
Service Center from February 2008 to September 2009,
the director of Technology Department, the general
manager of Technology Service Center and the director
of Ningde Office from September 2009 to June 2011, the
director of the Technology Department and the general
manager of the Technology Service Center from June 2011
to February 2015, the general manager of the Technology
Department (Technology Service Center) and the Innovation
Development Department from February 2015 to February
2018. He was the general manager from February 2018 to
August 2018 and the chairman of the board of directors
and the legal representative from February 2018 to
November 2019 of BEERMKRMEBEREREEAF]
(Fujian Provincial Mintou Financing Re-guarantee Company
Limited*, fiREEET/ N NEXERBEREREELR)
He was also the chairman of the board of directors and the
legal representative of {224 B ¥ g EER AR A A (Fujian
Provincial Agricultural Financing Guarantee Company
Limited®, ISR E2E B X EEERAER A F]) from February
2018 to September 2018.
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B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HON Hau Chit, aged 46, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since March 2016. He
is currently the managing director of Citychamp Dartong
Company Limited (“Citychamp Dartong”, Stock code:
600067), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
He joined Citychamp Dartong in December 2004 as the
deputy managing director and then appointed as the
managing director since April 2006. He is currently the vice
chairman of Fujian Youth Chamber of Commerce, the vice
chairman of Development Committee of Fujian Real Estate
Association and a member of the Standing Committee
of Fuzhou Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr YANG Jingchao, aged 55, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since December 2018.
He holds a Bachelor degree in International Finance from
Department of Finance of Renmin University of China and
a Master of Business Administration of La Trobe University.
He is an economist in Mainland China. He has extensive
experience in financial investment and capital operations.
He is currently the general manager of Finance Capital
Department of Fujian Investment & Development Group
Co., Ltd. and a director of Vigour Fine Company Limited,
both are the controlling shareholders of the Company. He
is also a director of Huafu Securities Co., Ltd. and Haixia
Goldenbridge Insurance Co., Ltd..

He successively served as a staff member of the Finance
Department, the Foreign Exchange Department and
the Fund Management Department from July 1987
to September 1992, senior staff member of the Fund
Management Department from September 1992 to January
1994 and the deputy manager of the Treasury Department
from January 1994 to December 1995 of Fujian Investment
and Enterprise Corporation. He served as the deputy general
manager of the International Finance Department of Fujian
International Trust and Investment Corporation from
December 1995 to April 2003. He was the deputy general
manager of the Financial Investment Department of Fujian
Investment & Enterprise Holdings Corporation from April
2003 to September 2005 and from September 2006 to May
2009 respectively. He served as the deputy general manager
of /B A MEEH LR AR A 7 (CNOOC Fujian New Energy
Company Limited*) from May 2009 to January 2015. He was
also the general manager and the legal representative of &
EAPREYR AR AR (Fujian Zhongmin Logistics Company
Limited*) from March 2012 to January 2015. He served as
the deputy general manager of the Integrated Investment
Department of Fujian Investment & Development Group Co.,
Ltd. from January 2015 to October 2016. He was the general
manager from October 2016 to September 2018 and was
also the secretary of the Party Committee, the chairman
of the board of directors and the legal representative from
August 2017 to September 2018 of B4 A FBH RS R
TR EBE B R /A A (Pingtan Comprehensive Experimental
Zone Financial Holding Group Company Limited¥).
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr IP Kai Ming, aged 69, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since July 1998. He is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He is currently the
chairman of the Supervisory Board of Xiamen International
Bank Co., Ltd. and the senior advisor to the board of
directors of Luso International Banking Limited. He is a
fellow member of both The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and has over 40
years’ extensive experience in banking and finance. He is
also a director of the Macao Chamber of Commerce. He has
a Master of Science degree in Corporate Governance and
Directorship from the Hong Kong Baptist University.

Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi, aged 50, FCCA, CPA, has been
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
and the Chairman of the Audit Committee since April
2017 and has also been appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company since April 2018. He graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts
(Hons) in Accountancy in 1993 and the Chinese University
of Hong Kong with a MBA degree in 2003. He is also a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has accumulated over 20
years of experience in professional accounting, business
consulting and corporate management. He was the chief
financial officer and the company secretary of Wuzhou
International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1369) from
2014 to 2018, the executive director and the chief financial
officer of Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited (formerly
known as SPG Land (Holdings) Limited, Stock code: 337)
from 2011 to 2012 and from 2009 to 2012 respectively, the
group financial controller of Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings)
Limited (Stock code: 2689) from 2007 to 2008, and the group
financial controller and the company secretary of Tianjin
Development Holdings Limited (Stock code: 882) from 2000
to 2003, all these companies are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr LEUNG Chong Shun, aged 55, has been appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company since May 2018.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1988
and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in laws with honors. He
is qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong and England and a
China Appointed Attesting Officer appointed by the Ministry
of Justice of the PRC. He is currently a partner of Woo Kwan
Lee & Lo and has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong
since 1991. He was the chief representative of Woo Kwan
Lee & Lo Beijing Office. He has accumulated extensive
experience in corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions
and commercial law and has been involved in various listing
and acquisition transactions of Chinese H Share companies
and red chip companies. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of SSY Group Limited (Stock code:
2005), China Coal Energy Company Limited (Stock code:
1898) and China Medical System Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 867). He was an independent non-executive director
of China Communications Construction Company Limited
(Stock code: 1800) from January 2011 to November 2017
and China National Materials Company Limited (Stock
code: 1893) from July 2007 to May 2018, respectively. All
these companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

* The relevant English name is only a transliteration of the Chinese name
for reference only.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr CHAN Kwong Yu, aged 50, is the Deputy General
Manager, Financial Controller and Company Secretary of
the Company. He is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company, the Chief Representative
of the Fuzhou Representative Office of the Company,
and a director of Min Xin Insurance Company Limited,
Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd., Sanming Sanyuan
District Minxin Micro Credit Company Limited and certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He joined the Company in
April 2000 and was appointed as Deputy Financial Controller
in July 2004, Financial Controller in January 2008, Deputy
General Manager in March 2014 and Company Secretary in
May 2019 respectively. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce in
Accounting, and is a Certified Public Accountant, a Fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
Senior Associate of Australian and New Zealand Institute of
Insurance and Finance (ANZIIF). He is also a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a Technical Specialist
of the Institute of Risk Management. Before joining the
Company, he had worked for various listed companies in
Hong Kong.

Mr WU Xubin, aged 43, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in June 2017. He is also a director and
the Acting Chief Executive of Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited, which holds a general insurance licence and is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. He holds a
Master Degree in Engineering, Economics and Management
from University of Oxford and is certified as a Construction
Project Manager (Senior) by China National Offshore Qil
Corporation. He has extensive experience in comprehensive
corporate management and served as a corporate controller
for 10 years. He served as the general manager (controller)
of CNOOC (Ningde) Oil Storage Co., Ltd., CNOOC (Ningde)
Petrochemical Jetty Co., Ltd. and CNOOC Fujian Marketing
Co., Ltd. respectively.

Ms WENG Wei Jian, aged 50, joined the Company as Group
Chief Auditor in January 2018. She is also the supervisor
of Min Xin Insurance Company Limited, Fujian Minxin
Investments Co., Ltd. and Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin
Micro Credit Company Limited. She graduated in the major
of finance and accounting from Minjiang University and
in the major of law from East China University of Political
Science and Law. She is a Senior Accountant in Mainland
China. She has over 27 years’ extensive experience in risk
management and control, accounting, asset management
and financial management. She is also a director of Samba
Limited, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and a non-executive director of Fujian Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 181), which is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.
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EXREIGHS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
committed to maintaining and upholding high standards
of corporate governance with a view to achieving business
objectives and sustainable development of the Company.
The Company has adopted the principles and the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020 except
for the following deviation:

CG Code A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term, but they are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meetings in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Board will continue to monitor and periodically review

the Company’s corporate governance practices to ensure its
compliance with the CG Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board of the Company currently comprises a total of
eight members, with three Executive Directors, two Non-
executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The composition of the current Board members represents
a balanced mixture of skills, experiences and qualifications.
Members of the Board, who come from a variety of different
backgrounds, have a diverse range of business and
professional expertise. The Executive Directors and Non-
executive Directors have extensive experiences in financial
institutions management, corporate development and
management, capital operations, financial technology,
financial investment and financing re-guarantee. The three
Independent Non-executive Directors possess appropriate
academic and professional qualifications and have
experiences in banking, accounting, legal, corporate finance
and mergers and acquisitions which would contribute
to the long-term development of the Company. All the
Independent Non-executive Directors have shared their
experiences and expertise to the Board and demonstrated
their ability to provide independent view and judgement in
the Company'’s affairs.

The Board has adopted a policy setting out the approach
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) with the aim of enhancing Board
effectiveness and corporate governance as well as achieving
our business objectives and sustainable development.
Board diversity has been considered from a number
of perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, required expertise, skills, knowledge and length
of service.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

An analysis of the Board’s current composition at

BT 31 December 2020 is as follows:
==
Directors
N - Bt
Number Percentage
B Designation
WITES Executive Directors 3 37.5%
ERIESRAE (F/F) Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman)
BRANSE (BIF/E) Mr CHEN lJie (Vice Chairman)
BRFSCHE (AEACHE) Mr CHEN Yu (General Manager)
JEHITES Non-executive Directors 2 25.0%
PREFESL Mr HON Hau Chit
HAEA S & Mr YANG Jingchao
BN IERITES Independent Non-executive Directors 3 37.5%
HRIA L Mr IP Kai Ming
RIXF A Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi
2 EIE S & Mr LEUNG Chong Shun
5l Gender
St Male 8 100%
F A B Age Group
61-70 5% 61-70 years old 1 12.5%
51-60 5% 51-60 years old 5 62.5%
41-50 5%, 41-50 years old 2 25.0%
EEEALARESNEH Directorship with the Company
(F8) (Number of years)
#B3A 20 F over 20 years 1 12.5%
1-104F 1-10 years 7 87.5%
EEHM LW ARNES Directorship with other listed companies
(AEIEE) (Number of companies)
3 3 1 12.5%
1 1 1 12.5%
0 0 6 75.0%
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

An updated list of Directors and their roles and functions
together with the information of their roles as Independent
Non-executive Directors is posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The updated biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management on pages 23 to 30 of
this annual report. Independent Non-executive Directors are
also identified as such in all corporate communications that
disclose the names of the Company’s Directors.

The Company has a formal procedure for the appointment
of new directors. Any proposed appointment will be first
reviewed by the Nomination Committee of the Board,
taking into account the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the Board. Upon recommendation of the
Nomination Committee, the proposed appointment will
then be reviewed by the Board and, if thought fit, approved
by the Board or by the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) in any general meeting.

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. All retiring directors are eligible for
re-election at each annual general meeting in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company. Any
new director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the next general meeting of the Company
following his appointment, or appointed as an addition to
the Board shall hold office until the next annual general
meeting of the Company following his appointment, and
shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Role and Function of the Board

The Board determines the Group’s overall corporate
objectives, business strategies and operational policies.
The Board continuously monitors and evaluates the Group's
operational and financial performance, maintains effective
oversight over the management, risks assessment and
controls over business operations. The Board also decides on
matters such as annual budgets and business plans, major
transactions, appointment of new directors, re-appointment
or re-designation of directors, dividend distribution
and accounting policies, and environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) management approach and strategy.
The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing its business strategies and managing the
daily operations of the Group’s businesses to the General
Manager Meeting which is led by the General Manager of
the Company.



£58 (&)
EFSHNAEKEE (18)

FMTER (BREBIUIFNTES) BBRH
BY  BRRUEKAENRZYARRAGE
TEBR  EBRENEERRELERR
BERMENER o M5BT B HERER
28 DHERRE  BRABMERYESS
RELENEESZESEHER -

E=ZRAWNTARAEEERBR - NF
A BEFEHE RS ARRNEEERR
RRER - WREEZNT

BRI MRS AR BN EEABR M E
B BREENRNARE R AEREK
REEBEELZEGRBHBEETR

B NEREENEREEA BN
REESERR

WA MERANRABERMETZRNAE
FRBREER

HE  BAREREZEREENTAT
ARARES (WH)

BRI ARBIN(ERERRE) HhE
EETRREEEKNARER « &

HEMBRE LB REANERT

ENKRES > BRERETRRABARE 4

BREANESMAEERE - STEA

FEERIRE - HE REAHEBNER -

PA Rt e AUt AR CBRIR - L@ REVAHR

H)e
EREFHARNARABRBENEMAIRAT]
FABBETORM EhEREmIAREE
B e

FHREGIRS
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Role and Function of the Board (Continued)

Non-executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
executive Directors) have made positive and constructive
contributions to the development of the Company’s
corporate objectives, business strategies and operational
policies through independent, constructive and informed
advice. They gave the Board and the Board Committees
on which they served the benefit of their skills, expertise
and experiences through regular attendance and active
participation.

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate
governance policies of the Company. During the year,
the Board developed and reviewed the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and made
recommendations as below:

To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, including but
not limited to the Approval Authority Policy of the
Company and the revised terms of reference of the
Executive Committee;

. To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to the
directors and employees;

. To review the Company’s compliance with the code of
corporate governance and disclosure requirements in
the Corporate Governance Report; and

. To develop and review ESG management approach and
strategy, including but not limited to the endorsement
of ESG philosophy and governance structure, the
evaluation and determination of ESG-related risks, and
the review and approval of Environmental, Social and
Governance Report.

All Directors are required to disclose to the Company their
offices held in other public companies or organisations,
other major appointments and professional qualifications.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year,
to review business development and performance of the
Group and additional meetings will be held as and when
required. Board meetings are normally scheduled in advance
to facilitate fullest possible attendance. Each Director is
invited to present any businesses that he wishes to discuss
or propose at such meetings. The Company Secretary assists
the Board in preparing the agenda for meetings. Directors or
Board Committee members receive the meeting agenda and
accompanying Board papers or Board Committee papers at
least three days before the date of Board meeting or Board
Committee meeting. Management also supplies the Board
and the Board Committees with sufficient information and
explanations so as to enable them to make an informed
assessment of financial and other information put before
the Board and the Board Committees for review and
approval. Draft and final versions of minutes are circulated
to all the Directors and Board Committee members for
their comments and records respectively. Minutes of Board
meetings and Board Committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection by the
Directors.

All Directors have full access to business documents and
information on the Group on a timely basis. Furthermore,
management provides all Directors with monthly updates
which give a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group's performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties under the Listing Rules.
The Board and each Director has separate and independent
access to senior management and Company Secretary of the
Company.

Directors may seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense upon
making requests to the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Meetings (Continued)

Directors make their best efforts to contribute to the
development of strategy, policies and decision-making by
attending the Board meetings in person or via telephone/
video conferencing.

The attendance records of four scheduled Board meetings
held in 2020 and the annual general meeting of the
Company are set out below:

HERE EFXE
Attendance/Number of Meetings
BRRAFAE
EEg Annual
Board General
EEnSE Name of Directors Meetings Meeting
WITES Executive Directors
BRIEHE (F/E) Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman) 4/4 11
BRARSE (BIFE) Mr CHEN lJie (Vice Chairman) 11 0/0
(2020 12 511 HEZ(F) (appointed on 11 December 2020)
FIFEE (FIFE) Mr WANG Fei (Vice Chairman) 2/3 11
(2020 F 9 A 4 A EiT) (resigned on 4 September 2020)
BRF I (AEACHE) Mr CHEN Yu (General Manager) 4/4 1/1
FNTES Non-executive Directors
PREE L Mr HON Hau Chit 4/4 11
A& Mr YANG Jingchao 4/4 11
BWUIERITES Independent Non-executive Directors
HERAFLE Mr IP Kai Ming 4/4 11
RIBEAE Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi 3/4 11
2B B A Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 4/4 11
FRERNITIERA Chairman and Chief Executive

ARREFEER ([EF]) RBEE (K
THRBRHZENTE) ZBHETRALE
T UAEESFSEFERAEEAREXHKEE
WBESUERRD

The positions of the Chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)
and the General Manager (acting in the capacity of a Chief
Executive) of the Company are held by separate individuals
with a view to maintain an effective segregation of duties
regarding the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the Group’s businesses.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive (Continued)

One of the important roles of Mr YAN Zheng, the Chairman,
is to provide leadership to the Board to ensure that the
Board acts in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman
ensures that the Board works effectively and discharges its
responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman
has delegated the responsibility for drawing up the agenda
for each Board meeting to the General Manager, Mr CHEN
Yu.

Senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group under the
leadership of the General Manager of the Company. The
General Manager, supported by senior management, is
responsible for managing the businesses of the Group,
including implementation of strategies adopted by the
Board and assuming full accountability to the Board for the
operations of the Group.

Other than regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors and senior
management.

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

More than one-third of the members of the Board consist
of independent non-executive directors and at least one
of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence to the Company
and their independence have been assessed with reference
to the criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Following such assessment, the Board has affirmed that all
Independent Non-executive Directors remain independent.

The re-election of an Independent Non-executive Director
who has served the Board for more than nine years will
be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
Shareholders in the annual general meeting. The Board will
assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors and state the reasons why the Board considers the
Independent Non-executive Directors are still independent
and recommend the Shareholders to vote in favor of the re-
election of the Independent Non-executive Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Term of appointment of Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors of the Company have not
been appointed for a specific term as required by CG Code
A.4.1 but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

Directors’ Training

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. In 2020, the Company
has arranged two seminars for the Directors and senior
management with topics covered the governance roles of
directors of listed company and new ESG reporting guides.
The Company has also provided training materials to the
Directors and senior management with the emphasis on first
ruling on late disclosure of inside information concerning
takeover talks and potential effects of the coronavirus
outbreak on 2020 reporting periods and onward.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received trainings in the following areas:

R MEER
Attended Read
EENA Name of Directors seminar materials
WITES Executive Directors
BRIESTAE (£/%) Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman) 4 v/
BRANFTE (BIF/E) Mr CHEN Jie (Vice Chairman) v v/
(2020F 12 11 HEZ(E) (appointed on 11 December 2020)
TIESAE (BIZE/E) Mr WANG Fei (Vice Chairman) - 4
(2020 9 7 4 HEFT) (resigned on 4 September 2020)
PRI AE (AEASTE ) Mr CHEN Yu (General Manager) v/ V4
EITES Non-executive Directors
RIS AE Mr HON Hau Chit v/ v
THEEA ST Mr YANG Jingchao v/ v
WY IERITES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERAALE Mr IP Kai Ming v v
SRS L Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi v v/
288 % £ Mr LEUNG Chong Shun v v/
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Liability Insurance for Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage
on directors’ and officers’ liabilities against possibility of
legal action to be taken against the directors and senior
management. No claim under such insurance policy was
made in 2020.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established four Board Committees, namely
Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. Each of the
Board Committees has its terms of reference with defined
powers and authorities given to the Committee members
to discharge their duties. The terms of reference of all the
Non-executive Board Committees have been made available
on the Company’s website (www.minxin.com.hk) and the
website of the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee comprises solely of Independent Non-
executive Directors. Majority of the Remuneration
Committee members and Nomination Committee members
are Independent Non-executive Directors while the
Executive Committee comprises all Executive Directors.
The General Manager Meeting set up by the Executive
Committee and endorsed by the Board comprises the
General Manager, who is also an Executive Director, and
senior management.

Executive Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing its business strategies and managing the
daily operations of the Group's businesses to the Executive
Committee which currently consists of three Executive
Directors, namely Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman), Mr CHEN Jie
and Mr CHEN Yu.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Executive Committee (Continued)

To further improve the work process and enhance the
effectiveness, the Executive Committee has set up a General
Manager Meeting which has been endorsed by the Board
to exercise the authority and responsibility delegated by
the Board to Executive Committee. The General Manager
Meeting meets at least once per month and operates as a
general management committee under the direct authority
of the Executive Committee. It exercises the powers,
authorities and discretions as directed by the Executive
Committee in so far as they concern the management and
daily operations of the Group in accordance with its terms
of reference and such other policies and directives as the
Executive Committee may determine from time to time.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr CHEUNG Man
Hoi. Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi has accumulated over 20 years of
experience in professional accounting, business consulting
and corporate management. The other members are Mr IP
Kai Ming and Mr LEUNG Chong Shun.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing, among
other things, the Group’s financial reporting and ESG
reporting, the nature and scope of audit, the effectiveness
of the systems of internal control and risk management,
and compliance relating to financial reporting and ESG
reporting. The Audit Committee is also responsible for
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment, removal and remuneration of the Group's
external auditor. The Audit Committee meets regularly to
perform its duties and has a separate meeting with the
external auditor in the absence of management to discuss
any audit issues and any other matters the external auditor
may wish to raise. The Audit Committee can perform its
duties with unrestricted access to both the Group’s external
and internal auditors. Sufficient resources are provided
to the Audit Committee to discharge its duties including
but not limited to obtaining legal or other independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

RERN  BEZREEGERTT (HFEFE) AT During the year, the Audit Committee has performed, inter
BE alia, the following:
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reviewed and discussed with external auditor the
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2019
and the interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2020 and recommended to the Board for
approval respectively;

reviewed and obtained explanation from management
on the interim and annual results, including causes
of changes from the previous accounting period,
effects on the application of new accounting policies,
and compliance with the Listing Rules and relevant
legislation;

reviewed the activities of the Group’s risk management,
compliance management and internal audit functions
and their findings and recommendations as laid down
in their respective reports;

reviewed the internal audit plan for the year 2020;

reviewed the risk appetite report and risk management
work plan for the year 2021;

recommended to the Board regarding the re-appointment
of the Company’s external auditor;

reviewed the audit plan for the year 2020;

considered the adequacy of resources, professional
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programs and budget; and

held a meeting with the external auditor, in the
absence of management, to discuss any audit issues
and any other matters the external auditor may wish to
raise.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

In 2020, the Audit Committee held three meetings. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out
below:

HERE EFRE
REHE Name of Committee Members Attendance/Number of Meetings
B IEMITES Independent Non-executive Directors
SRIGBRE (F/E) Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi (Chairman) 3/3
HRIA S E Mr IP Kai Ming 3/3
ZAlES & Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 3/3
HMEES Remuneration Committee

FMEESRGANMMEARK - Hp X
DRERBIFNTES - HTNZEEHIE
MIFEMTEEEMALELETE - B
BEERBRLE - RAELEE RFEE
MREFRE -

¥FNEZES R EREARBNFEEK - A
KElERBNARREERSRERAERN
¥R YRMERSRLES  FMEE
EHFELAR-—REE  URNERRKRAE

SERLFRIER - HNZ B GEREM
FRRERABTERE  S8RETRREE
ERATRSERXEMBIERER - B
AERABRAREAT

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five
committee members, the majority of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee
is chaired by Mr IP Kai Ming who is an Independent Non-
executive Director, the other members are Mr CHEUNG
Man Hoi, Mr LEUNG Chong Shun, Mr CHEN Yu and Mr CHAN
Kwong Yu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for considering
and making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy, and the formulation and
review of the remuneration packages of all Directors and
senior management of the Company. The Remuneration
Committee meets at least once a year and reports to the
Board on the decisions or recommendations following
each meeting. Sufficient resources are provided to the
Remuneration Committee to discharge its duties including
but not limited to obtaining legal or other independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company'’s expense.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has
performed, inter alia, the following:

reviewed the proposal for salary adjustments to its
employees and recommended the same to the Board
for approval;

reviewed the proposal for payment of bonus to senior
management and recommended the same to the
Board for approval;

reviewed the directors’ fees for the year of 2020 and
recommended the same to the Board for endorsement;
and

reviewed the director’s fee for a newly appointed
director and recommended the same to the Board for
approval.

In 2020, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting.
The attendance record of each committee member is set out

below:
HERS ERRE
REHE Name of Committee Members Attendance/Number of Meeting
BIEMITES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERNBRLA (£/E) Mr IP Kai Ming (Chairman) 1/1
SRIB L Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi 11
2 ElES & Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 11
WITES Executive Director

BRFFAE (FBAFHE)

SREBAR
REFRE

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

Mr CHEN Yu (General Manager) 11

Senior Management
Mr CHAN Kwong Yu 11
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Details of the remuneration of Directors are disclosed
on an individual basis and are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
remuneration payable to senior management of the
Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2020 is
as follows:

A

Number of

Individuals

75 #£1,500,001 7T - /5 %5 2,000,000 7T HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 2
75 #£ 4,000,001 7T - 75 %5 4,500,000 7T HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 1

REL88
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RE  ZAXBEHZEEENEFSELES
RERESSRLES - (RBEX) 2 HlE
BEIREBEERREANTR - 25 MR
EoRBEREGEELRE (AHERE) EF
EHRE - RBE - AREZTTE  REAN
BRE - MBMERN TS BYFATES
BT EEBREEE  FATESF (B
EEIFNITES) EIMAGE M A
Bl UARBEEFEZEENKRE - BE X
BEeRRAEHERBRARRNC(ESS
ZHAEBE) WA ERR  UBEREAX
t-RREZEeEFELAR—REH I
EeZRMEFTSERLZRIESR - 1D
ZEeRRUARNERABITERE &
RETRREEE BN TEISEARAEME
VEXER  BERERAANARXM -

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four committee
members. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr YAN
Zheng, the Chairman of the Board, and the other members
are three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr IP Kai
Ming, Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi and Mr LEUNG Chong Shun.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on nominations,
appointments or re-appointments of Directors and Board
Committee members in accordance with the Company’s
Nomination Policy. The Nomination Policy sets out the
procedures, process and criteria for identifying and
recommending candidates for election to the Board. The
Nomination Committee considers and reviews, among other
things, the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board, the balance of skills, knowledge and experience
of the candidates, independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors, re-election of retiring Directors, term
of appointment and time commitment of Non-executive
Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors)
and the membership of respective Board Committees. The
Nomination Committee is also responsible for developing
and reviewing measureable objectives for the Company’s
Board Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness. The
Nomination Committee meets at least once a year and
reports to the Board on their decisions or recommendations
following each meeting. Sufficient resources are provided to
the Nomination Committee to discharge its duties including
but not limited to obtaining legal or other independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company'’s expense.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Nomination Committee has performed,
inter alia, the following:

. reviewed the structure, size and composition
(including but not limited to the skills, knowledge and
experiences) of the Board in accordance with the Board
Diversity Policy and reported to the Board;

reviewed and recommended to the Board for the
appointment of a new director;

reviewed and assessed the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors; and

reviewed and recommended to the Board for the
proposed re-election of the retiring Directors at the
annual general meeting held in 2020.

REZEEN2020FRTT —RE&E » B In 2020, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. The
B Z HERsEy T attendance record of each committee member is set out
below:
HETE ERERE

REHE Name of Committee Members Attendance/Number of Meeting
HITES Executive Director

BRIESLAE (FF) Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman) 1/1
BN IEMITES Independent Non-executive Directors

HRIASE Mr IP Kai Ming 11

RIBEE Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi 11

2RI & Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 11
ESNEHFRS DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

$’ATE%£W EETHICTHESETES
RGBSR ([ GRFE£ERD |) - HIEK
T\{&EML‘W%EEJDBfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%im@ﬂ
ERETESFRHZESA) ([ (EESP
) 1) FIREMIZEE - RAFIERERBES
ERERIER - FTBEESHE®EREE 2020
F12A31HILREFE —FEF (RESFD
RAD R CRFER]) FTERIR EIR%E -

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions (the “Code of
Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standard in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made
specific enquiry to all Directors and all Directors of the
Company have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards as set out in the Model Code and the
Company’s Code of Conduct throughout the year ended 31
December 2020.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board aims at making a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects. The Directors are responsible
for overseeing the preparation of consolidated financial
statements of each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its
subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period and of their
financial performance and cash flows for that period then
ended. In preparing the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards
which are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the
financial statements, made judgement and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable, and prepared the accounts on a
going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the accounts of the Company on a going concern basis.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2020 have
been audited by the external auditor, KPMG, and reviewed
by the Audit Committee. At 31 December 2020, the Directors
were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which might cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect
to the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 75 to 81 of this annual report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
and overseeing an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. The risk
management and internal control systems will monitor the
material aspects of the Group’s business and operations
and also to safeguard its assets. Such systems are designed
to manage the Group’s risks within an acceptable risk
profile, rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss, and to manage and minimise risks of failure in
operational systems.

The Board has adopted the Risk Management Policy which
covers the Group’s risk appetite and risk management
framework at strategic and operational levels in identifying,
measuring, monitoring and controlling risks including credit
risk, market risk, insurance risk, operational risk, investment
risk and compliance risk etc., the details of which were set
out in the Risk Management and Internal Control Report on
pages 55 to 62 of this annual report.

The Board oversees the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems with the
assistance of the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Department of the Company. Risk Management Department
developed the risk registers and risk management manual
for implementing risk management and internal control
practices. The Manager of Risk Management Department
is also responsible for reviewing the risk management
status in the Group, to monitor and review the execution of
and compliance with the established risk control policies
and measures. Regular audits or reviews are conducted
to provide assurance that the risk controls are in place in
business and operational units of the Group. The Manager
of Risk Management Department presents reports to the
members of the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

The Board also delegates the responsibility for reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems to the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee monitors the Group’s risk management processes
and internal control systems through the Internal Audit
Department. Internal Audit Department performs ongoing
assessments and regular independent reviews of all material
controls of the Group, checks for compliance with policies
and standards and evaluates the effectiveness of internal
control structures across the Group.

The Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
covering all material controls, including financial,
operational, compliance, and risk management functions
during the year and the resources allocated to internal
control operations. The Audit Committee reported the
review result to the Board following each Audit Committee
meeting. The Board reviewed, considered and was satisfied
with the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems and risk management functions are effective,
adequate and in compliance with the risk management and
internal control code provisions of the CG Code.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the fees paid or payable to
the external auditor of the Company, KPMG, for statutory
audit services, attestation work (in relation to interim
financial statements issued by the Company), professional
services for special engagement, and tax and consultancy
services were HK$1,864,000, HK$323,000, HK$180,000 and
HK$118,000 respectively.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr CHAN Kwong Yu is the Company Secretary and an
Authorised Representative of the Company, he is a full time
employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge
of the Company’s affairs. He should report to the Chairman
and the General Manager and is responsible for advising
the Board on governance matters. He confirmed that he has
taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional training to
update his skills and knowledge during the year 2020.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening a General Meeting ("GM”)

Shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5%
of the total voting rights of all the members having a right
to vote at general meetings may request Directors of the
Company to call a GM of the Company.

The request:

(@) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the GM;

(b) may consist of several documents in like form;

()  may include the text of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the GM;

(d) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and

() may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will notify the
Directors to proceed to convene a GM within 21 days from
the date of the receipt of the request. Such GM must be held
on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the GM.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Convening a General Meeting ("GM”) (Continued)

If the Directors fail to convene a GM within 21 days from
the date of the receipt of the request, the shareholder(s)
who requested the GM, or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene the GM. Any GM so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of the receipt of the request.

A GM so convened by the shareholder(s) concerned shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholder(s)
concerned by reason of the failure of the Directors
duly to convene a meeting shall be reimbursed to such
shareholder(s) by the Company.

For further details, shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of the Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”).

Moving a Resolution at an Annual General Meeting
("AGM”)

Shareholders of the Company may request the Company
to give, to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of AGM, notice of resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the AGM. Such
shareholders must represent:

(@) at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution

at the AGM to which the requests relate; or

(b) at least 50 shareholders who have a right to vote on
the resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Moving a Resolution at an Annual General Meeting
("AGM”] (Continued)

The request (i) may be sent to the Company in hard copy
form or electronic form; (ii) must identify the resolution of
which notice is to be given; (iii) must be authenticated by
the person or persons making it; and (iv) must be received
by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the AGM to
which the request relates; or if later, the time at which notice
is given of that meeting.

In addition, the request will be verified with the Company'’s
share registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will notify the
Directors for including the resolution in the agenda for the
AGM.

The Company is required to give notice of the resolution
at the Company’s own expense to each shareholder of the
Company entitled to receive notice of the AGM in the same
manner as the notice of AGM; and at the same time as, or as
soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of AGM.

For further details, shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 615 and 616 of the Companies Ordinance.

Circulation of Statement at General Meetings

If shareholders of the Company would like to express their
views to a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution or
other business to be dealt with at a GM, they can submit
a written statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to that matter or business and request the Company
to circulate their written statement to the shareholders
of the Company entitled to receive notice of GM. Such
shareholders must represent:

(a) at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having the relevant right to vote at the
meeting; or

(b) at least 50 shareholders having the relevant right to
vote at the meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Circulation of Statement at General Meetings
(Continued)

The shareholders having the right to vote mean (i) in relation
to a proposed statement concerning a matter mentioned in
a proposed resolution, a right to vote on that resolution at
the meeting to which the requests relate; and (ii) in relation
to any other statement, a right to vote at the meeting to
which the requests relate.

The request to circulate a statement (i) may be sent to
the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form; (ii)
must identify the statement to be circulated; (iii) must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (iv)
must be received by the Company at least 7 days before the
meeting to which the request relates.

The request will be verified with the Company ‘s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Company will circulate the statement to
each shareholder of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the meeting provided that:

(@) if the request relates to an AGM and the proposed
statement is received in time to enable the Company
to send a copy of the statement at the same time as
it gives notice of AGM. Otherwise, the shareholders
concerned have to deposit a sum reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in circulating the
statement submitted by the shareholders concerned
not later than 7 days before the AGM;

(b) if the request relates to a GM (other than an AGM),
the shareholders concerned have to deposit a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in circulating the statement submitted by the
shareholders concerned not later than 7 days before
the GM.

For further details, shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 580 to 582 of the Companies Ordinance.

Further, a shareholder may propose a person other than
a retiring Director of the Company for election as a
Director of the Company at a GM. The procedures for such
proposal are available on the website of the Company
(www.minxin.com.hk).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Putting Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board'’s
attention in writing together with his/her contact details
addressing to the registered office of the Company or by
email to mxhl.enquiry@minxin.com.hk for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy
aims at enhancing the efficiency of communication amongst
the Shareholders, the Board and senior management of
the Company through various official channels so that the
Shareholders can access the Company’s public information
equally in a timely manner.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which has set out the principle and procedures
for the payment of dividend to Shareholders to provide
stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders and to
share the profits of the Company with the Shareholders.
The Board may decide from time to time to declare interim
dividend or to recommend the payment of final dividend
and special dividend to the Shareholders which is subject
to the Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. The
Company intends to provide the eligible Shareholders with
approximately 10% to 20% of the Group'’s consolidated profit
for the year attributable to the Shareholders as dividend, the
remaining consolidated profit for the year will be used for
the future development and operations of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Articles of Association of the Company is posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. There has
been no change during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company “) and its
subsidiaries (the “"Group”) strive to establish a sound
risk management and internal control system to
achieve sustainable development and be responsible to
shareholders. The Board of the Company (the “Board”) has
the overall responsibility for maintaining the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system. The senior
management is charged with the responsibility to establish
and implement such system to control risks arising from
business activities within an acceptable level via an effective
risk management process.

During the year under review, the Group complied with
the above principles and the CG Codes C.2.1 to C.2.5 and
recommended best practices C.2.6 and C.2.7. The details are
summarised as follows:
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Five core principles |nc|ude Securing capital adequacy; Maintaining a strong liquidity position; Preserving
good reputation; Complying with regulatory and compliance management requirements; Matching between
risks and returns.
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (FIGURE 1)

The Group has established a risk management framework
to define its risk management objectives, risk appetite,
risk monitoring and reporting mechanism to enable the
effective implementation of the risk management process
by the Group. If there are any material risks being identified
that can have significant effect on the Group, it should
be immediately reported to the senior management or
notified to the Audit Committee to take appropriate risk
management action against the material risks.

RISK APPETITE FRAMEWORK (FIGURE 2)

The Group's risk appetite is based on five core principles,
including: Securing capital adequacy; Maintaining a strong
liquidity position; Preserving good reputation; Complying
with regulatory and compliance management requirements;
Matching between risks and returns.

The senior management shall design risk indicators and
risk limits based on the five core principles and operating
environment. The senior management shall also report
its implementation status to the Board on a regular basis.
Meanwhile, a risk appetite statement report should be
compiled at least once a year and subsequently submitted
to the Board for approval.

RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND THREE
LINES OF DEFENSE MODEL (FIGURE 3)

The Group has adopted a systematic risk management
approach to implement a top-down management
mechanism. The current risk management organizational
structure includes the Board, the senior management and
business divisions.

«  The Board is the highest steering committee for risk
management, and with the assistance of the Audit
Committee, it evaluates the risks that the Group is
willing to accept during the phase of achieving strategic
goals, so as to ensure the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system.

The senior management is responsible for formulating
risk strategies, risk policies and risk management
framework; establishing a risk management culture; and
implementing and supervising the risk management
and internal control system.
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Business divisions (and subsidiaries)
serve as the first line of defense. They
shall be responsible for managing
the risks arising from business
activities. At the same time, they
shall formulate relevant regulations
and processes in accordance with
risk management policies, carry out
specific risk management work, as well
as provide risk indicators to the risk
management function on a regular
basis to track the performance of risk
management. In addition, business
divisions (and subsidiaries) shall work
with the compliance management
function to ensure that the design of
various policies was in conformity with
the related regulations of competent
authorities.

The risk management function and
the compliance management function
are responsible for the second line
of defense. The risk management
function is responsible for collecting
key risk information, managing
the implementation status of its
risk indicators as well as issuing risk
warnings when those risk indicators
are close to exceeding the risk limits.
The compliance management
function is responsible for managing
the Company’s internal systems,
monitoring whether each business
divisions has complied with relevant
internal policies in business operations,
duly performing supervisions and
inspections such as compliance
check and compliance examination,
and conducting inspections on the
compliance practice in business
operations. Meanwhile, the risk
management function and the
compliance management function
shall report the implementation status
of risk management to the senior
management, the Audit Committee
and the Board on a regular basis.

The internal audit function acts as the
third line of defense. The Board and
the Audit Committee are responsible
for leading the internal audit function
in inspecting and evaluating the
adequacy and the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control
system regularly, and requesting for
enhancements where appropriate.
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RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND THREE
LINES OF DEFENSE MODEL (FIGURE 3)
(Continued)

« Each business division is an implementation entity of
its respective business activities, and shall regularly
provide risk indicators to the risk management
department or internal audit function of the Company,
or corresponding function under the subsidiaries for
conducting risk management activities on the basis of
its current work.

At the same time, in order to implement the risk
management and internal control system effectively and
to achieve the goal of “To be risk-oriented and to comply
with the laws”, the Group and Min Xin Insurance have set
up a “Three Lines of Defense” model (Table 1) to ensure
that the operational management and business processes
of the Group have been embedded with risk management
activities.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS (FIGURE 4)

The Group conducts risk management by adopting the
following risk management steps:

Step 1: Risk Identification - Identifying the significant
sources and types of risks faced by the Group;

Step 2: Risk Analysis — Evaluating the existing risks;

Step 3: Risk Monitoring - Setting key risk indicators for
identified significant risks based on the risk appetite
framework, and monitoring risk changes on a regular basis;

Step 4: Risk Reporting - Concluding and analysing the
results of risk management and reporting the results to the
senior management and the Board. The report also outlines
the following items:

+ Implementation of risk indicators and limits;
«  Risk assessment.
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SIGNIFICANT RISKS TO THE GROUP

The Group has identified significant risks in principal
businesses, which can be categorised as: Associated
company risk, Insurance risk, Credit risk, Market risk and
Operational risk. The summary about the risks and related
management measures are as follows:

Associated Company Risk

“Associated company risk “ is the risk of difficulty in realisation
of investment institution’s interests of an associated company.

The Group holds the most significant investment in XIB
Group. Therefore, the Company conducts risk management
by nominating Directors and continuously monitoring long-
term investment performance to reduce uncertainty.

At the end of 2020, the total assets of our banking business
accounted for 72.2% of the Group’s total assets.

Insurance Risk

“Insurance risk” refers to the risk of losses resulting from
unexpected changes in the payment of claims and related
expenses in accordance with the contract after receiving
premiums and starting to undertake the risk of the insured
in the insurance business.

In order to reduce the risk, Min Xin Insurance focuses on
high-quality new businesses with mature underwriting
policies, and adopts appropriate claim procedures to reduce
the risks in claim processing due to improper operations
or negligence. Besides, Min Xin Insurance has arranged the
reinsurance to control risks within an acceptable range.

The risk exposure (total insurance liabilities, net) of Min
Xin Insurance at the end of 2020 was HK$121.08 million, an
increase of 53.5% as compared to HK$78.89 million at the
end of 2019.
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SIGNIFICANT RISKS TO THE GROUP (Continued)

Credit Risk

“Credit risk” is the risk of potential financial loss due to
counterparty or debtor failing or declining to perform
contractual obligations.

The credit risk of Min Xin Insurance is mainly from the risk
of treaty-reinsurer failing to execute the reinsurance treaty
resulting in Min Xin Insurance suffering financial loss and
may lead to an impairment of the Group’s consolidated
assets. Min Xin Insurance has selected treaty-reinsurers
with credit ratings of A- or above from Standard & Poor’s
(or equivalent) as business partners prior to arranging
reinsurance and has regularly monitored their credit ratings.
There were 11 treaty-reinsurers cooperating with Min Xin
Insurance, and their credit ratings were all above A- as at 31
December 2020.

The credit risk of the Sanyuan Micro Credit arises from the
debtor failing or refusing to repay the loans resulting in
the increase of non-performing debts and may lead to an
impairment of the Group’s consolidated assets. Sanyuan
Micro Credit has stopped underwriting new loan business
and will continue to adopt proactive measures to recover its
nonperforming loans.

Market Risk

“Market risk” is the risk due to price changes in financial
market instruments which affect the value of the Group’s
financial assets and in turn create losses.

The Group’s risk management objective is to increase
shareholders’ value while ensuring that the risks will be
controlled within the Group’s acceptable range. The risk
exposures of the Group in major financial instruments at
the end of 2020 were: Stocks: HK$4.0 million (market value),
Funds: equivalent to approximately HK$47.6 million (market
value), Structured deposits: RMB472.6 million (equivalent to
HK$561.7 million) (principal).

Besides, some of the investment vehicles are denominated
in RMB. The Group may have exchange risk in the conversion
of RMB into HKD. Considering that the application of fund
the Group did not have any significant market risk resulting
from the exchange volatility as at 31 December 2020.
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SIGNIFICANT RISKS TO THE GROUP (Continued)

Operational Risk

“Operational risk” is the risk of losses due to improper
or faulty of internal operation, personnel and system, or
external events.

The Group manages and controls the risks through methods
such as effective work division and balancing mechanism,
sort major business segments and set up formal policies.

THE IMPACT OF COVID-19 TO THE GROUP

Since the beginning of year 2020, the outbreak of Covid-19
has a significant impact on the global economic and
consumption activity becomes slowing or resulting in a dull
consumer market. In respect to the business, Fujian Minxin
Investments Co., Ltd., and Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin
Micro Credit Company Limited has stopped new business
since 2019 and 2016, respectively. Therefore, the influence
is only minimal. For the Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited, it underwrites general insurance business which
includes property damage and liability insurance. Individual
and corporation still have the needs to buy the general
insurance.

As to the operation, the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries have in place a business continuity plan (BCP)
so that we can prudently assess the pandemic and its impact
to the company’s operations and staff. Once the pandemic
turns into severe, the Company and Min Xin insurance could
launch working from home program to work remotely or will
open the backup office to continue the business operation.

Overall, the Covid-19 had result in limited impact to
the Group in 2020 and the risk is within boundaries of
acceptable range.

INSIDE INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURE

The Group has formulated the “Inside Information Disclosure
Policy” to have strict specification on areas such as the
definition of inside information, the requirements for the
release of inside information, the roles and responsibilities
of the Board and the senior management on inside
information management, the procedures and internal
control for processing and issuing inside information as
well as public communication. The announcement of the
disclosure of inside information shall be submitted to the
Board or an authorised officer for approval.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group’s internal controls are designed to improve the
operational efficiency, prevent misuse and unauthorized
processing of assets, maintain proper accounting records to
deliver a true and fair view for the financial statements, and
ensure the compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

In accordance with the CG Code C.2.1 and C.2.2, the Board
and the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s financial,
operational, compliance, and risk management functions in
2020. The senior management has confirmed to the Board
and the Audit Committee that the current risk management
and internal control systems of the Group are adequate
and effective. Based on the review results and the senior
management ‘s confirmation, the Board and the Audit
Committee considered the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems to be adequate and effective as of
31 December 2020. Details of which are summarized below:

In the year under review, the Board reviewed the Group’s risk
management framework which contained risk management
objectives, risk appetite framework, risk monitoring and risk
reporting.

In the year under review, the Board was of the view that
the risk management and internal control system has been
continuously improved by the Group. It strives to make the
risk management methods more standardised, including
the enhancement of risk appetite system, risk indicators and
risk limits, and risk monitoring system for the Group in the
future.

The Group will continue to strengthen the management and
implementation of risk management and internal control
system in order to comply with the provisions in the CG
Code and best practices.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors hereby present their report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding,
and the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in financial services, insurance, property
investment and strategic investment. The principal activities
and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
associates are set out in Notes 38 and 17 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the revenue and results of the Group by
operating segment during the financial year is set out in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 and the financial position of the Group at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 82
to 85.

The Board has resolved to recommend at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, 9 June 2021 (the “2021 AGM”) the payment
of a final dividend of 10 HK cents per share totalling
HK$59,725,725.20 for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: final dividend of 10 HK cents per share totalling
HK$59,725,725.20). The proposed dividend, if approved, will
be paid on or before 25 June 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group
as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance,
including a fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion
of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group,
particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the financial year 2020,
an indication of likely future development in the Group's
business, an analysis of the Group’s performance using
financial key performance indicators, a discussion on the
Group’s environmental policies and performance, the
Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group, and an account
of the key relationships with its stakeholders that have a
significant impact on the Group and on which the Group's
success depends, are provided in the Five-Year Financial
Summary, Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion
and Analysis, Corporate Governance Report and Risk
Management and Internal Control Report set out on pages 4
to 22 and pages 31 to 62 respectively of this annual report.

ZEZFF3R Annual Report 2020

63



64

444

EEBHRS
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

IRIB R0 RIR

BN NS EE IR B BR MK - DA R
TERNENARNE - TRWEARS 0
GRE - LB RERBE)  ZWERR 2021
F4 ARKZA EHNAR BB [RIT - i
GRERRE | MR PAREERA -

BiFRINBFER

EELME 2021 FRRBPFASUHRR
H&E g

AETHE 2021 FRFAFASTES EF
ERNER  ARRIER2021F6 A48 (25
F)E2021F6 A9H (EH=) (BIEEEMW
RER) EEHERDBFELTFE - AR
REBEREE 2021 FRRBFASTES
FRE FTEEZARGBEREEREGRH
Y ZE - AR 2021F 6 A3H (EHMM) T4 4
B30 DRI X EARAIRDBEERLESEZE
EERARPEZLFE  HWULATEER
RIBR1835A AL 541 o

b & WX BT AR RV E 18

H E 2020 12 A 31 B I FZ 1 #t )k 2 K 5
B BB R 2021 FRRHEBF RS Hib#E
BAAMEE - AETHRERIKABRENE
o RRAEIBR2021F6 A16 8 (EH =)
£2021F6 A17H (E8M) (BEEEM KX
R EERERDAFPERLFE - AR
HEERZERERE  IEEZNBREE
WEBRBBEIRE BR2021F6 A15H (£
Hi=) TH4R300 AR EARAIRMDBL
EREPFEEZEERARNWEZLFE b
IAEBE2FXEBERI18IFAMP L 541 -

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

Further discussions on the environmental policies and
performance of the Group, and our relationships with key
stakeholders are contained in a separate Environmental,
Social and Governance Report, which will be available at
the Company’s website under the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report and the website of the Stock Exchange
on or before the end of April 2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For Determining the Entitlement to Attend and Vote
at the 2021 AGM

For the purpose of ascertaining the entitlement to attend
and vote at the 2021 AGM, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Friday, 4 June 2021 to
Wednesday, 9 June 2021, (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the right to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM,
all properly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Standard Limited,
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 3 June 2021.

For Determining the Entitlement to the Proposed
Dividend

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2020 is subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the
2021 AGM. For the purpose of ascertaining Shareholders’
entitlement to the final dividend, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 16 June
2021 to Thursday, 17 June 2021, (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for the final dividend, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 15 June 2021.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, net assets and total equity of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
4 and 5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD

Details of the principal property interests held by the Group
are set out on page 244.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 32(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out on page 86 and in Note 37(a) to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2020, calculated under Part 6 of the Companies Ordinance,
amounted to HK$506,606,000 (2019: HK$557,625,000).
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DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report are set out on page 2.

In accordance with Articles 94 and 95 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr Hon Hau Chit, Mr YANG
Jingchao and Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi will retire by rotation
at the 2021 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

In accordance with Article 88 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr CHEN Jie, who has been appointed as an
Executive Director and the Vice Chairman of the Board with
effect from 11 December 2020, shall hold office only until
the next general meeting of the Company, and shall then be
eligible and offer himself for re-election at the 2021 AGM.

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2021 AGM
has any service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The Non-executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term, but they are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company.

The Company has received from each Independent
Non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules of
the Stock Exchange and the Company still considers that all
the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the current Directors of the
Company are set out in the Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management of this annual report.
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CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change
in the information of the Directors of the Company required
to be disclosed since the publication of 2020 interim report
of the Company up to the date of approval of this annual
report is set out below:

Mr YAN Zheng has resigned as the secretary of the Party
Committee of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. from
3 August 2020.

Mr YANG Jingchao has resigned as a director of {2 @& E %
IS AEI A E 4 ABR A A (Fujian Industrial Equity Investment
Fund Company Limited*) and 1224 Bl BRHTER AR
(Fujian Guoteng Information Technology Company Limited*)
from 6 March 2020.

* The relevant English name is only a transliteration of the Chinese name
for referent only.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in the
information of the Directors of the Company required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of the directors who have served on the boards
of directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the
year and up to the date of this report are set out below:

Mr CHEN Yu

Mr CHAN Kwong Yu

Mr WU Xubin

Mr SHIUNG An Tai

Mr ZHANG Yannan

Mr GUO Xiang

Ms CHEN Fen

Mr ZHANG Fan

Mr QIAN Wen Rong

Mr QIU Peng Zhong (Note)

Note: Mr QIU Peng Zhong has been appointed as a director of a subsidiary of
the Company with effect from 12 November 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code in the Listing Rules were as
follows:

HARATE BITRA
2B
EERAEBE Approximate percentage
EEHA EaHE Number of of the issued share capital
Name of Director Nature of interests shares held of the Company
RARBE RN 2158
Long Position in Ordinary Shares of the Company
ZRA [EPN- £
IP Kai Ming Personal interest 865,800 0.14%
B EXFTIREE SN - 72202012 A318 - Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2020, none of
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code; and none of the
Directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

All Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors of
the Company have confirmed that they did not have any
interests in business which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group during the year as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company,
its holding company or any of their respective subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company or an
entity connected with a Director had, directly or indirectly,
a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that,
subject to the Companies Ordinance, every Director and
other officers of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred
by him in the execution and discharge of his duties or in
relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for its Directors
and other officers of the Company and its subsidiaries. The
terms and extent of the coverage are reviewed and renewed
annually.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2020, substantial shareholders and other
persons (other than Directors and Chief Executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, were as follow:

RN
BRITRA
ZBHNESL
Approximate
percentage of

BFERGEE the issued share
Z28 54 Jof Number of capital of the
Name Capacity Notes shares held Company
RERAEBRGD 2 1R
Long Positions in Ordinary Shares of the Company
Samba Limited (“Samba”) EREAA 1 144,885,000 24.26%
Beneficial Owner
BEERAT ([EE]) EREA AR LR 1 355,552,883 59.53%
Vigour Fine Company Limited Beneficial Owner and interest
(“Vigour Fine") of Controlled Corporation
REEREFMEEERR REEE R 2 355,552,883 59.53%
SELTE ([BRIEAEE] ) Interest of Controlled Corporation
Fujian Investment &
Development Group Co., Ltd.
(IIFIDGH)
BRERAEEERR AT BERERA 3 88,150,000 14.76%
([EEE] ) Beneficial Owner
Citychamp Watch & Jewellery
Group Limited (“Citychamp”)
AEERANRF ([392]) RELE R 3 88,150,000 14.76%
Full Day Limited (“Full Day”) Interest of Controlled Corporation
ERERERAR BEalB ARSI EEER 3 91,390,000 15.30%
([fE=EE]) Beneficial Owner and interest
Sincere View International of Controlled Corporation
Limited (“Sincere View")
wEEE ([ERLE]) REEE R 4 91,390,000 15.30%
HON Kwok Lung (“Mr Hon") Interest of Controlled Corporation
MORE ([#Et]) [0 4 91,390,000 15.30%

LAM Suk Ying (“Ms Lam”)

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

Interest of Spouse
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

1. 144,885,000 shares of the Company was held by Samba. Vigour Fine was
the controlling shareholder of Samba and was deemed to be interested
in the 144,885,000 shares of the Company held by Samba. Vigour Fine
also directly held 210,667,883 shares of the Company.

2.  FIDG directly held the entire issued share capital of Vigour Fine and was
deemed to be interested in the 355,552,883 shares of the Company.

3. 88,150,000 shares of the Company was held by Citychamp. Citychamp
was the controlled corporation of each of Sincere View and Full Day
and each of Sincere View and Full Day was deemed to be interested in
the 88,150,000 shares of the Company. Sincere View also directly held
3,240,000 shares of the Company.

4. Mr Hon held the entire issued share capital of Full Day and was the
controlling shareholder of Sincere View, Mr Hon was deemed to be
interested in the 91,390,000 shares of the Company. Ms Lam, the spouse
of Mr Hon, was deemed to be interested in the 91,390,000 shares of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2020, the Company
had not been notified by any person (other than Directors
and Chief Executive of the Company) who had any interest
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s issued shares during
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company had renewed the annual
management agreement with Vigour Fine, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, whereby Vigour Fine agreed
to provide management services to the Company which
included the provision of directors to the Board of Directors
of the Company. A management fee of HK$1,880,000 had
been paid to Vigour Fine during the year.

Save as disclosed above, there was no contract of significant

entered into between the Company and Vigour Fine during
the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS (Continued)

Mr CHEN Yu and Mr YANG Jingchao were deemed to be
interested in the above transaction by virtue of being
directors of Vigour Fine.

Except for the above, there were no other contracts
concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, both the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers combined
and the percentage of revenue from rendering of services
attributable to the Group's five largest customers combined
were less than 30% of the total purchases and total revenue
of the Group respectively.

BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER LOANS

Details of the bank borrowings and loan from the controlling
shareholder of the Group at 31 December 2020 are set out
in Notes 28 and 29 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE INSURANCE
ORDINANCE

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, is subject to the supervision of
the Insurance Authority and is required to comply with the
relevant provision of the Insurance Ordinance in relation to
the amount of gross premium income limit per annum.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020, which
are not required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules
as connected transactions, are disclosed in Notes 17(b),
17(d), 24(a), 36(a), 36(b), 36(c) and 36(d) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Other related party transactions, which also constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are
disclosed in Notes 9, 10(a)(iii) and 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to the term loan and revolving loan facilities
(collectively, the “Loan Facilities”) entered into between the
Company and certain banks in Hong Kong, among other
things, the Company undertakes to procure that there is
no adverse change on FIDG, the controlling shareholder
of the Company, and FIDG shall beneficially own (whether
directly or indirectly) not less than 51% of the issued share
capital of the Company and have the power to exercise
(whether directly or indirectly) management control over
the Company during the terms of the Loan Facilities. Breach
of such undertakings will constitute an event of default and
all amounts (including principal and interest) due and owing
by the Company to the banks under the Loan Facilities shall
become immediately due and payable.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Reference is made to the announcement of the
Company dated 15 November 2019. As disclosed in the
announcement, the public float of the Company had fallen
below the minimum prescribed percentage of 25% as
required under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules since 23
November 2017. The aggregate percentage of shareholding
interests in the issued share capital of the Company held by
the core connected persons of the Company (as defined in
the Listing Rules) (being FIDG, Mr HON Kwok Lung and Mr
IP Kai Ming who is an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company) was approximately 76.31%. Thus, the
percentage of shareholding interests in the issued share
capital of the Company held by public was approximately
23.69% and was below the minimum prescribed percentage
of 25% as required under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 10 July 2020, the public float of the Company was
approximately 25.03% and thus the public float had been
restored and the Company had fulfilled the minimum
public float requirement under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing
Rules. To the best knowledge, information and belief of the
Directors, based on available information, the public float
of the Company maintained at the minimum prescribed
percentage of 25% as required under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the
Listing Rules at the date of issuance of this annual report.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year for charitable
and community purposes amounted to approximately
HK$5,000 (2019: HK$5,000).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 31 to
54 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 have been audited by KPMG who will
retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment
at the 2021 AGM. A resolution to re-appoint KPMG and
to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration will be
proposed at the 2021 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

YAN Zheng
Chairman

HONG KONG, 24 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Min Xin Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 82 to 243, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2020, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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HES . OERNESZE
Accounting for interest in an associate

BRI R IRETE 17 RE 97 2 99 A& i1 E

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 97 to 99.

MR B EIE
The Key Audit Matter

ESEMBEMERRTREMBAR (B
IREEE) 4)8.8543% k1D - MNEELRE MK
WP ASKARREETZE -

The Group’s approximately 8.8543% interest
in Xiamen International Bank and its
subsidiaries (“XIB Group”) is accounted for in .
the consolidated financial statements under

the equity method.

BHE_ZT-_THFF+_A=+—HLFE"
BEEERLEEREE TR EN BB
44,478 B0 EREENEREEERAIKRE
BERLNBE 606,791 ET o LMEERAGE
E_T_EFEEEBERREERTE102%
REBZ_Z_TF+_A=+—HEXKEEZ
BENT72.19% °

The Group's share of the profit after tax from
XIB Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 was approximately HK$444.78 million
and the carrying value of the Group’s interest
in XIB Group was approximately HK$6,067.91
million. This represented approximately
102% of the Group’s profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and
approximately 72.19% of the Group’s total
assets as at 31 December 2020.

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

HIPIR E 5t P2 % FIRHI F)%

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPARFEREREENEEN ST RENETREFERE
IATNRIE

Our audit procedures to assess the accounting for the
interest in XIB Group included the following:

FHL R M S B B E A SR HIRE - BRANBRIENB R
M AREREEZERUEREZENS HBIE
evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key group-wide internal controls and
the consolidation process for equity accounting for the
Group's interest in XIB Group;

EEIREE OSSO E R o S B B AR R AR x4
EATHCR

comparing consolidation and reclassification journal
adjustments in respect of the interest in XIB Group
with relevant underlying documentation;

REEREENHBKEL  ENFEEEEREFEE
MERERAFENRIEET

recalculating the Group’s share of net assets and the
Group’s share of profit for the year with reference to
the financial information of XIB Group;
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Accounting for interest in an associate (Continued)

52 & 5t B IR
The Key Audit Matter

BPSEBE R RERN ST ZEN R
BT FE RHRRNEYEEEGEMBRE
MEATE - URFESIEREBE Y ER T
BN EVEFEIERE IR B H T - R RT A
WMERRBRIREHA AT ENEREE
HURE LR - BN T BEREEG S MWK
H R 8 K85 R ) @B o RUEEEH) R (A
TFREER T M oF R ERHAE MG

eI hnEE RSB B IR E H iR R a0 E e

We identified the accounting for the interest
in XIB Group as a key audit matter because
of its material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and the
complexity and management judgement
involved in the preparation of the financial
information of XIB Group, which increases
the risk of material misstatement in XIB
Group’s consolidated financial statements,
particularly in respect of the assessment
of impairment allowances of loans and
advances to customers and financial assets at
amortised cost of XIB Group. The assessment
of impairment allowances is inherently
subjective and require significant judgement
and estimation which increases the risk of
error or potential management bias.

EREBZRE M BRI P AOEMER - Ha]
BB EREMYESEEERSMBRE
EXEANTE -

Any misstatement in XIB Group’s
consolidated financial statements could
have a consequential material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statement
through the equity method of accounting.

HIPIR E 5t P2 % FIRHI )%

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EREREEAZEED ([EREBDZERED ] ) IRAPTE
HEEEEES  HEREENMBERITRZEN
FaT
instructing the auditors of XIB Group ( “the component
auditors”) to perform a full scope audit of the financial
information of XIB Group in accordance with the Group
Audit Instructions issued by us;

S EMAKE D ZBEDR R AT AIZ T - UHEEEIREE
B0 B 765 KA B ) BB K 8 SRR B R BRLARL K B 0 A BRI
mEZERRHEL &

participating in the component auditors’ risk
assessment process to identify significant risks of
material misstatement of the financial information of
XIB Group and discussing with the component auditors
their responses to address such risks; and

EARRK BB D IR BIAD A am R B AT B RS - WBREN
HERCED D BB TIEER - AT EAER B E BN
B EMBERRETNRTRETRMISE -
discussing with the component auditors their
findings and conclusions with regard to their audit
and evaluating the sufficiency and appropriateness
of the audit evidence for purpose of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements by reviewing the
component auditor’s working papers.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.



% SNEM N B 5Him S M B iR R AIENS
fx (%&)

feEZZEGBBOFET - HFIHETH
LERH ARG HBRRNBARSE
2 AfBRERE R - HPIEZBED
WERHMBLER  BRIPEFIERTA
MARNBELSR  EGRRFELNBER
T REEEHERMBETABEER
ERNBEERREBBELNDRME - M
RETEERETBBEZLER

HARBI ZBMBENETEEEGRAR
FEAM

SR SR
HE BT A

BAEFIR

T B 57
AKFRENE
—E-—F=H-+H

ERVA 2 Gl ES
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Li Ka Lam.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

# 220204 12 H 31 HIEF/  For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
FE BT T JEMEF T
Note HKS’000 HK$’000
WA #a%E Total revenues 5 193,062 152,484
HibEE — 358 Other losses - net 6 (6,085) (11,262)
R EEER Net insurance claims incurred and
BEFERAS commission expenses incurred on
& H insurance business 7 (102,165) (46,028)
THER R Costs of sales = (10,996)
BEFERNEWRT S Write back of impairment loss on loans
B BT 1R ) to customers and interest receivable 23 9,404 6,255
& R 0 SHAK AR Selling and distribution costs - (332)
THEEME A Administrative and other expenses (54,634) (57,070)
=E 5] Operating profit 8 39,582 33,051
ELED®N Finance costs 9 (14,326) (18,645)
RN Share of results of associates 446,931 579,179
RR % A0 % A Profit before taxation 472,187 593,585
FRrigFi sz Income tax expense 11 (36,125) (22,099)
AEE A Profit for the year 436,062 571,486
B E Dividend
RERHS B Final dividend 12 59,726 59,726
B JEN
HK CENTS HK CENTS
BREF Earnings per share
EANEE Basic and diluted 13 73.01 95.69
BERERE Dividend per share
REARR B Final dividend 10 10

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE |NCOME

#2020 12 H 31 H 1L FJ%  For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
BT BT
HKS$’000 HKS’000
AEE A Profit for theyear | . 436,062 | ! 571,486
Hit2EUWEH Other comprehensive income
FTEEFIBEEERR Items that will not be reclassified to
HIER : income statement:
BATEF AEMEEWZ  Equity investments at fair value through
B IR IE & other comprehensive income
Qiﬁﬁﬁi (A 1E38)  Net movement in fair value reserve
FEE (non-recycling) .. (62,342) | (147,074)
HEBESEH»EE Leasehold buildings reclassified to
A investment properties
Tﬂf—i@%iféﬁim Unrealised surplus on revaluation of
BN RER leasehold buildings = 2,747
EFEFT 1S Deferred income tax - (732)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,, = | .....2015
EEE E AR EMEE Share of other comprehensive income
= of associates | (28| 946
. (62,370) | (144,113)
HETKEHFI2EEEFERKX Items that may be reclassified subsequently
WIER : to income statement:
BAFESAEMEEYZE  Equity investments at fair value through
BRI A other comprehensive income
—%Hﬁﬁ*é“ AR RS Released on dilution of interest in
B O] anassociate | 8469 |  —
SNEFTE RS E Exchange translation reserve
HE G NG B A A R B Exchange differences arising on translation
n m E’\Jﬂﬁ%#ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁi of the financial statements of foreign
HITE H =58 subsidiaries and associates 409,034 (117,036)
—REEE N RS EEE Released on dilution of interest in
5 an associate (1,266) —
,,,,,, 407,768 | (117,036)
EREEE NN EMEE Share of other comprehensive income
e ofassociates | (175,449) | 62,534
,,,,,, 240,788 | (54,502)
BINBRRIEBNRFE Other comprehensive income for
Hh 2 E ks the year,netoftax | 178,418 | | (198,615)
AEEZHEWHEERE Total comprehensive income for the year 614,480 372,871
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20204 12 H 31 H455  As at 31 December 2020

2020 2019
FFE BT T BT T
Note HKS’000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
M - MR R Property, plant and equipment 14 25,609 26,499
mEEE Intangible assets 15 270 735
KEYE Investment properties 16 173,113 159,415
Fl =N Associates 17 6,117,020 5,532,229
AT EF AHEMMEEWEE  Financial assets at fair value through
e mMEE other comprehensive income 18 361,001 423,343
BIRBEE Reinsurance assets 22 2,335 1,029
H th e UG BR 30 Other debtors 16,826 15,777
RITEETE Bank balances 25 299,977 506,009
ELEFTEREE Deferred income tax assets 31 170 451
6996321 | 6665487
REBEE Current assets
IEFEEVS R AN Deferred acquisition costs 20 40,440 28,905
1R B JE Ut 2% Insurance receivable 21 63,218 23,025
BREBEE Reinsurance assets 22 5,800 7,947
HEER R EWFB Loans to customers and interest
receivable 23 21,034 20,981
FEW— Bt == A BIfR B Dividend receivable from an associate 4,754 -
Hh BRI - FER K Other debtors, prepayments and
e deposits 28,667 9,310
R AT EN SR EE  Financial assets at amortised cost 19 - 3,115
RATEEBERYIR Financial assets at fair value through
HNEREE profit or loss 24 369,978 97,822
RE RIRITER Cash and bank balances 25 875,652 846,635
1,409,543 | 1,037,740
REBEE Current liabilities
R A4 Insurance contracts 26 65,907 68,554
1R FEAST TR Insurance payable 27 31,135 16,147
Hip e ERR M ERTE R Other creditors and accruals 36,450 33,106
HEBE Lease liabilities 30 65 191
WITER Bank borrowings 28 371,583 60,000
PRSI R B Loan from the controlling shareholder 29 49,958 49,943
FE N HRRE 18 Current income tax payable 28,340 26,284
,,,,,, 583,438 | = 254,225
REEEFE Net currentassets [ | 826,105 | 783,515
BEERRBAERE Total assets less current liabilities 7,822,426 7,449,002

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited




RO BRI &R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20204F 12 H 31 H#%5  As at 31 December 2020

2020 2019
i BT JEIEToT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
kREBEE Non-current liabilities
R & 4 Insurance contracts 26 63,309 19,316
HEBE Lease liabilities 30 - 65
IRITHER Bank borrowings 28 - 199,965
RS R E X Loan from the controlling shareholder 29 99,985 149,943
EEEHAaE Deferred income tax liabilities 31 61,041 36,376
,,,,,, 224,335 | 405,665
EEFEE Net assets 7,598,091 7,043,337
s Equity
f&% 7 Share capital 32(a) 1,715,377 1,715,377
HmFEES Other reserves 1,512,068 1,393,720
REB A Retained profits 4,370,646 3,934,240
AR RREGER Total equity attributable to
pap] shareholders of the Company 7,598,091 7,043,337
BR1E YAN Zheng
E Director
BRF CHEN Yu
E Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

# 220204 12 H 31 HIEF/  For the year ended 31 December 2020

HfREe
Other reserves
e TR HEER )
R RS EfEEE  NERE 153
¥ il 5 (TER) (FUER)  Leasehold fife 48 RFgE
BE ke BEE  BES  Rirvle  Farvalue  buidings  Exchange Tl RERR 45
Share  Statutory General Capital reserve reserve  revaluation translation other  Retained Total
capital reserve reserve reserve  (recycling) ~ (non-recycling) reserve reserve reserves profits equity
ABFr EETn BETn BEFr B¥Fn BT BB BRI BEEr B BET
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'O00  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS$'000
H19E 1A 18 At1 January 2019 1715377 970,646 13233 31154 (7.95) 348484 3192 (27309) 1504672 351771 6731820
REEEH Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - - 571486 571,486
LR Other comprehensive income - - - - S5 (146,128) M5 0sn7) (198615) - (198619)
hE) Dividend - - - - - - - - - (59,726) (59,726)
EIi—FEEDFMER  Share of movementin capitel
fBeg feserve of an associate - - - (168) - - - - (1628) - (1628)
e Transfers - 7285 16,441 - - - - - 89,291 (89,291) -
0195128318 At 31 December 2019 1715377 1,0434% 148674 329526 46,270 2023% 5207 (381809) 1393720 393440 7043337
AT Representing:
WOFRTRE 2019 proposed dividend - - - - - - - - - 59,726 59,726
-t Others 115377 1,04349% 148674 329526 4,210 20235 5207 (381809 1393720 3874514 6983611
R2019E12831A At 31 December 2019 1715377 1,04349% 148674 329526 4,210 202356 5207 (381809 1393720 3934240 7043337
RANEIR1H At1 January 2020 1715377 1,043,496 148,674 329,526 46,270 202,356 5207 (381,809) 1393720 3934240 7043337
KEEER Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - - 436062 436,062
Elziba Other comprehensive income - - - - (128745) (62,370) - 369,533 178,418 - 178418
H’;}E Dividend - - - - - - - - - (59,726)  (59,726)
FRENARAREE  Release ondiution of iterestin
ﬂ%@ anassociate - (101972) (15,757) (30,056) - (237 - - (148,02) 148,022 -
el Transfers - 62,886 25,066 - - - - - 87,952 (87,952) -
R00%127318 At 31 December 2020 1715377 1,004,410 157,983 299,470 (82,475) 139,749 5,207 (12,276) 1,512,068 4370646 7,598,091
BT Representing;
WOERRRS 2020 proposed dividend - 5 - - - - - - - 59,726 59,26
i Others 1715377 1,004,410 157,983 299,470 (82,475) 139,749 5,207 (12,276) 1,512,068 4310920 7,538,365
H0NENANE At 31 December 2020 1715317 1,004,410 157,983 299,470 (82475) 139,749 5,207 (12276) 1,512,088 4370646 7,598,091
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mOIRERNER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#2020 12 H 31 H 1L FJ%  For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
i EBEFT BT T
Note HKs’000 HK$'000
RETFERRESR Y Net cash outflow from
FEE operations 35(a) (251,133) (30,971)
2 A E Interest received 19,790 27,510
ERTAE Interest paid (14,690) (16,739)
B A E Ath 8 ZA AR Other borrowing costs paid 35(b) = (166)
EEANEZAE] Tax paid (11,142) (9,060)
REEBKTHRESARE Net cash outflow from
FE operating activites | (257,175) | (29,426)
REEE Investing activities
BIERBEEERERT Placement of bank deposits pursuant to
MFRZ RITIER insurance regulatory requirements (15,884) (9,322)
(R /IRERERS 2 (Placement)/withdrawal of restricted
IRITIER bank deposits (15,150) 1,118
R’E (R REIER Withdrawal/(placement) of bank deposits
BA=EAZ with original maturity over three
RITIFR months 197,246 (585,012)
ARG ERN Purchase of financial assets at
TREE amortised cost (5,473) -
EOZ A ETEH) Redemption of financial assets at
b & E amortised cost 8,532 -
BEBAYE  MESRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (461) (867)
BEBABTEE Purchase of intangible assets (200) (270)
REZFHELSHRA (FH) Netcashinflow/(outflow) from
FE investing activites | 168,610 | | (594,353)
RMEEEAE SR Net cash outflow before
HEE financing activities (88,565) (623,779)
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mOIREINER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE 20204 12 H 31 HIL4%  For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
it B TFT B F T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
A& EE Financing activities
MR AR RIS E R Loan obtained from the controlling
shareholder 35(b) - 200,000
ERERRRE R Loan repaid to the controlling
shareholder 35(b) (50,000) -
IBIRITER Bank loans obtained 35(b) 171,600 60,000
BBIRITER Bank loans repaid 35(b) (60,000) (200,000)
K EE RS Dividend paid (59,726) (59,726)
HENR Lease payments 35(b) (191) (124)
AMEEEBRER Net cash inflow from
FE financing activites | 1,683 | 150
HEFESZEYERSD Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (86,882) (623,629)
1A1R&FZERER Cash and cash equivalents at
REZEY 1 January 361,594 1,003,425
EREgH s TE Effect of foreign exchange rates changes 44,411 (18,202)
12831 BEFEZRER Cash and cash equivalents at
REZEY 31 December 319,123 361,594
ReRBESEEYMEH Analysis of the balances of cash
i and cash equivalents
HE NIRTTETF Cash and bank balances 25 1,175,629 1,352,644
B BRIR R EEE S Less: Bank deposits placed pursuant
MEMERZIRIT to insurance regulatory
F& requirements 25 (72,966) (57,082)
ARSI ZEBITIFER Restricted bank deposits 25 (252,850) (223,700)
REIEAREB=1EH Bank deposits with original
ZIRITER maturity over three months (530,690) (710,268)
319,123 361,594
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—iREiY

MESEEGRQR ([AR7R]]) REMH
Eow (WA ARE]) TBRE
TRRTS - KRB - MEREARKEER
ié\ o

RABRB—FEBEBEMKIZOHERRD
Al o AR A IE B EE P RALIREE
8IRRERNEN71E - NR A A FE B
R ERLET

RABEEFR/ARR ZEBERZER AT
REE (—FEBFBEMKINBRA
A MEBRERAFRBEEREEE
(—REDEARKMBEKIZOHAR)

REEEB B HRRDMN2021F3 A24H
EEEoETIE -

FEEFEER

RN A M B RREAN TR SR
RN T > BRRBABRAI - LFBER
EFE2HNMEFENERER -

2.1 R B2

AEENGEVBREBREBT LSS
AGBEMNEBHBREER ([F
APBHEEL]) (RSB IEMEER
MENBEEMBGREED  FAEES
ZH ([HEGTEA]) ki ([
Bl)) RBEBARSRAE(AF]
&) 2 SRE MR o AR S K IR
e CEMRA) ZBRABER -

GENERAL INFORMATION

Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively refer to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in financial
services, insurance, property investment and strategic
investment.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its
registered office is 17th Floor, Fairmont House, 8
Cotton Tree Drive, Central, Hong Kong. The Company is
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

The Directors of the Company consider that Vigour
Fine, a limited liability company incorporated in
Hong Kong, is the immediate holding company of
the Company and FIDG, a company established in the
People’s Republic of China, is the ultimate holding
company of the Company.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 24
March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collectively refer to all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(“Ints”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and have been aligned
with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Listing Rules.
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i O BT IR R REEAE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F2E5ECR (18)

2.1 HRHIE%E (18)

BRIATEENMBERAAFEIIRS -
Rig B M BHRRERBE LKA LR
# - BRAFFBHEIIN NI SRR

- BAvEFARMEERENE
BMEE

- BAFEEBEBERIENZRE
EReBRAB (BRETEERT
£2)

- BREDE

FHEMEMNIERBDEE LT EAE MK
EEEREREES A FEIRHEXA
&R 2 BIEE AR

R & BT RE LR BB HREK
FEEAE THEREH G - ETRE
BEETRAARES S BORBIETIT
EEFIE - BAUFHTRREBEEE
WERBRIMAEBAAMEL - BER
BRAEB RN FAE -

BRAE T B {F M aT R A BB T E
7] o BIERI R EXIERT IR - &ath
ATEVERT R ZIERT IRRER © KX E
I EAH R ARG HE - ARE
I EIA R ARG T IR R -

BhBEHE RS EEEIE R
HF RER AV RRBEABRRMA
ATEVELES - AEREE I IEE -

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

- financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

- financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss

- investment properties

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
and repossessed assets are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with the HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, actual results may differ from those
estimates.

Estimates and judgement made by management are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity or where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F2E5ECR (18)

2.2 BEIKESE

Z’K;'E( ET}T{M—F@J%/;&@E‘I»EWQ'%%&EE
B R Rl S ERIMERT

ERIEBGTER BEANTE
F1RNED
SEHERIE 855

EREBMBRE XBNTE
R 357

BRI BB BHmE FEREENRS
ZERIZE 957
BEA G LR
E39H EHE
B s S 22 R
B 75

2018 FEH B E R BSAHER

ERA R AR R R EAHE R IR $ AR &
BN AR SGR E HIRE O AR Sl e 2 51 1
REENMBERREEATE -

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

The Group has adopted the following new standards
and amendments to standards issued by the HKICPA:

Amendments to

Amendments to

Amendments to

HKAS 39 and

Definition of Material

Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018

None of the adoption has had a material effect on
how the Group'’s results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or

presented.
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i O BT IR R REEAE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EIEES

F2E5ECR (18)
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Up to the date of issuance of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number
of new standards and amendments to standards which
are not yet effective for the accounting year ended
31 December 2020 and which have not been early
adopted in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:

- HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

- Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-Current

- Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment:
HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended

Use

- Amendments to Onerous Contracts - Cost of
HKAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract

- Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual
HKFRS 3 Framework

- Amendment to Covid-19-Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions

- Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark

HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, Reform - Phase 2
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16

- Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F2E5ECR (18)

2.2 SFHECREE (18)

- 2018—2020 B A BT B EYER
B E B

5% B IE FHE V56 8 A 3% 3
AMETHHBHRNEE  RAREY
BHRERTERARIDREELCETZE -

ARG EPBRELEHZ12A31BXK
R RENBRARNPEREREAEE
FE(EBE A N RIHAERS o

(a) BB DRIEIEARIE 2

MEAREAREHEREEFENE
B (BRERIEER) - EXAKEAAK
EREA2EARERMG 2 Z DR
MR SR - WEEEBEELEEN
BARERER®R  AAEEYZER
AREHE - ReHEARERLHHED
B EEE (NEEREMRTHT s
BH) BEEMERN -

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

- Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 - 2020 Cycle

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these new standards and
amendments to standards is expected to be in the
period of initial application, it is impracticable to
quantify the effect as at the date of issuance of these
consolidated financial statements.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries and the Group’s interests in associates
made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.
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i O BT IR R REEAE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F2E5ECR (18)

(a) FfBRSINIEZRIERS (18)

i 2 7 ek R BRI A B R E
AL LB B L R A BB R
PR E - B A AR EEE B
eI AT C R
REVA K BIRFARE — 2 -

AEBAWBEAEREHAHFHIA
A7 - WM B AR ERRERE
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TSN A FESE  EEHER
ERAREBE S AEENERNEES
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AR MR R KB 1] o

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control
commenced until the date that control ceases.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed,
where necessary, in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The Group uses the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at fair value at the date of acquisition. For
each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
identifiable net assets.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
changes in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F2E5ECR (18)

(a) FfBRSIMKIEZRIERS (18)
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (Note 2.10) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate (Note 2.3(b)). In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in respect of
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement or
transferred directly to retained profits when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised profits but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F2E5ECR (18)

(a) FfBRSINIEZRIERS (18)
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the shareholders of the
Company.

Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with
Notes 2.19 or 2.20 depending on the nature of the
liability.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment losses (Note 2.12(b)), unless the
investments are classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale)
(Note 2.16). The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F2E5ECR (18)
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless they are classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale) (Note 2.16). Under the equity method, the
investments are initially recognised at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair value of the investees’ identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investments (if any). The cost of the
investments include purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investments, and
any direct investment into the associates that forms
part of the Group’s equity investments. Thereafter,
the investments are adjusted for the post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the investees’ net
assets and any impairment losses relating to the
investments (Notes 2.4 and 2.12(b)). The consolidated
income statement includes the acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The accounting policies of the investees have been
aligned, where necessary, in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interests
in an associate, the Group’s interests are reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's
interests in an associate are the carrying amount of the
investments under the equity method together with
the Group's long-term interests that in substance form
part of the Group's net investments in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the investees, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred,
in which case they are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (Note 2.10). In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in respect of that investee are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)

When the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the interest reduced
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in the consolidated income statement. In
addition, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income relating to that reduction
in ownership interest is reclassified to consolidated
income statement where appropriate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 2.12(b)), unless they are
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale) (Note 2.16). The
results of associates are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

2.4 Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(ii) the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is

recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement as a gain on a bargain purchase.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (Note 2.12(b)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year,
any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the gains or losses on
disposal.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment, including leasehold
land and land use rights held for own use, are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
assets.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with that asset will
flow to the Group and the cost of that asset can be
measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance
costs are expensed in the income statement during the
period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined by comparing the net sale proceeds with
the carrying amount and is recognised in the income
statement on the date of retirement or disposal.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, over their estimated useful lives
at the following annual rates:

(a) Straight line method

Leasehold land and Over the unexpired term of
land use rights held the lease
for own use

Buildings held for Over the shorter of the
own use unexpired term of the lease
and 30 years

Computer equipment  20% - 50%

(b) Reducing balance method

Furniture, fixtures and  10% - 20%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20% - 25%

An asset’s residual value and useful life are reviewed,
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. An
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.12(b)).
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Intangible assets

Intangible assets which comprise software are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
assets.

Costs associated with maintaining computer system
are expensed in the income statement during the
period in which they are incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3
to 4 years.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of intangible asset is determined by comparing
the net sale proceeds with the carrying amount and
is recognised in the income statement on the date of
retirement or disposal.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset are reviewed, and adjusted,
if appropriate, at each reporting date. An intangible
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the intangible asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (Note 2.12(b)).

2.7 Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(Note 2.8(a)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, and are not occupied by the companies
within the Group. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Investment properties [Continued)

Investment properties are measured initially at their
costs, including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value. Fair value is based on active market prices and
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less
active markets or discounted cash flow projections.
Investment property that is being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment property, or for which
the market has become less active, continues to be
measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the period
in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair value and gain or loss on disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income
statement as part of “Other gains/(losses) — net”.

When a property held for own use is reclassified to
investment property following a change in its use,
any difference arising at the date of reclassification
between the carrying amount of the property held for
own use immediately prior to the reclassification and
the fair value as a result of revaluation is recognised as
below:
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Investment properties [Continued)

(@) If the carrying amount of the property is increased
as a result of the revaluation, the increase shall be
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the leasehold
buildings revaluation reserve; and

(b) If the carrying amount of the property is
decreased as a result of the revaluation, the
decrease shall be recognised in the income
statement.

On subsequent disposal of the investment property,
the revaluation surplus recognised in the leasehold
buildings revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as a property held for own use and its
fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its
deemed cost for subsequent accounting in accordance
with Note 2.5.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the
use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from that use.

(a) As alessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
For the Group, the low-value assets are typically
office equipment. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Leases (Continued)

(a) As alessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (Note 2.5 and
2.12(b)), except for the right-of-use assets that meet
the definition of investment property are carried at fair
value in accordance with Note 2.7.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or a rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment property in “Property,
plant and equipment” and presents lease liabilities
separately in the statement of financial position.
The current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting date.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Leases (Continued)

(b) As alessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying asset to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with Note
2.26(b).

2.9 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are collateral assets taken by the
Group through court proceedings or voluntary delivery
of possession by the borrowers.

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at fair
value, and the related outstanding loans and interest
receivable together with the related impairment
allowances are derecognised from the consolidated
statement of financial position. Repossessed assets are
not depreciated or amortised.

Repossessed assets are subsequently measured at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. When the fair value less costs to sell is lower
than the carrying amount of a repossessed asset, an
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

When a repossessed asset is disposed of, the difference

between the net sale proceeds and the carrying
amount is recognised in the income statement.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments

(a) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and loans to customers are initially
recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets (including regular-way purchases and sales of
financial assets) and financial liabilities are initially
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) or financial liability
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

(b) Classification

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
measured at (i) amortised cost, (ii) fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or (iii) fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL").

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to
their initial recognition unless the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on
the first day of the first reporting period following the
change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Classification (Continued)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVPL. This includes all derivative
financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI as measured at FVPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Classification (Continued)

(il  Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of
the business model in which a financial asset is held at
a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the
business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio
and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy
focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to
the duration of any related liabilities or expected
cash outflows or realising cash flows through the
sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated
and reported to the Group’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the
business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks
are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated
- e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual
cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of
financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales
activity. However, information about sales activity
is not considered in isolation, but as part of an
overall assessment of how the Group’s stated
objective for managing the financial assets is
achieved and how cash flows are realised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Classification (Continued)

(il  Business model assessment [Continued)

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in
transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with
the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are
managed and whose performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis are measured at FVPL.

(i) Assessment whether contractual cash flows are
solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is
defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. “Interest” is defined as consideration
for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are
solely payments of principal and interest, the Group
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would
not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount
or timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon
rate, including variable-rate features;
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Classification (Continued)

lii] Assessment whether contractual cash flows
are solely payments of principal and interest
(Continued]

- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows
from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features);
and

- features that modify consideration of the time
value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest
rates).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely
payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid
amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at
a discount or premium to its contractual par amount,
a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an
amount that substantially represents the contractual
par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual
interest (which may also include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination) is treated as
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of
the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Classification (Continued)

liii] Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVPL: These assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The amortised cost
is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI: These assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI: These assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and are
never reclassified to profit or loss.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Classification (Continued)

liv] Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent
measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVPL. A financial liability is classified
as measured at FVPL if it is classified as held-for-
trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVPL
are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit
or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or
loss.

(c) Derecognition

(il  Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers
assets recognised in its statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)
(c) Derecognition (Continued)

(il  Financial assets [Continued)

In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor
transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset and it retains control
over the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement,
determined by the extent to which it is exposed to
changes in the value of the transferred asset. Any
interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for
derecognition that is created or retained by the Group
is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset
derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any
new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss.

Any cumulative gain/loss recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of equity investment
securities designated as measured at FVOCI is not
recognised in profit or loss on derecognition of such
securities.

(ii]  Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in which
case a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference
between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in
profit or loss.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(d) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only
when permitted under HKFRSs, or for gains and losses
arising from a group of similar transactions such as in
the Group’s trading activity.

(e) Fair value measurement

“Fair value” is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Group has
access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects
its non-performance risk.

When one is available, the Group measures the fair
value of an instrument using the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded
as “active” if transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide
pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the
Group uses valuation techniques that maximise the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique
incorporates all of the factors that market participants
would take into account in pricing a transaction.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument
on initial recognition is normally the transaction price —
i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received.
If the Group determines that the fair value on initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair
value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a
valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are
judged to be insignificant in relation to the measurement,
then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair
value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair
value on initial recognition and the transaction price.
Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss
on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but
no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by
observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid
price and an ask price, then the Group measures assets
and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and
short positions at an ask price.

Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are exposed to market risk and credit risk that
are managed by the Group on the basis of the net
exposure to either market or credit risk are measured
on the basis of a price that would be received to sell
a net long position (or paid to transfer a net short
position) for the particular risk exposure. Portfolio-level
adjustments - e.g. bid-ask adjustment or credit risk
adjustments that reflect the measurement on the basis
of the net exposure — are allocated to the individual
assets and liabilities on the basis of the relative risk
adjustment of each of the individual instruments in the
portfolio.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand
feature is not less than the amount payable on
demand, discounted from the first date on which the
amount could be required to be paid.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the
fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

2.11 Hedge Accounting

The Group does not adopt hedge accounting for
derivatives which may qualify as eligible cash flow
hedges or fair value hedges.

2.12 Impairment
(a) Non-derivative financial assets

(il  Financial instruments

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECLs") on:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including debt investments, loans to customers
and interest receivable, insurance receivable,
reinsurance assets, other debtors, cash and bank
balances); and

- debt investments measured at FVOCI.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which
are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which
credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument)
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

(il Financial instruments (Continued)

The Group considers a debt security to have low credit
risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to the
globally understood definition of “investment grade”.

While cash and bank balances are also subject to the
ECL assessment, the identified loss allowance was
immaterial.

Loss allowances for insurance receivable, reinsurance
assets and other debtors are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For loans to customers, interest receivable and all other
financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.

ZEZFF3R Annual Report 2020

119



120

444

i O BT IR R REEAE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EIEES

F2E5ECR (18)

2.12 Iﬁfﬁ (m§ )
[a] 3'511]':15@?'&“!: (mg)
lii) GERIBEZIEN

F\Iﬁmi REEMNEERRBEVHER
&= BEEMERAEEHEEES
1B KEI%EEE B E R
KB NTAESNEEASEER - &8
ERBEASEEBALR - MIBEETE

LATEEE S MESHEEMEENE
K3 ©
KL EERR B REIRELRE

IENEs - LEZERTINEES
- ANIHREERINASHAE

- @%ﬂlﬂﬁ’ﬂ?l\%ﬁiﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&
(1nA) HIRERTEMEE
1t

- EBARERALRERNIAY
WEEBL K&

- BAREANRE - 5 LR
RERBEE( - HEBABT
EHARENEBOENELE
ATFIHE -

BFeMEENTE - REHNRESE
EFEEERRALGREZEN - ZAEE

+.£HEB¢ TREERBAZFEEMR
@R (B ELIOR - (EE R R AR
HMmRL) E170E -

EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

(ii] ~ Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’'s
historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial assets are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status, credit risk ratings and collateral types.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

(ii] ~ Significant increase in credit risk [Continued]

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or

- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

(iii] Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from
default events that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the
financial assets.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial assets’ credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss.

(iv] Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial
asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being
more than 90 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the borrower;
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

liv] Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

- it is probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

lv] Basis of calculation of interest income on
credit-impaired financial assets

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note
2.26(a) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest income
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

lvi] Presentation of allowance for ECL in the
statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowances are

charged to profit or loss and are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)
lvii] Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off when the Group has no reasonable expectation of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group individually makes an assessment
with respect to the timing and amount of write-off
based on whether there is a reasonable expectation
of recovery. The Group expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Group'’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(b) Other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is an indication that a non-financial asset is
impaired. Assets that have an indefinite useful life
or have not yet available for use are not subject to
amortisation and are at least tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

If any such indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for a non-financial asset is
required, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Impairment (Continued)

(b) Other non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement for the amount by which the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to
sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Previously recognised impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed in subsequent periods. Previously
recognised impairment losses on other assets are
reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of an asset, however not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any amortisation or depreciation), had no
impairment loss been recognised against the asset in
prior periods. Reversal of impairment loss is credited to
the income statement in the period in which it arises.

(c) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (Notes 2.12(a) and 2.12(b)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Insurance contracts classification
The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer
significant insurance risk. The Group defines significant
insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay
benefits on the occurrence of an insured event that
are at least 10% more than the benefits payable if the
insured event did not occur.

2.14 Insurance contracts

(a) Classification

Insurance contracts are classified depending on the
duration of risk and whether or not the terms and
conditions are fixed.

Short-term insurance contracts issued by the Group
are casualty and property insurance contracts.

Casualty insurance contracts protect the Group’s
customers against the risk of financial loss arising
from causing harm to third parties as a result of their
legitimate activities. Damages covered include both
contractual and non-contractual events. The typical
protection offered is designed for employers who
become legally liable to pay compensation to injured
employees (employers’ liability) and for individual
and business customers who become liable to pay
compensation to a third party for bodily harm or
property damage (public liability).

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate
the Group’s customers for damage suffered to
their properties or for the value of property lost.
Customers who undertake commercial activities on
their premises could also receive compensation for
the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use the
insured properties in their business activities (business
interruption cover).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(a) Classification (Continued)

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged
to the income statement as incurred based on the
estimated liability for compensation owed to contract
holders or third parties damaged by the contract
holders. They include direct and indirect claims
settlement costs and arise from events that have
occurred up to the reporting date even if they have
not yet been reported to the Group. The Group does
not discount its liabilities for unpaid claims. Liabilities
for unpaid claims are estimated using the input of
assessments for individual cases reported to the Group
and statistical analyses for the claims incurred but
not reported, and to estimate the expected ultimate
costs of more complex claims that may be affected by
external factors (such as court decisions).

(b) Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary
with and are related to securing new contracts and
renewing existing contracts are capitalised as an asset,
DAC. All other costs are recognised as expenses when
incurred. The DAC is subsequently amortised over the
life of the contracts as premium is earned.

(c) Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract
liabilities net of related DAC assets. In performing these
tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and administration expenses
are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to
the income statement initially by writing off DAC and
subsequently by establishing a provision for losses
arising from liability adequacy tests (the unexpired risk
provision). Any DAC written off as a result of this test
cannot subsequently be reinstated.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(d) Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers
under which the Group is compensated for losses on
one or more contracts issued by the Group and that
meet the classification requirements for insurance
contracts in Note 2.13 are classified as reinsurance
contracts held. Contracts that do not meet these
classification requirements are classified as financial
assets. Insurance contracts entered into by the Group
under which the contract holder is another insurer
(inwards reinsurance) are included as “Insurance
contracts” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under
its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as
reinsurance assets. These assets consist of short-
term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer
term receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related
reinsurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsurance contracts
and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance
contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums
payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised
as an expense over the terms of reinsurance contracts
and are included as “Insurance payable” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for
impairment on a regular basis. If there is objective
evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance
asset to its recoverable amount and recognises
that impairment loss in the consolidated income
statement. The Group gathers the objective evidence
that a reinsurance asset is impaired and calculates the
impairment losses using the same processes adopted
as described in Note 2.12(a).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(e) Receivables and payables related to
insurance contracts

Receivables and payables are recognised when due.
These include amounts due to and from agents,
brokers and insurance contract holders.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount of the insurance receivable to its recoverable
amount and recognises that impairment loss in the
consolidated income statement. The Group gathers
the objective evidence that an insurance receivable is
impaired and calculates the impairment losses using
the same processes adopted as described in Note
2.12(a).

(f) Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

Some insurance contracts permit the Group to sell
(usually damaged) property acquired in settling a
claim (salvage). The Group may also have the right to
pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs
(subrogation).

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability
for claims, and salvage property is recognised in other
assets when the liability is settled. The allowance is
the amount that can reasonably be recovered from the
disposal of the property.

Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability
for claims and are recognised in other assets when
the liability is settled. The allowance is the amount
assessed that can be recovered from the action against
the liable third party.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated on specific identification basis as
appropriate and comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is based on the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of the expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

2.16 Non-current assets (or disposal groups)
held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if the carrying amount is recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through a continuing use and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for sale in its present condition.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.16 Non-current assets (or disposal groups)
held for sale (Continued)

Immediately before the initial classification as held
for sale, the carrying amounts of the non-current
assets (and all individual assets and liabilities in the
disposal group) shall be measured in accordance
with applicable HKFRSs. Then, on initial classification
as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below),
or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Deferred tax assets, financial assets (other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates), insurance
contracts and investment properties, even if held for
sale, would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in Note 2.

As long as a non-current asset is classified as held
for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.

If a non-current asset previously classified as held for
sale, or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale no longer met the recognition criteria
stated above, the Group measures that asset at the
lower of its carrying amount before that asset was
classified as held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation,
amortisation or revaluation that would have been
recognised had that asset not been classified as held
for sale, and its recoverable amount at the date of the
subsequent decision not to sell.

The Group includes any required adjustment to the
carrying amount of a non-current asset that ceases to
be classified as held for sale in income from continuing
operations at the date of the subsequent decision not
to sell.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.17 Other debtors

Other debtors are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
effective interest method, less impairment losses, if
any.

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks
and in hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash
investments with original maturity of three months or
less from the date of investment less bank overdrafts.

2.19 Financial liabilities - Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial liability,
including fees and commissions paid to the borrowers.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liabilities for at least twelve months
after the reporting date.

2.20 Financial liabilities - Creditors and
payables

Creditors and payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Where there are
a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow of economic benefits
with respect to any one item included in the same class
of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed,
for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow of
economic benefits occurs so that the outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain events not wholly within the control of
the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When
the inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains or losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at closing
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities, such as equity instruments
measured at FVPL, are reported as part of the fair value
gains or losses in the income statement. Translation
differences on non-monetary items, such as equity
investments measured at FVOCI, are included in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

- assets and liabilities in their statement of financial
position are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

- income and expenses in their income statement
are translated at average exchange rates,
unless these average exchange rates are not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing at the transaction
dates. In such case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investments in foreign operations are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is partially disposed
of or sold, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.24 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case they are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the assets can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.24 Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

Where investment property is carried at its fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2.7, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of that investment property at its carrying value at
the reporting date unless that investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in that investment
property over time, rather than through sale. In all
other cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.24 Income tax (Continued)

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

2.25 Share capital

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.26 Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services
or the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases
in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods and services.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where
the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. The Group takes
advantage of the practical expedient in HKFRS 15
and does not adjust the consideration for any effects
of a significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue recognition
policies are as follows:

(a) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying amount of the assets.
For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the assets.



fn ORI IR R RERE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F2E5ECR (18)

2.26 WA WESR (88)
(b) IREMEHRSUHA

BRIFAEARKRUENEEGERHESR
EERAMEMNEREN > ZREXHEEZHE
TWARZHEMAMRENFIUNEER
DEIRNEER AR - EXMEEHHEMN
W) REN R R a R NER S HE
EFUGARENAR D - TMRIEER
S ERm A HEHEN TN RN S5
B A TER A

(c] BRRUXA

P B A A s R IR R TR ) R N 456 i <2
Ry T IARERR o

(d) RERER

RERER A O ERE AR B ERK
)\ o

B WROR B 7 AR B8 12 H ) A A A
B - RENEMHIANC WEE 2 W AR
mAERE BN D REI SRS
REEME - REAMRMAE A2 BERT
BE o

BREAONERERREBHAES
MBRRES - EREREE HEKE
ERAMRNERPRYBEFEREMR
FHELEEE -

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Rental income from investment properties

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in the income statement in equal
installments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in the income statement as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

(c) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established.

(d) Insurance contracts

Gross premiums from the sale of short-term insurance
contracts are recorded when written.

Earned premiums are recognised as revenue
proportionally over the period of coverage. The portion
of premium received on in-force contracts that relates
to unexpired risks at the reporting date is reported as
the unearned premium liability. Premiums are shown
before deduction of commission.

Gross premiums from reinsurance contracts reflect
reinsurance business accepted during the reporting
period. Gross premiums include an estimate for
premiums receivable of the current period and
adjustments to estimates of premiums receivable in
previous years at the end of the reporting period.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(e) Sales of motor vehicles

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
control of and accepts the motor vehicles.

(f) Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
income on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred.

2.27 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement
in the period in which they are incurred, except to
the extent that they are capitalised as being directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceased when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or completed.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.28 Employee benefits

(a) Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and annual bonuses are paid or accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. When payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(b) Retirement benefit costs

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. These pension plans
are defined contribution schemes which the Group
pays fixed contributions and has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee services rendered in the current
and prior periods.

The Group’s contributions are recognised as employee
benefits expense when they are due and are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in future payments is available.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.28 Employee benefits [Continued)

(c) Employee’s leave entitlements

Employee’s entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Employee’s entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to either terminating the employment of
current employees according to a detailed formal plan
or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy without
realistic possibility of withdrawal. Benefits falling due
more than twelve months after the reporting date are
discounted to present value.

2.29 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in these consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.29 Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products or
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.

2.30 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the shareholders of the
Company is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and

the Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved for distribution.

2.31 Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a related party is a person or entity that is

related to the Group.

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.31 Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(M

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

one entity is an associate or a joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or a joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in Note 2.31(a).

a person identified in Note 2.31(a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.



fn ORI IR R RERE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R S 5t{E 5 RAER

T 5l BA 75 SR S - B IR MR ER IR
EHEEAERR - IS A MBRREZ
EXNFAMBRREBNEE - BE -
WARSH - fAEtIRERNERINREE
1% JE ) H i PO s A R B IR IR IR A
BEMANE &5 R AKE IS
AR EEBTE °

fRETFIH T &R ARG - WIRIBBTE
KaMEBER (BRAERRBRTE
EREEMNHRREMFHTER) E1TY
B - AEBRE Rt ARG %R
REFCDIEHBEERJZMG - AHES
BEEEEH @ AHFEPBHRRIEQF
b S RS2 B B A ISR M SE 4R

EARART—_EAARAKEEHEENE
{8 8RR E 1 B AT B R B e i 5 AT

BRERE AR AT e

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
concerning the future that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in these
consolidated financial statements. The application of
assumptions and estimates means that any changes
of them, either due to changes of management’s
judgement or the evolvement of the actual
circumstances, would cause the Group’s financial
position and results to differ.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Group believes that the assumptions and estimates
that have been made in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are appropriate and
that these consolidated financial statements therefore
present fairly the Group’s financial position and results
in all material respects.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next twelve
months are discussed below.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Estimate of fair value of investment
properties

The best evidence of fair value of investment
properties held by the Group is current prices in an
active market for similar lease or other contracts. In the
absence of such information, the Group determines
the amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making this judgement, the Group
considers information including current prices in
an active market for properties of different nature,
condition or location (or subject to different lease or
other contracts) adjusted to reflect those differences,
or recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the transactions
that occurred at those prices. As at 31 December 2020,
the fair value of the Group's investment properties was
approximately HK$173.11 million (Note 16).

3.2 Investmentin XIB

The Company holds approximately 8.8543%
shareholding in XIB. The Company considered that it
has the ability to exercise significant influence over the
financial and operating policy decisions of XIB through
its two representatives on the board of directors
of XIB as well as the participation in policy-making
processes through the representations in committees
set up by the board of directors of XIB even though
the Company holds less than 20% of the voting power
of XIB. Accordingly, the Company considers that
XIB will continue to be classified as an associate of
the Company and the Company'’s interest in XIB will
continue to be accounted for using equity method in
accordance with the HKFRSs (Note 17).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Casualty and property insurance contract
liabilities

For casualty and property insurance contracts,
estimates have to be made for both the expected
ultimate costs of claims reported at the reporting date
and the expected ultimate costs of claims incurred but
not reported (“IBNR”) at the reporting date. It may take
a significant period of time before the ultimate costs of
claims can be established with certainty and for some
type of policies, IBNR claims form the majority of the
insurance liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The ultimate costs of outstanding
claims are estimated by using a range of standard
actuarial claims projection techniques, such as the
Bornhuetter-Ferguson (“BF”) method.

The main assumption underlying these techniques
is that past claims development experience can be
used to project future claims development and hence
ultimate costs of claims. As such, these methods
extrapolate the development of paid and incurred
losses, average cost per claim and claim numbers
based on the observed development of earlier years
and expected loss ratios. Historical claims development
is mainly analysed by accident year, as well as by
significant business lines and claim types. Large claims
are usually separately addressed, either by being
reserved at the face value based on loss adjustors’
estimates or separately projected in order to reflect
their future development. The assumptions used are
those implicit in the historical claims development
data on which the projections are based. Additional
qualitative judgement is used to assess the extent to
which past trends may not apply in future (for example
to reflect one-off occurrence, changes in external or
market factors such as public attitudes of claiming,
economic conditions, levels of claims inflation, judicial
decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors
such as portfolio mix, policy conditions and claims
handling procedures), so as to arrive at the estimated
ultimate costs of claims that present the likely outcome
from the range of possible outcomes, taking into
account all of the uncertainties involved.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 Currentincome tax and deferred income
tax

The Group is subject to income tax in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the amounts of the provision for
income tax and the timing of the payment of the
related income tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the provisions for current
income tax and deferred income tax in the period in
which such determination is made. As at 31 December
2020, the Group had deferred income tax liabilities of
approximately HK$61.04 million (Note 31). The deferred
income tax liabilities will increase or decrease by
approximately HK$4.64 million if the actual applicable
tax rate differs by 1%.

3.5 Critical accounting estimates and
judgement of an associated financial
institution

The Group’s major associated financial institution,
XIB Group, is principally conducted banking business
in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau (Note 17).
The management of XIB Group has prepared a set
of consolidated financial statements for the Group's
reporting purposes. In preparing its consolidated
financial statements, the accounting policies of
XIB Group have been aligned, where necessary, in
the consolidated financial statements to ensure
consistency with those accounting policies adopted
by the Group. Certain critical accounting estimates
and judgement have been applied by XIB Group as
described below:
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

3.5 Critical accounting estimates and
judgement of an associated financial
institution (Continued)

(a) Classification of financial assets

The classification of financial assets is based on two
criteria: the business model for managing the financial
assets and whether the financial assets’ contractual
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. The
management of XIB Group has made an assessment of
the objective of the business model in which an asset
is held at a portfolio level because this best reflected
the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The assessment of whether
the contractual cash flows on financial assets are solely
comprised of principal and interest was made based on
the facts and circumstances as at the initial recognition
of the assets. In assessing whether the contractual cash
flows are solely payments of principal and interest,
XIB Group considered the contractual terms of the
financial asset. This included assessing whether the
financial asset contained a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition.

(b) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are not
quoted in active markets are determined by XIB Group
using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used
include market comparison approach and discounted
cash flows analysis and models. To the extent practical,
models use only observable data, however areas such
as weighted average cost of capital, credit risks (both
own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations
require management of XIB Group to make estimates.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect reported fair values of financial instruments.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

3.5 Critical accounting estimates and
judgement of an associated financial
institution (Continued)

(c) Impairment allowances on loans and
advances

XIB Group adopts ECL model for measurement of
impairment allowances on loans and advances. ECLs
are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
It will no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur
before an impairment loss is recognised under ECL
model. Therefore it may result in earlier recognition of
credit losses as either 12-month ECLs or lifetime ECLs
on XIB Group’s loans and advances depending on the
facts and circumstances. When determining whether
the credit risk of a loan and advance has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, XIB Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, based on
XIB Group’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to XIB Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that XIB Group expects to receive)
which are discounted at the effective interest rate of
the individual loan and advance. The methodology
and assumptions used in assessing the credit risk and
determining whether a loan and advance is credit-
impaired and the amount of ECLs recognised are
reviewed at each reporting date. Any change in the
amount of ECL is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

3.5 Critical accounting estimates and
judgement of an associated financial
institution (Continued)

(d) Estimation of impairment allowance on
goodwill

XIB Group has recognised a consolidated goodwill
on acquisition of approximately 64.31% shareholding
in CYB at the date of acquisition based on the costs
of acquisition and the fair value of identifiable net
assets of CYB. In assessing the impairment of the
consolidated goodwill, the recoverable amount
of CYB cash-generating units is determined based
on the value in use calculation. The value in use
calculation requires XIB Group to estimate the future
cash flow projections of CYB cash-generating units
based on financial budgets covering judgement and
assumptions made by senior management and the
pre-tax discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Based on the impairment assessment performed
by XIB Group on such consolidated goodwill at 31
December 2020, no impairment loss was recognised.
However, as key assumptions on which management
of XIB Group has made in respect of future cash flow
projections are subject to change, an adverse change
in the assumptions could cause the carrying amount to
exceed its recoverable amount.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors

The Group’s business activities expose it to a variety
of insurance risk and financial risks including market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. This note
summarises the Group'’s exposure to these risks, as well
as its objectives, policies and processes for managing
and the methods used to measure these risks.

The Group’s investment policy is to prudently invest
its funds in a manner which satisfies the Group’s
liquidity requirements and generates optimal returns
to the Group within a manageable risk level. The
Group’s overall risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
performance.

The Board, representing the interest of shareholders,
is the highest decision making authority of the
Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board has adopted procedures
for evaluating and approving significant investment
decisions. Given the nature of the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities, their risk exposures are monitored
by the Group primarily on a qualitative basis.

The General Manager Meeting comprises the
General Manager (“GM”) and senior management
of the Company, is responsible for managing the
Group’s various types of risks, approving detailed
risk management policies, and approving material
risk exposures or transactions within its authority
delegated by the Board.

The Group has put in place an internal control system,
including establishment of the Group’s organisation
structure that sets adequately clear lines of authority
and responsibility for monitoring compliance with
policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines
also provide sufficient independence of the control
functions from the business areas, as well as adequate
segregation of duties throughout the organisation
which helps to promote appropriate internal control
environment.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.
This section summarises these risks and the way the
Group manages such risks.

The risks under any one insurance contract are the
possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claims. By
the very nature of an insurance contract, these risks are
random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory
of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning,
the principal risk that the Group faces under its
insurance contracts is that the amount of the actual
claims exceed the carrying amount of the insurance
liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or
severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual numbers and
amounts of claims will vary from year to year from the
level established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of
similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative
variability about the expected outcome will be. In
addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be
affected across the board by a change in any subset of
the portfolio.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of
risk diversification in terms of type and amount of risk,
geographical location and type of industry covered.

(il  Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are the increasing
level of awards for the damage suffered and the
increase in number of cases coming to court that were
inactive or latent for a long period of time. Estimated
inflation is also a significant factor due to the long
period typically equired to settle these cases.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

lil  Frequency and severity of claims [Continued)

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting
strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and claims
handling.

The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that
the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of
type and amount of risk, industry and geographical
location.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate
risk selection criteria. For example, the Group has the
right to re-price, cancel or not to renew a contract, it
can impose deductibles and it has the right to reject
the payment of fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts
also entitle the Group to pursue third parties for
payment of some or all costs (subrogation). Unless the
legislation requires, the Group's strategy limits the total
exposure of any individual policy to a certain amount.

The reinsurance arrangements include facultative,
proportional treaties and excess of loss coverage. The
effect of such reinsurance arrangements is that the
Group should not suffer total net insurance losses more
than the prescribed amount. In addition to the overall
reinsurance program, additional reinsurance protection
for any individual risk will be arranged when necessary.

The concentration of insurance risk before and after
reinsurance by territory in relation to type of insurance
accepted is summarised below, with reference to the
carrying amounts of the insurance liabilities (gross and
net of reinsurance) arising from insurance contracts:
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Insurance and financial risk factors

(Continued)

Insurance risk (Continued)

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)

2020
-
FEET BYESR

JRE  General Property Hith meE
Motor liability = damage Others Total
BYEFT BEFT BETT BT EEFn
HK$’000  HKS'000  HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000

5 Gross
Eﬁéj Hong Kong 18,074 15,817 5,498 21,567 60,956
g Macau 7,910 1,190 57,636 1,524 68,260
RIBETME £ Total insurance liabilities, gross 25984 17,007 63,134 23,091 129,216

T Net
%.5/% Hong Kong 17,391 1,808 - 36,547 55,746
AP Macau 7,503 - - 57,832 65,335
REBETHEE ) FBZE  Total insurance liabilities, net 24,894 1,808 - 94,379 121,081
2019
—f
FEET UWEX

738 General  Property Hi 1aEE
Motor liability =~ damage Others Total
BT EEFrT BETFT BEFT EEFT
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000

et Gross
B Hong Kong 15,358 13,492 1,960 871 31,681
o Macau 9,032 781 44,512 1,864 56,189
RIETHE  £5  Total insurance liabilities, gross 24,390 14,273 46,472 2,735 87,870

FE Net

BB Hong Kong 13,410 12,363 1,751 605 28,129
RPY Macau 8,380 693 40,017 1,675 50,765
R EF4ME - F8  Total insurance liabilities, net 21,790 13,056 41,768 2,280 78,894
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

lii]  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future
claims payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claim-
occurrence basis. The Group is liable for all insured
events that occurred during the term of the contract
even if the loss is discovered after the end of the
contract term. As a result, liability claims are settled
over a long period of time and a larger element of
claims provision relates to incurred but not reported
claims. There are several variables that affect the
amounts and timing of cash flows from these contracts.
These mainly relate to the inherent risks by individual
contract holders and the risk management procedures
adopted. The compensation paid on these contracts
is the monetary awards granted for bodily injury
suffered. Such awards are lump-sum payments that are
calculated as the present value of the lost of earnings
and rehabilitation expenses that the injured party will
incur as a result of the accident.

The estimated costs of claims include direct expenses
to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Group
takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has
appropriate information regarding its claims exposures.
However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims
provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove
to be different from the original liabilities established.
The liabilities for these contracts comprise provisions
for IBNR, provisions for reported claims not yet paid
and provisions for unexpired risks at the reporting
date.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

lii]  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future
claims payments [Continued)

In calculating the estimated costs of unpaid claims (both
reported and not reported), the Group’s estimation
techniques are a combination of loss-ratio-based
estimates (where the loss ratio is defined as the ratio
between the ultimate costs of insurance claims and
insurance premiums earned in a particular financial year
in relation to such claims) and estimates based upon
actual claims experience using predetermined formulae
where greater weight is given to actual claims experience
as time passes.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a
greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation
of the costs of settling claims already notified to the
Group, where information about the claim event is
available. In estimating the amounts of IBNR which
make reasonable provisions for the claims and the
unexpired risks, it is necessary to project future costs
of claims and associated claims expenses and simulate
the outcomes of claims liabilities using models. These
models are simplified representation of many legal,
social and economic forces and may not be entirely
appropriate for the types of insurance business being
analysed. It is certain that actual future claims and
claims expenses will not develop exactly as projected
and may vary significantly from the projections.

In estimating the liabilities for the costs of
reported claims not yet paid the Group considers
any information available from loss adjusters and
information on the costs of settling claims with similar
characteristics in previous periods. Large claims
are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected
separately in order to allow for the possible distortive
effect of their development and incidence on the rest
of the portfolio.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

lii]  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future
claims payments [Continued)

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques
to estimate the required level of provisions. This
provides a greater understanding of the trends
inherent in the experience being projected. The
projections given by the various methodologies also
assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes.
The most appropriate estimation technique is selected
taking into account the characteristics of the business
class and the extent of the development of each
accident year.

liii]  Process used to decide on assumptions

The Group uses several statistical methods to
incorporate the various assumptions made in order
to estimate the ultimate costs of claims. The choice
of selected results for each accident year of each
class of business depends on an assessment of the
technique that has been most appropriate to observed
historical developments. In certain instances, different
techniques or combination of techniques have been
selected for individual accident year or group of
accident years within the same class of business.

In estimating the claims liabilities of the Group’s
motor, employees’ compensation and property
damage insurance portfolio, the paid and incurred loss
development methods supplemented by BF method
are applied. For other classes of insurance portfolio, the
incurred loss development method is used to project
the claims liabilities.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

liii)  Process used to decide on assumptions
(Continued]

The paid and incurred loss development methods
are used to project the ultimate costs of the claims,
and the BF method relies on a gradual transition
from an estimated loss ratio to an experience-rated
development. BF method is applied to the more recent
accident years, for which the paid and incurred loss
development methods may yield less accurate results.

liv] Sensitivity analysis - sensitivity of insurance
claims development tables

The reasonableness of the estimation process is tested
by an analysis of sensitivity around different scenarios.
The change in the monetary awards granted for bodily
injury suffered and also the employers’ liabilities
claims are the most critical to the assumptions used to
estimate the liabilities for these insurance contracts.

The Group believes that the liabilities for these claims
carried at the reporting date are adequate. However,
an increase of 10% in the costs of these claims would
require the recognition of an additional loss of
approximately HK$5.4 million (2019: approximately
HK$3.2 million) net of reinsurance.

The impact on the profit before taxation described
above does not take into account of changes in other
variables, as they are considered to be less material.
Such an assessment and the relative materiality of
individual variable may change in the future.

In addition to scenario testing, the development of
insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Group’s
ability to estimate the ultimate costs of claims. The
table below illustrates how the Group’s estimate of net
claims outstanding of the Group’s motor, employees’
compensation and property damage insurance
portfolio for each accident year has changed at
successive reporting dates.
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L RIENEFREEIR (88) 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
41 RIBKMFERMAR (&) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)
(a) RIBZRER (£&) (a) Insurance risk (Continued)
liv] 8REDIT — REREEZRIE liv] Sensitivity analysis - sensitivity of insurance
REHRZ (& claims development tables [Continued]
JTEREE Motor insurance
EHEE Accident year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 #% Total

BETT ERTT BETT EETT BETL | BETR
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 | HK$'000

B RREER A Estimate of ultimate costs of claims

RERER atend of accident year 10,067 16,561 9,269 7,931 8,355

—E% one year later 7,468 11,578 15,306 6,804

—ER® two years later 7,819 18,675 15,632

=Fi% three years later 9,579 21,094

mE% four years later 9,168

SHILE 2 25182 Current estimate of cumulative claims 9,168 21,094 15,632 6,804 8,355 61,053
RLEHHT Cumulative payment to date (8,642)  (18413)  (13,039) (2,790) (1,586) | (44,470)

526 2,681 2,593 4,014 6,769 16,583
2016FERZEM  Liabilities in respect of prior years
before 2016 225

16,808

162 {5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iv] Sensitivity analysis - sensitivity of insurance

claims development tables [Continued)

ETIRE Employees’ compensation insurance
ENEE Accident year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 % Total
BEFT  EEFT AEEFT EETT BETT | BETR
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 | HK$'000
EEt R ERA  Estimate of ultimate costs of claims
RERFE atend of accident year 8,981 19,720 4375 2,243 5,548
—E% one year later 6,225 4365 4,775 1,866
—ERB two years later 11,761 7,879 4,571
=Fi% three years later 14,247 5,841
ImEf four years later 13,225
SHILE 7 251822 Current estimate of cumulative claims 13,225 5,841 4,571 1,866 5,548 31,051
ZEEHNT Cumulative payment to date (12,620) (5,036) (4,471) (294) (230) | (22,651)
605 805 100 1,572 5318 8,400
016FEFZEME  Liabilities in respect of prior years
before 2016 867
9,267
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

AEBAETREMRBER L — X5
B DIRER o REBIAS BT A D
B R ABAKEEETKEE —BR
BN EENPAEREEME —BRR
R - AEETEERBRIRANES
FTEHER -

EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

liv] 8REDIT — REREEZRIE liv] Sensitivity analysis - sensitivity of insurance
REHZE (&) claims development tables (Continued)
BY1E R R Property damage insurance
EHEE Accident year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 4 Total
BETr BETT BETr BT BRI | BEFR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 | HK$’000
fEetSIRBEERA  Estimate of ultimate costs of claims
REHEER atend of accident year 301 9,375 4,263 5,234 7,099
—&f one year later 236 7,875 4,977 1372
“Fi two years later 249 8,132 4,361
=FE three years later 249 7.875
MEfE four years later 249
SHIfEEt 2 25185 Current estimate of cumulative claims 249 7,875 4,361 1372 7,099 | 20,956
-5 EOE Cumulative payment to date (249) (7,875) (4,263) (613) (130) | (13,130)
- - 98 759 6,969 7,826
016FEF2EE  Liabilities in respect of prior years
before 2016 -
7,826

The Group has in place a series of effective reinsurance
covers on a number of short-term insurance products.
The placement of reinsurance is diversified such that
the Group is neither dependent on a single reinsurer
nor are the operations of the Group substantially
dependent upon any single reinsurance contract. The
Group also considers the long-established business

relationship with the reinsurers.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iv] Sensitivity analysis - sensitivity of insurance
claims development tables [Continued)

The Group has also limited its exposure to a certain
level by use of reinsurance arrangements in order
to limit exposure to catastrophic events, such as
earthquakes and flood damages. The purpose of these
underwriting and reinsurance strategies is to limit
the exposure to catastrophes to a pre-determined
maximum amount based on the Group’s risk appetite.
For a single realistic catastrophic event, the maximum
exposure is less than 5% of the shareholders’ equity of
the wholly-owned subsidiary, Min Xin Insurance, on a
net basis.

(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss that results from
movements in market rates and prices. The risk
includes potential losses arising from changes in
foreign exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices and
commodity prices.

The Group’s risk management objective is to enhance
shareholders’ value by maintaining risk exposures
within acceptable limits. The Group’s control of market
risk is based on restricting individual operation
to invest within a list of permissible instruments
authorised by the Board to ensure all risks arising
are thoroughly identified, properly measured and
adequately controlled.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(il Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to adverse
movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments denominated in foreign currencies. The
Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Macau and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from recognised assets and liabilities and
net investments in foreign operations measured in
Renminbi (“RMB”).

In respect of receivables, payables and cash balances
held in currencies other than the functional currency of
the operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level,
by buying and selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

The Group’s borrowings are in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loans. Given this,
management does not expect that there will be any
significant currency risk associated with the Group's
borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from recognised assets
and liabilities measured in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entities to which they relate
at the reporting date:

2020 2019
AR¥F T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

WAFEFAEMAEE  Financial assets at fair value through
W TR E E other comprehensive income 303,745 378,492
A FE IR X Other debtors 7,234 3,182
NE NRITER Cash and bank balances 123,646 135,925
HMENBER N EZTE R Other creditors and accruals (6,540) (6,816)
FE A~ AR HRFH 18 Current income tax payable (20,929) (20,929)
407,156 489,854

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(il  Foreign exchange risk [Continued]

The following table indicates the approximate changes
in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
profits, and other components of equity in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange
rates to which the Group has significant exposure at
the reporting date:

2020 2019
EX HBRHELENR HERAM EX  HEREENR gz \Hfm
LR/ (TH) RERNNEE AaSs0¥E A/ (TH) RIEANFE ERdraye
Increase/ Effect on Effect on Increase/ Effect on Effect on
(decrease) in profit after other (decrease) in profit after other
foreign  taxationand  components foreign taxation and components
exchange rate retained profits of equity  exchangerate  retained profits of equity
=5/ BETT BRI A7 BEFIT BEFT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 % HKS'000 HK$'000
ARE Renminbi 5 6,145 18,050 5 6,228 21,167
(5) (6,145) (18,050) (5) (6,228) (21,167)

FHlBRE SN BREREFHENE
HABENEREREET T AEE
BFAEMER T A ZINERE ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ\
S (FFRIEFIR) BlgEiF g

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rate had
occurred and had been applied to remeasure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
to foreign exchange risk at the reporting date, and that
all other variables, in particular interest rate, remained
constant.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(il  Foreign exchange risk [Continued]

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the next
reporting date. In this respect, it is assumed that the
pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollars and the
United States dollars would be materially unaffected
by any changes in movement in value of the United
States dollars against other currencies. Results of the
analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the effects on profit after taxation
and equity of each of the Group’s entities measured
in the respective functional currencies, translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the
reporting date for presentation purposes. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2019.

The Group is also exposed to foreign exchange
risk from its investments in investees which are in
Renminbi.

(ii]  Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk on investments held
by the Group classified in the consolidated statement
of financial position as financial assets at amortised
cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income
or at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss comprise listed equity investments,
listed and unlisted investment funds and principal-
guaranteed structured bank deposits. Decisions
to buy or sell these investments are based on the
performance of individual investment compared to
that of the index, expected return and the Group'’s
liquidity needs. Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income comprise listed equity
investments. These investments have been chosen
based on their long term growth potential and
are monitored regularly for performance against
expectation.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(ii]  Price risk [Continued]

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that if the
quoted prices of unlisted investment funds increased
or decreased by 5%, with all other variables held
constant, would increase or decrease the Group’s profit
after taxation and retained profits by approximately
HK$2.06 million (2019: approximately HK$4.07 million).

The following table indicates the approximate changes
in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
profits, and other components of equity in response
to reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock
market index for listed investments to which the Group
has significant exposure at the reporting date:

2020 2019
REERSE HHEHZENR HEmHM AREREH HERRENR B
LR/ (TH) RERNNEE AaBs0¥E A/ (TH) RIEFNFE ERHraye
Increase/ Effect on Effect Increase/ Effect on Effect
(decrease) profit after on other (decrease) profit after on other
intherelevant  taxationand  components in the relevant taxation and components
risk variance retained profits of equity risk variance  retained profits of equity
=5/ BETT BRI A7 BEFIT BEFT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 % HKS'000 HK$'000
LWEEZ  Stockmarketindex
HBRT  inrespectof listed
RE investments
EEEY Hang Seng Index 5 479 - 5 732 -
(5) (479) = (5) (732) -
HiE5A%E Shanghai Composite
Index 5 - 17,767 5 - 21,281
(5) - (17,767) (5) - (21,281)
MmEER  Nasdag Composite 5 - - 5 121 -
GEIEE Index (5) - - (5) (121) -
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(ii]  Price risk [Continued]

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the reasonably possible changes in the
stock market index had occurred and had been applied
to the exposure to equity price risk in existence at the
reporting date. It is also assumed that the fair values
of the Group’s equity investments would change in
accordance with the historical correlation with the
relevant stock market index and that all other variables
remained constant. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible
changes in the relevant stock market index over the
period until the next reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2019.

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is
the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group’s interest bearing assets and liabilities
mainly comprise bank deposits, bank borrowings
and loan from the controlling shareholder, bore in
fixed or floating rates, which expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk
respectively. The Group manages these risks primarily
through maintaining the maturity profile of these
assets and liabilities within a short to medium period
and monitoring the market interest rate movements so
that the Group can react accordingly when there are
adverse interest rate movements.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks
(Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate changes
in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
profits in response to reasonably possible changes in
interest rates with all other variables held constant
for bank deposits, bank borrowings and loan from the
controlling shareholder at the reporting date:

|ITER Bank deposits
WRITER Bank borrowings
ERIREET  Loan from the controlling shareholder

FHRESTEREFNEEHEIRE

WMABEREHEAEBERERARFE

REBMNEeMTE 2 FERR - £

S TFHI100EES AEREEHES N —

EEEE2HE FHRFREIRHEET

%“@mﬁﬁomwimﬁﬁﬁmﬁ%
HEHETT -

2020 2019
HRBEENR HFRMIR R A K
RERFNTE RERNNOTE

Effect on Effect on

FI RSB profit after R B profit after
Changein taxation and Changein  taxationand
interest rates retained profits  interest rates retained profits
25 BEFT ZE BEFT

Basis points HK$’000 Basis points HKS'000
100 5,434 100 7,393

(100) 5,434 (100) (7,393)

100 (2,966) 100 (2,075)

(100) 2,966 (100) 2,075

100 (940) 100 (1,343)

(100) 940 (100) 1,343

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the changes in interest rates had
occurred and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for financial instruments with variable
interest rates held by the Group at the reporting date.
The 100 basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
changes in interest rates over the period until the next
reporting date. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2019.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(c) Creditrisk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk
that a customer or counterparty will be unable to
or unwilling to fulfill its repayment obligations for
amounts due to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
is primarily attributable to loans to customers and
interest receivable, insurance related receivables and
other receivables.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer
and therefore significant concentrations of credit
risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers.

In respect of the insurance related receivables and
other receivables, the Group limits its exposure
to credit risk by screening the counterparties, on-
going monitoring and acquiring collateral from
counterparties. These receivables are required to meet
the Group’s established financial requirements and
the Group will obtain third party guarantees when it
considered necessary.

The Group has recognised impairment allowances at
amounts equal to lifetime ECLs for loans to customers
and interest receivable. At 31 December 2020, the
Group's impairment allowances on loans to customers
and interest receivable were HK$254.39 million (2019:
HK$252.16 million) and impairment allowances to
loans to customers and interest receivable ratio was
92.36% (2019: 92.32%).

At 31 December 2020, bank balances were placed with
reputable financial institutions with diversification.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date without taking into account of any
collateral held or other credit enhancement is the
net carrying amount of the financial assets stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position. A
summary of the maximum exposure is as follows:

2020 2019
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HKS’000

B AN =AY Financial assets at amortised cost
TRIEE - 3,115
1R B2 JiE U 7% Insurance receivable 63,218 23,025
BREEE Reinsurance assets 8,135 8,976
ZEEER N EWT S Loans to customers and interest receivable 21,034 20,981
HAth FE AR 3R Other debtors 41,439 23,577
Re RFITHET Cash and bank balances 1,175,629 1,352,644
1,309,455 1,432,318

EHRAEBRBREVREERRANE—
*%ﬁz?ﬁ)&‘zﬁg%#}%ﬁm mEFERK
FEWF BEE R — S EIRIEES
ReEfE23 -

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from insurance
receivable are set out in Note 21 and that arising from
loans to customers and interest receivable are set out
in Note 23.

ZEZFF3R Annual Report 2020

173



174

444

i O BT IR R REEAE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIS RREIR (18)

4.1 RBKRVBRERKRAR (&)

(d) RENEERR

nBETRERIEERAENHEERSR
EFZIRENRR - EFHLRRHE
TRBNRATERELIEEFES
REMIBRAFEREREELE X5
BFREBETEVENRTHRREL
BIAMR P RIS AT -

AEENBRASEREZERDESS
ZREENEER G  BERAEEE
FRANNREFEE TARERNAEE
E M EERIFNTBERBIRGEH
MAEREERE  AERNEEPHERE

AEBEETZBYEEERATREAR
SEETE BRESBKZBHRE
ERETUENERREFR -

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter
difficulty in meeting its cash flow needs or
commitments. Liquidity risk may result from either
inability to raise new funds, sell financial assets quickly
at their fair value, a counterparty failing on repayment
of a contractual obligation or an insurance liability
falling due for payment earlier than expected.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash, readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from reputable financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

Individual operating entity within the Group is
responsible for its own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands.
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4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturity value at the reporting date of the Group’s
reinsurance assets and financial liabilities which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using

2 =R BEFE contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

2020 2019
} iz 557
BHATE £1ER B ERER
FEREE  E-Em (8 RikE  EEA (815
Tt HZEX  EERE) Tt FEEX  BERE)
BHEE  contractual  Withinone  In the second BEE  contractual Withinone  In the second
Carrying  undiscounted yearor  tofifthyear Carrying  undiscounted yearor — tofifthyear
amount cashflow  on demand inclusive amount cashflow — ondemand inclusive
BEFr  BETn EBEFn BETR| BT BETn BT R
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000

(3 Assets

BlRBREE Reinsurance assets 8,135 8,135 5,800 233 8976 8976 7947 1029

af Liabilities

Rl Insurance contracts 129216 129216 65,907 63,309 87870 87810 68554 19316

RIBREMH Insurance payable 31,135 31,135 31,135 - 16,147 16,147 16,147 -

ElEHEZREEE  Other creditors and accruals 36,450 36,450 36,450 - 33,106 33,106 33,106 -

BESR Lease liabilties 65 65 65 - 256 263 198 65

BT Bank horrowings 371,583 374,452 374,452 - 259,965 272856 66,721 206,135

ERRRER Loan from the controlling

shareholder 149,943 154,058 52,985 101,073 199,886 215,066 57,683 157,383
718392 75376 560,9% 164,382 597,30 625,308 12409 382,899
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution

The financial risks exposure and management
objectives and policies of the Group’s associated
financial institution, XIB Group, are summarised as
below:

(il  Overview

The activities of XIB Group expose it to a variety of
financial risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk and interest rate risk). XIB Group continuously
identifies, evaluates and monitors these risks. XIB
Group’s aim is to achieve an appropriate balance
between risk and return and minimise potential
adverse effects on its financial performance.

The board of directors of XIB Group (“XIB Board”)
provides strategy for overall risk management.
Its senior management establishes related risk
management policies and procedures under the
strategy approved by the XIB Board, including written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
financial instruments. Those risk management
policies and procedures are implemented by various
departments after XIB Board’s approval. In addition,
its Internal Audit Department is responsible for the
independent review of risk management and control
environment.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(i}  Credit risk

Credit risk is one of the main risks that XIB Group faces
in its operations which arises primarily from loans
and advances, investment portfolios, trade finance,
guarantees and other payment acceptance.

The credit approval policies and procedures of
XIB Group are standardised. Credit rating, risk
measurement, economic capital, various post-lending
management, indicator control, collective assessment,
risk warning and risk reporting are measures for
managing credit risk.

liii]  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that XIB Group has to
ensure the availability of adequate funds to meet
its needs to funding deposit withdrawals and other
liabilities as they fall due, as well as being able to
meet its obligations to funding loan originations
and commitments and to take advantage of new
investment opportunities.

XIB Group has set up a series of liquidity indices to

assess and monitor its liquidity risk and reviewed such
indices on a timely basis.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(iv] Market risk

XIB Group’s market risk arises from open positions in
the trading book and banking book in interest rate,
foreign exchange rate, equities and commodities. The
trading book consists of financial instruments and
commodities that are free of any restrictive covenants
on their tradability and held with trading intent, and
in order to or for the purpose of hedging market risk
of the trading book. The banking book consists of
financial instruments not included in the trading book
(including those financial instruments purchased with
surplus funds and managed in the investment book).

XIB Group has established a structural system of limit
controls including regulatory limits, position limits
and risk limits to identify, monitor and control market
risk. XIB Group performs sensitivity analysis on a
regular basis to assess the interest rate risk and foreign
exchange risk of its trading book and banking book.

— Foreign exchange risk

XIB Group conducts the majority of its business
in Renminbi with other transactions in foreign
currencies, therefore XIB Group is exposed to the
fluctuations in the prevailing foreign exchange rates
on its financial position and cash flows. XIB Group
manages its exposure to foreign exchange risk through
management of its net foreign currency position.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

liv] Market risk (Continued)
— Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that XIB Group’s assets,
liabilities, revenue and economic value would suffer
losses or have the risk of contingent losses due to
fluctuations of interest rates and changes of interest
rates structure. The re-pricing risk, the primary and
most common interest rate risk, arises from the
difference between maturity terms (for fixed interest
rates) or between the re-pricing terms (for floating
interest rates) of XIB Group’s assets, liabilities and off
balance sheet commitments. Cash flow interest rate
risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates.

XIB Group mainly manages its exposure to the interest
rate risk arising from fluctuations in the prevailing
market interest rates on re-pricing, fair value and cash
flows. XIB Group’s business in Mainland China operates
under the interest rate scheme regulated by the
People’s Bank of China. XIB Group controls its interest
rate risk primarily through controlling the distribution
of the maturity date or re-pricing date of loans and
deposits and the asset-liability re-pricing gap.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders of
the Company and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by
total net assets. Total borrowings comprise all bank
borrowings and loan from the controlling shareholder
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Total net assets comprise all components of
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

During 2020, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2019, was to maintain the gearing
ratio at a healthy level of 30% or below. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders
of the Company, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio of the Group at 31 December 2020

WERBELERMT - and 2019 were as follows:
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEE=E Total borrowings 521,526 459,851
BEFE Total net assets 7,598,091 7,043,337
EARBELER Gearing ratio 6.9% 6.5%

ERBELR EFATERE2020F12 A
31 A REEAERERIL N (FEFE 28
. 29) BB -

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

The increase in the gearing ratio resulted primarily
from the increase in total borrowings outstanding at
31 December 2020 (Note 28 and 29).
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management (Continued)
(@) Capital risk management of Min Xin Insurance

The capital requirements of Min Xin Insurance, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, are mainly
set and regulated by the Insurance Authority and these
requirements are put in place to ensure sufficient
solvency margins. Min Xin Insurance is required to
maintain the value of its assets to be greater than the
aggregate amount of its liabilities and the relevant
amount within the meaning of Section 10 of the
Insurance Ordinance. Min Xin Insurance is also required
to maintain assets in Hong Kong with an amount that is
not less than the aggregate of a prescribed percentage
of its liabilities arising from Hong Kong insurance
business and the relevant amount determined
in accordance with Section 25A of the Insurance
Ordinance.

In addition, the Macau Branch of Min Xin Insurance
is required by the Macau Insurance Ordinance to set
up technical reserves and to maintain a margin of
solvency sufficient to meet the liabilities arising from
its activities in Macau. The technical reserves shall
be guaranteed by equivalent and congruent assets
located in Macau, unless authorised by Autoridade
Monetaria De Macau to utilise overseas assets.

Min Xin Insurance also maintains a healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business objectives and
maximise shareholder’s value. Min Xin Insurance may
adjust the dividend paid to the Company or issue new
shares to the Company to fulfill these requirements.

Min Xin Insurance manages its capital requirements
by assessing any shortfalls between the reported
and required relevant amounts on a regular basis.
Min Xin Insurance fully complied with the externally
imposed requirements of the Insurance Authority and
Autoridade Monetaria De Macau during the reported
financial periods.
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MIEEMENEEER -

EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

(b) Capital risk management of associated financial
institution

XIB Group’s objectives when managing capital are: (i)
to comply with the capital requirements set by the
regulators of the markets where the entities within
XIB Group operate; (ii) to safeguard the ability to
continue as a going concern so that it can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders; and (iii) to maintain a strong capital base
to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and regulatory capital are monitored
by XIB Group’s management, employing techniques
based on the guidelines developed by China Banking
and Insurance Regulatory Commission, for supervisory
purposes.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments
(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature,
and are made as of a specific point in time based on
the characteristics of the financial instruments and
relevant market information. The Group measures fair
values using the following hierarchy of methods:

- Level 1: fair value measured using only
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical instruments at the measurement date.

- Level 2: fair value measured using inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category
includes instruments valued using: quoted market
prices in active markets for similar instruments;
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments
in markets that are considered less than active; or
other valuation techniques where all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data.

- Level 3: fair value measured using inputs that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs). This category includes
all instruments where the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable data
and the unobservable inputs have a significant
effect on the instrument’s valuation. This
category includes instruments that are valued
based on quoted prices for similar instruments
where significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

(@) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as listed equity securities measured at
FVPL and FVOCI and listed investment funds measured
at FVPL) is based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These financial instruments are included in Level
1 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of unlisted investment funds is measured
at quoted price provided by the fund administrators or
published by the fund management companies. Such
quoted prices represent the net asset value per share
of the investment funds which are derived from the fair
value of the underlying assets and securities measured
using value or price provided by independent verifiable
pricing sources. The Group adopted the quoted prices
of the funds as their fair value at the reporting date
and these financial instruments are included in Level 2
of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of fixed-term and principal-guaranteed
structured bank deposits placed with certain banks in
Mainland China were approximate to their respective
aggregate of principal plus expected interest income
at the reporting date and these financial instruments
are included in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

During the year there was no transfer of financial
instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy, or transfer of financial instruments into
or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

The following table presents the carrying value
of financial instruments held by the Group at the
reporting date measured at fair value across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy, with the fair value of
each financial instrument categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
that fair value measurement:
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RN REIREIR (58) 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
43 ERTERYFE (88) 4.3 Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)
(@) ARaFEIEMeMIT A (8) (@) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)
2020 2019
£-50 ECER 258 aE 225 FCEf EZER %
Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total
BEFT  BETT  BEIT BEFT | BEEIT BETT EEFr BEFT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS$'000
EEUNATETE  Recurring fair value
measurement
BE Assets
BATESAZR  Financial assets at fair value
2EWENSE  through other comprehensive
BE income 361,001 - - 361,001 423,343 - - 423,343
BATEEBERIE Financial assets at fair value
HeREAE through profit or loss 9,617 360,361 - 369,978 17,020 80,802 - 97,822
370,618 360,361 - 730,979 440,363 80,802 - 521,165

(b) FEARFEIENSETAERF
{=!

HEBHRATENTREE - BUK
HERRERE (08) RENFKAERE
EBENRETEERAFEMES - ERAEN
ANHEEASEBUSM T ARG R
BMSMEFRRKEHRSRIELA

Aty

E_o

BETAIHIE RS ER G - WREBTE
REBMEMRZETHE  BRERR
BRTHERGENH RRKEMHNE

Al o

SEERRAKENEREEREREE
MAFEOHESRERZHRAMNER
(EIE

(b) Fair value of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

The carrying value of financial assets at amortised cost,
trade receivables less impairment losses (if any) and
trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair
value. The fair value of financial liabilities is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

In the Directors’ opinion, the fair values of financial

assets and financial liabilities of the Group approximate
their carrying values at the reporting date.
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5 WARDZBER 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
RERNARNEZHEIWALT : The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised during the year is as follows:
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
WmEREFEE Net earned insurance premiums
ERBRA Gross insurance premiums 160,862 89,815
KRB Movement in unearned insurance premiums (19,872) (14,289)
BRESHKBR Reinsurance premiums ceded and
% A G R m 2R reinsurers’ share of movement in
IREEE) unearned insurance premiums (14,089) (7,887)
,,,,,, 126,901 | 67,639
ZEERFEIWA () Interest income from loans to customers (a) 4,460 5,266
"EYERSIWA Rental income from investment properties 8,671 8,623
BRAFEFAEAMMEE  Dividend income from financial assets
WamEemEERE at fair value through other
A comprehensive income 10,054 7,714
B HERA Sales of motor vehicles = 11,045
,,,,,,, 23,185 | 32,648
H A Other revenues
RITF R BUWA Interest income from bank deposits 38,183 46,819
REEXN AT EDN Interest income from financial assets at
TREENSHA amortised cost 49 101
WAV EEBEZYEER Dividend income from financial assets
SEVEERBEIA at fair value through profit or loss 2,091 2,294
BT i A Government grants 2,438 2,625
A Others 215 358
,,,,,,, 42,976 | 52,197
PNt Total revenues 193,062 152,484
(@ MNFA - ®P %ﬁ?ﬁ(ﬂ BIWABE (@) The interest income from loans to customers for
A EEREREFERZAEK the year included an interest income accrued
A & 13,443,000 7T (20194 : /& for credit-impaired loans to customers of
# 3,861,000 JT) © HK$3,443,000 (2019: HKS$3,861,000).

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)

The Group identifies its operating segments based on
the reports reviewed internally by the chief operating
decision-makers which include the Board, the Executive
Committee and the General Manager Meeting that are
used to make strategic decisions, allocate resources
and assess performance.

The reports to the chief operating decision-makers are
analysed on the basis of business entities, investments
held and investees. For business entities and
investments held, operating performance evaluation
and resources allocation are based on individual
business activity operated and investment held by
the Group. For investees, operating performance
evaluation is based on individual investee of the
Group.

The Group has the following reportable operating
segments:

- Financial services: this segment includes the
engagement of banking business through the
Group’s major associate, XIB Group in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau respectively, and
the provision of micro credit business in Mainland
China.

- Insurance: this segment includes the general
insurance business in Hong Kong and Macau.

- Property investment: this segment includes the
leasing of high quality office space in Mainland
China.

- Strategic investment: this segment represents the
Huaneng A-Shares held by the Group.

- Others: this segment includes results of

operations not directly identified under other
reportable segments and corporate activities.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s chief operating decision-makers monitor
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenues derived from customers, products and
services directly identifiable with individual segment
are reported directly under respective segments. All
direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped
under respective segments. Indirect costs and support
functions’ costs related to the strategic decision
making and day-to-day management of the business
of the Group and corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to other segments, products
and services are grouped under Others. Transactions
between segments are priced based on similar terms
offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-
segment income and expenses are eliminated on
consolidation. The measure used for reporting segment
profit is “profit for the year”, i.e. profit after taxation
of the business entities, net income generated from
investments held and share of results of investees.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible and
current assets held by the business entities, net book
value of investments held and share of net assets of
and loans to investees. Segment liabilities include
insurance liabilities, creditors and accruals, income
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities attributable
to respective segments and borrowings managed
directly by the segments or directly related to those
segments. An asset and a liability are grouped under
same segment if the liability is collateralised by the
asset. Dividend payable to Shareholders is treated as
unallocated liabilities in reporting segment assets and
liabilities.
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WARDSBER (18)

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

(Continued)
(a) NEXE EELERE (£8) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)
) ) HEER: AR
SR Rk nERE RHRE i Tradingin Inter-segment &
Financial services Insurance Property investment ~ Strategic investment Others motor vehicles* elimination Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
BETR | BET | BRI | BEFT| BEFL | BETL | BETR | BRI | BEFL | BEFL| BRTR | BETr| BETn | BEr| BEFL | AETL
HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS'000 |  HKS000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000| HKS'000 | HKSOO0 | HKS$'000 | HKSO00 | HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS$'000 | HKS000
BZ12A31  Yearended
LEE 31 December
BA Revenue
?ﬁﬁ,ﬁ RE Net eamed insurance
5 premiums - - 126901 | 67639 - - - - - - - - - -| 126901 | 67639
ZEEY Interest income from
gl [oans to customers 4460 | 5266 - - - - - - - - - - - - 4460 5266
BRI Rentalincome - S| oager|  4em9| 3810 3w - - - - - - - -|osem| 83
TRERA Dividend income 2 - - - - - 10084 | 7 - - - - - | 10084 | 7
A Other revenues 2,233 3850 | 5507 342 3 %N - - 35233 4490 - 3 - -l R916 | 5197
6,693 9116 | 137,269 | 75560| 3,813 40341 10,054 T4l 35,233 | 44980 - 35 - -| 193,062 | 141439
EEEEEEE Disagoregated by
EBZ158  timingof evenue
BUAED  recogniton under
HA% HKFRS 15
BEE Paint ntime - - - - - - - - - - - s 2 - - s
ER Over time - - - - - - - - - - - - s - s -
- - - - - - - - s - - s o - s
EEP Revenue fom external
WA customers 6,693 9116 | 137,269 | 75560| 3,813 40341 10,054 T4l 35,233 | 44980 - 11,080 - -| 193,062 | 152484
E08 Inter-segments - - 27 M 290 00 - S| 3339|354 - -l 896 40) - -
2NN Reportablesegmentrevenue| 6,693 9116 | 137,536 | 75773 4103 42541 10,054 T4 38572 | 48574 -1 1080 (3,896)) (4027)| 193,062 | 152484
i (E8)/ Other losses)lgains
WE-F8  -net (26,990) S| 6693 | (4503 2570 | (3369) - -l onea | (339 - - - -1 (6,085)f (11200
ZEETREN Write back of mpaiment
FISEESBE  lossonloansto customers
am and interest receivable 9404| 625 - - - - - - - - - - - -l 9404|6255
BERY Operating expenses B3| (3453)) (123139)) (68252 (1,317)| (1.%31) - - (33,045)f (33813 - M3 3815 3951 (156,799)| (114426)
€237 /(E®) Operating profitfloss) | (14006)| 11918 | 21,090 | 3018 5356 [ (64)| 10,054 | 774 12369 | 11367 S 6| 3982 305
qﬁﬁm Finance costs (5805 (013 e (9 - - - - | 60 - - g6 01| (432[ (18643)
EIEBENT  Shareof resultsof
22 assoclates 444781 | 575167 - - - - - -1 2150 4012 - - - -| 446,931 | 579179
BEAEA/  Profit/loss) before
(B8 taxation 4930 | 690 | 2044 | 2099|536 | (62| 10054 | 74| 10838 | 687 -l s 3| amter| s
FER () Incometax expense)
/5% credit (18943)]  (16076)|  (5,557) 550 (1489) 3907 (1,005) @B 6m) - 62 - -1 (36,125)| (22099
KEEER/  Proftfloss) for
(BB the year 405,987 | 560874 | 15487 3449 3,867 365 9,049 6943 1,707 | (289 - (186) (35) 35| 436,062 | 571486
HEHA Inerestincome 6667 90| 275 23 - - - - onm| am - - - | omen | sy
KEEFE  Depreciationand
R amortisation for the year 26 28| 2698 | 3081 - - - - 932 846 - 4 (1933)f (1932 193 20

* 201993 BERIEE

Business ceased in March 2019
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5 WAKRREER (£8)

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

(Continued)
(a) DXL - SENERE (8) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)
REER” i
SHER i WERE RERE i Tradingn Inter-segment b

Financial services Insurance Property investment  Strategic investment Others motor vehicles* elimination Consolidated

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 019

BEFT | BETT | BBFT | BETT | BETR | BRTL| BEFL | BETL | BBTL | BT | BETR | BRTL| BETn | BETL | BREL | BRI

HK$'000 |  HKSO00 | HKS'000 | HKSOOD | HKS'000 | HKSOO0 | HKS'000 | HKSO00 | HKS'000 | HKSO00 | HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS'000 | HKSO00
128318 At31 December
KRAR  TheCompanyand
7 subsidiaries 159276 | 135083 | 467914 | 390667 63,678 | 61391| 361,001 | 423343 1,237,199 | 1162654 - - (224)  (2134)] 2,288,844 | 217099
FEBENT  Ivestmentsinassociates | 6,067,913 | 5482955 - - - - - S| 907|494 - - - - | 6,117,020 | 553229
gg Total assets 6,227,189 | 5618038 | 467,914 | 390661| 63,678 | 61,397 | 361,001 | 423343 | 1,286,306 | 1211928 - - (224)|  (2134)] 8,405,864 | 7,703,227
KRAR TheCompanyand
HEBAR subsidiaries 12491 | 240513 | 186,731 | 124%5| 20266 | 18461 - -| 388,509 | 278120 - - (24)] (2169 807,773 | 659890
Bef Total liabilities 212491 | 240513 | 186,731 | 124965 | 20,266 | 18461 - -| 388,509 | 278120 - - (224)]  (2169)| 807,773 | 659890
FEEER  Addtions tonon-current
FEOAT seqmentassets
BE during the year 2 Bl 34 4w - - - -lw| - - |68 a1 1198

* R 20194F 3 AR ILER

Business ceased in March 2019

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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WARDBBER (18) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)
(b) ihEER (b) Geographical information
TRHBIEB () AEBREINAZTFT The following table sets out the information about
WA R (i) NEE R Y5 - e 818 - the geographical location of (i) the Group's revenues
mEE REWERKERE QA from external customers and (ii) the Group’s property,
([fEFEIEREBEE]) FTEMREMNER - plant and equipment, intangible assets, investment
PRI HE RIS E YR ERT properties and investments in associates (“specified
EHE D - IEEIFREEENEMIED non-current assets”). The geographical location of
2o E - HWBENREARIEEE customers is based on the location at which the
HEEEWRENLE Y  BEEENK services were provided or the goods delivered. The
B AR A A EEMEHE D o geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the assets,
in the case of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties and the location of operations,
in the case of intangible assets and investments in
associates.
ik MEIR 2P &e
Hong Kong Mainland China Macau Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
BEFL| BT | BETF| BT | BETR| EETT | BEFR| BE T
HK$'000|  HKS'000 | HK$'000| HKS'000 | HKS'000| HKS'000 | HK$'000|  HKS'000
BZ12A310LEE  Yearended 31 December
MEEERA Revenues from external customers 61,633| 17,198| 54578 75585 76,851 59701 | 193,062| 152,484
®12A318 At 31 December
KRR RIELR The Company and subsidiaries 125,368 115434 | 73,584 71,021 40 194 198,992 186,649
REBENT Investments in associates - -16,117,020| 5,532,229 - -16,117,020| 5,532,229
EEFRBEE Specified non-current assets 125,368 | 115,434 | 6,190,604| 5,603,250 40 194 6,316,012 | 5718878
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6 Hfthisiga — 3258 6 OTHER LOSSES - NET
2020 2019
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
HATFEBEBEZTE  Netrealised and unrealised gains/(losses)
E’]irﬁé“FEl’] B &I on financial assets at fair value through
KREB Wz profit or loss
(Eﬁa) R 2,822 (1,317)
?§§%¥i1ﬁﬁ$ﬁ Fair value gains/(losses) on revaluation of
=/ (|\E) investment properties 13,698 (7,109)
—%%ﬁ%?} AR Loss on dilution of interest in an associate
HSEREIE (3H817(0)  (Note 17(c)) (28,746) _
FE M Uzs, (518) 'F%8  Net exchange gains/(losses) 6,141 (2,836)
(6,085) (11,262)

7 RREBFEFNEESFELA 7 NETINSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED AND
&M COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED ON
INSURANCE BUSINESS

2020 2019
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HK$'000
R ERELREE Net insurance claims incurred on

HHE (a) insurance business (a) 35,331 3,179

IRISEBELTFMES  Net commission expenses incurred on
ZF (b) insurance business (b) 66,834 42,849
102,165 46,028

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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fn ORI IR R RERE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED AND

COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED ON
INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

(a) RIBFEFELENEEFR (a) Net insurance claims incurred on
insurance business
2020
EZE] BRE FE
Gross Reinsurance Net
BT BYTT BYTT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AEERERBLAFAZE  Currentyear claims and loss
£H adjustment expenses 11,225 (3,987) 7,238
AFEEREREBX Additional cost for prior years’
AEE RN claims and loss adjustment
DN expenses 10,505 (1,221) 9,284
BEAEBERZHRAZEE  Increase in claims incurred but
bl not reported 13,719 4,221 17,940
AmBARR 2 TE85HEEE  Increase in the expected cost of
Ak ZR3E A0 claims for unexpired risks 869 - 869
36,318 (987) 35,331
2019
EH BRE FEE
Gross Reinsurance Net
BEFoT BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
AEERERBLAFAZE  Current year claims and loss
BH adjustment expenses 4210 (91) 4119
GFEREREX Additional cost for prior years’
AEE BRI claims and loss adjustment
DN expenses 4,207 217 4,424
BEABEARZHRAMEE  Decrease in claims incurred but
L not reported (2,870) (1,840) (4,710)
FmEER 2 TBETEEE  Decrease in the expected cost of
RARD claims for unexpired risks (654) - (654)
4,893 (1,714) 3,179
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7 RIBEFELNEEFLENE 7 NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED AND
EEH (88) COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED ON
INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

(b) RIBEFEENFHEER (b) Net commission expenses incurred on
insurance business

2020 2019

BT B F T

HK$’000 HKS’000

B REMBEERE Gross commissions paid and payable 68,169 43,568
B B R AR Less: Commissions received and receivable

@ ANE from reinsurers (1,335) (719)

BeB8R %8 Net commission expenses 66,834 42,849
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¥ il 8 OPERATING PROFIT
2020 2019
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFFEF AN Operating profit is stated after crediting
TF&I8 and charging the following:
A Crediting
VE 5 W e F 5 Net exchange gains 6,141 -
KEWMED W FEU Rentals received and receivable from
e HKREEER investment properties less direct outgoings 7,785 7,740
BR Charging
ETINA > BIEESME Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments 39,511 41,913
— F  EERIEAT — Salaries, allowances and bonus 38,382 40,361
— RIKEFL A (a) — Retirement benefit costs (a) 1,129 1,552
ZEEN BN & Auditor’s remuneration 2,187 2,086
— BFEE — Provision for current year 1,864 1,787
— HEEET — Interim attestation work 323 299
SHEKA Costs of sales = 10,996
— FEKAK — Cost of inventories = 12,473
— FE R EREE — Reversal of write down of inventories = (1,509)
— Hit - Others = 32
e N Bk Depreciation and amortisation 1,923 2,227
— Y - SRR E - Property, plant and equipment 1,733 2,100
— [EHELE - Right-of-use assets 190 127
EIBE (3 10()(i)))  Management fee (Note 10(a)(iii) 1,880 1,880
HEME  #EKEME  Loss on disposal of property, plant and
518 equipment 125 29
FE W E518 /F 58 Net exchange losses - 2,836
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8

EIEES

Fmmnl (58) 8 OPERATING PROFIT (Continued)
(@) 7TE20004 11 A 30 BAEl © AEEM (a) The Group contributed to a defined contribution
—Iﬁg'imf TETE ([ REHRET scheme (“DC Scheme”) which was available
2 ]) K ﬁﬁﬁ/\é%ZE%{E to all eligible Hong Kong employees prior
EEA2M REBRKFTEIZE to 30 November 2000. The assets of the DC
EHRAEE  EED Eﬁ?—rﬁ =5 Scheme were held separately from those of the
BUBEESRE - HE200045F Group in an independently administered fund.
11)513055'\1&1#% Rt 2 BRI (58 Contributions to the DC Scheme by the Group
HIME AR ETBIMERA) AL H58 H and employees were calculated at 15% of the
SN ,\j—:u-l—%u ([EEE]) employees’ basic salary until 30 November
IR E BHIE AEEREEBH 2000 when the DC Scheme was replaced by
ATEHRETE 2 # f}’\%ELME,%% a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
KA%zBD 2 THFE Scheme”) set up under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance.
NREBFGARGESE 2 HZK The Group’s monthly contributions (mandatory
%E( RS E= D) ?ﬁzﬁ 3 EL K A #r and voluntary) to the MPF Scheme for each
AnzTt (200059 0 H & hn employee are calculated at the higher of 10% (or
AREB 2 HHFBAISEERA 6% for employees who joined after 30 September
FBEDZN) ﬁﬁ SESHER! ”5(}\ 2000) of the monthly basic salary and 5% of the
MBS AR EAEHE monthly total income, subject to a maximum
ﬂ\mﬁmﬁlﬁ%&ﬁ%@#i?ﬁ@m contribution of HK$2,000, HK$3,000 or HK$4,000
%8 /& 75 2,000 7T ~ & 63,000 7T based on the internal grading system. The Group's
B 4,0007C - EEERGEE2H contributions to the MPF Scheme can be reduced
RN 53 Al BE 7 98 18 & 51 21 P i by the Group’s voluntary contributions forfeited
Rz R EE R LRER D K& in relation to those employees who leave the MPF
BrRgEesstElceBmitH o R Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
20204 K 201912 A 31 EI i At 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were no
FRIERKRB A2 ZBAETK © material unutilised forfeited contributions.
THREANNEEMS AEH For Mainland China employees, the Group
TN B E R B A S A AR 2 participates in the employee pension schemes
Bi@E B NEHTIRARESR administered by the respective municipal
WE‘I’%U o REBELEEH S ZE government in various locations in Mainland
DA EFEELR S AHR China where the Group operates. The Group
ﬁﬁ*iﬁzmﬂlﬁhﬁﬁ EAEAREE makes monthly contributions calculated at
FrIERERRIRBENEE - a percentage of the monthly payroll costs to
these schemes and the respective municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of the employees of the
Group.
R & AN 9  FINANCE COSTS
2020 2019
BT JBEEF T
HKS’000 HKS$'000
RITERF B H Interest expenses on bank loans 8,495 13,735
? A% A% 3R B R 2 Interest expenses on loan from
*H the controlling shareholder 5,831 4,902
HMEBEMNEXH Interest expenses on lease liabilities = 8
14,326 18,645

EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited




fn ORI IR R RERE
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10 SRITEAESMENDERS 10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS AND

e BRIALT FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(a) EEBME (a) Directors’ emoluments
ERHES EAEEE
As director As management
& -RE
REAMRRLL
RENFIR
Salaries,
housing
E=nd and other 2020
Directors’ allowances, and #4 bl
fees benefits in kind Bonus Total
BEFT BEFT BT BEFT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
WiTEE Executive Directors

BRIESE (F/)  MrYan Zheng (Chairman) = - - -
RS (B/ZE)" MrChen Jie (Vice Chairman)' - - _ _
F 354 (B /Z)? MrWang Fei (Vice Chairman)’ - - _ _

RF L Mr Chen Yu 60 1,496 595 2,151

FHTER Non-executive Directors

BERLE Mr Hon Hau Chit 60 - - 60

BWELE Mr Yang Jingchao - - - -

BIUEHITEE  Independent Non-executive Directors

ERARE Mr Ip Kai Ming 250 - , 250

RXELE Mr Cheung Man Hoi 350 = - 350

ZellEs% 4 Mr Leung Chong Shun 250 = - 250

970 1,496 595 3,061

1 R2020F 12 A1 BEFARBIEFERNTES 1 Appointed as the Vice Chairman and an Executive Director on 11
December 2020

2 R2020F9 A4HBIBIEFERHNTES 2 Resigned as the Vice Chairman and an Executive Director on 4
September 2020
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10 SHMTHASHERhERS
e @RIAL (78)

(a) EFM= (18)

10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

ERES ERERE
As director As management
k- FE
REAZE A
REWFI=
Salaries,
housing
ek and other 2019
Directors'  allowances, and e ek
fees  benefits in kind Bonus Total
BT T BT T BEFT BT T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
HITESE Executive Directors
%4 (£/)  MrYan Zheng (Chairman) - - _ _
FIEEHE (B/£/Z) MrWang Fei (Vice Chairman) - _ _ _
RFRLLE Mr Chen Yu 60 1,489 520 2,069
FHTESR Non-executive Directors
BERSEE Mr Hon Hau Chit 60 - - 60
1BaER LA Mr Yang Jingchao - - - -
BUIEHTEE  Independent Non-executive Directors
FRmLE Mr Ip Kai Ming 250 _ _ 250
RXEEE Mr Cheung Man Hoi 350 - - 350
PAIIES 4 Mr Leung Chong Shun 250 - _ 250
970 1,489 520 2,979
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fn ORI IR R RERE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 BHRiTBRASMHERQhERS

)

(a)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(b)

E2@BRIAL (78)

E5M= (48)

ERESE : ZFERBEE/LR
AIEMBARNERMEMHRE
AR M S SRR BN S

EREERE: ZFHEEEHE
I AN B % P HR 4 O B A AR A
S S B o

AAREIZERBREEZHERE
BB 1888 T (2019F + B
1888 T)  tERERE—MHER
R L EERE  BIER
HEEFARREZTGZBA -

hegsS#ME2@RIAL

B FE (@) 2 AT RFF ABE R IASNE
HeRAEERMAEREME 2 ERA
T XNTFHFEALZMESFHFBEWT

10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(i) As director: The amounts represented
emoluments paid or payable for the services as a
director of the Company or its subsidiaries.

(i) As management: The amounts represented
emoluments paid or payable for other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company.

(iii) An amount of HK$1.88 million (2019: HK$1.88
million) was paid to Vigour Fine, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, for the provision
of certain management services which include
the provision of directors to the Board of the
Company pursuant to a management agreement.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The analysis in note (a) above does not include
those individuals who are not directors but whose
emoluments are among the five highest in the Group.
Details of the emoluments paid to those individuals
are as follows:

2020 2019
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HKS’000
e - BEENEAMEEL  Salaries, housing and other allowances,

AR E WA= and benefits in kind 4,262 4,968
RIREFET 2R Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 96 96
Be Bonus 4,975 5,400

9,333 10,464
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10 SHMTHASHERhERS
e @RIAL (78)

(b) hesEME 2@ AL

10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

(£8)
MesEsE Emoluments Band 2020 2019
A& A%
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
75 #1,500,001 7T — 7% 2,000,000 7T  HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 2

752,500,001 7T — /B ¥ 3,000,000 7T
755 4,000,001 7T — 7B 4,500,000 7T

(c) BMEERAE

HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000
HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000

(c) Senior management

1
1

BNTARASREEABZHEHE Details of the emoluments payable to senior
BT management of the Company by band are as follows:

e E Emoluments Band 2020 2019

A AZ

Number of Number of

Individuals Individuals

75 ¥ 1,500,001 7T — 7% 2,000,000 7T  HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 2 2

751 4,000,001 7T — &% 4,500,000 7T  HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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11

EFEBRERHZHBAN T

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated

income statement represents:

2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
EHHE Current tax
EAEFER Hong Kong profits tax 362 358
B TS TR Mainland China corporate income tax 7,338 8,218
RN B IR TSR Mainland China withholding tax 2,148 1,826
SRR I8 Macau taxation 1,320 522
,,,,,,, 11,168 | 10924
FEEEHEBRY Under/(over) provision in prior
(B%) years
R A ZE TSR Mainland China corporate income tax 1 -
EFIBIIR Macau taxation 4 (441)
AR B (441)
ELERIE Deferred tax
TRHREENELAN Relating to the origination and reversal
o of temporary differences | 24,952 | 11,616
FrEfHxH Income tax expense 36,125 22,099

EAFERIIZRBERHETERTEF
73 Bl 3k W A% ) 15 75 B 2 8.25% 1% 16.5%
(20194 : 8.25% K2 16.5%) IR B EME -

B A O ¥ TS R T IR R A AT IE
TR FTISREMAER R 25% (2019 4F : 25%)

=&
al = °

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 8.25% and 16.5% respectively under the Two-tiered
Rates of Profits Tax (2019: 8.25% and 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year.

Mainland China corporate income tax has been

calculated at the rate of 25% (2019: 25%) on the
estimated taxable profits for the year.
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11

EIEES

Prigimszth (£8)

R B A B AR RIEEH %
L2008 F 1 A1 HEBREAFEE KA
BB AEBED IR EUW AL 5%
T2 10% S B A b TE R PT 1S 7% o

SR P33 2 6 0 AR BB 4E 7 (i B AR
PR GORPS Y BT R E -

IS H g SR M E A R E R

TSR

11

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Mainland China withholding tax is levied at 5% and
10% respectively on dividend income received from
subsidiaries and investees incorporated in Mainland
China when these subsidiaries and investees declared
dividend out of profits earned after 1 January 2008.

Taxation on Macau profits has been calculated on the
estimated taxable profits for the year at the rates of

taxation prevailing in Macau.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates:

2020 2019

BT BT T

HKs’000 HKS’000

B 5 AT A Profit before taxation 472,187 593,585
IRBEMBEREEER  Notional tax on profit before taxation,
BB R E R calculated at the rates applicable to

Bl@ A 2 2 E& 1A profits in the jurisdictions concerned 101,459 114,816

BT 2 A Income not subject to taxation (78,272) (98,200)

TR 2 H Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 11,378 6,138

RIERTLIE K AT R Increase/(decrease) in unrecognised tax losses

=gk g S i and deductible temporary differences 1,575 (194)

HTEEEFBREL ( ﬂy) Under/(over) provision in prior year 5 (441)

Hitb Others (20) (20)

ezt Income tax expenses 36,125 22,099

EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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12 R2

13

12 DIVIDEND
2020 2019
BT B TT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
PEIREBERAHM S Final dividend proposed after the
FIEE 1010 reporting date of 10 HK cents
(20194F : B 101l) (2019: 10 HK cents) per share 59,726 59,726

25 AR FUR ARSI E R A LR S B
BREANIERE - ERREZE2021
F12A3BEFRIIERBEN DR -

SRR

FREXRAEFEREHE£2020F12 A
1A LEFEARAREENGGFEE
43,606.2 % 7T (20194 : & #57,148.6
Bn) RFABBITRD ZINEFEHH
597,257,252 (2019 %F : 597,257,252) %
AEBAFERBEFEHYEDREITA
BEBE NG ALRBEFENS
g R T HERERRFER -

13

The dividend proposed after the reporting date has
not been recognised as a liability in these consolidated
financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained profits for the year ending
31 December 2021.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 of
HK$436,062,000 (2019: HK$571,486,000) and the
weighted average of 597,257,252 (2019: 597,257,252)
shares in issue during the year.

The Group has no dilutive potential shares in issue
during the current and prior years and therefore
diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings
per share for the years presented.
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14 ¥D3% -~ 133 Ko 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
FREEE-
HERER B %6
RELHE R LES HERR
1HERE Right-of-use ElRE
Leasehold B assets - Furniture,
lands and BRET otherproperties  fixtures, office RE
landuse  Buildings held leasedfor  and computer Motor ag
rights for own use own use equipment vehicles Total
FETT FETT BRI BRI BRI BT
HKs'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
RN9ETME At January 2019
A Cost 28621 12,580 - 8,928 2591 52,720
ZANERAE Accumulated depreciation and
Eig impairment losses (14622) (7,725) - (7,702) (1,736) (31,785)
EESE Net book value 13999 4855 - 126 855 2093

BZ01951283181LEE  Year ended 31 December 2019

BEEFE Opening net hook value 13,999 4855 - 1,26 855 20,935
EHER Translation differences - (69) - () - (1)
iy Additions - 89 380 729 - 1,198
TERNE Charge for the year (281) (456) (127) (354) (1n) (1,389)
HE Disposals - - - (29 - (29
BRENEENIE ) Reclassified from investment properties (a) - 6,048 . - - 6,048
EARERRERREES Fair value gains credited to leasehold

LATFENE (b) buildings revaluation reserve (b) 2692 55 - - - 747
ENABARENE (b) Reclassified to investment properties (b) (2,708) (232) - - - (2,040)
HREESE Closing net book value 13,702 10,290 253 1570 684 26,499
R19ENANER At31 December 2019 and

20051818 1 January 2020
s Cost 28,543 18,263 380 9,540 2,569 59,295
ZHMERAE Accumulated depreciation and

5 impairment losses (14,841) (7973) (127) (7.970) (1,885) (32,79)
BEFE Net book value 13,702 10,290 253 1570 684 26499
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14 3 ~ 133Nkl (78) 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
fEREEE-
HERER  BH %8
RELHR HEBNE HEER
THERE Right-of-use ElRE
Leasehold B assets - Furniture,
lands and EREE otherproperties fixtures, office RE
landuse  Buildings held leasedfor  and computer Motor ok
rights for own use own use equipment vehicles Total
Vol s Vol 3 BETr BETr BETr BETT
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BZ2000512831BILEE  Yearended 31 December 2020

BEmFE Opening net book value 13,702 10,290 253 1,570 684 26,499

ERER Translation differences - 28 - 4 - 32

iR Additions = - - 461 - 461

KERNE Charge for the year (282) (514) (190) (339) (133) (1,458)

hirt4 Disposals - - - (125) - (125)

BRREFE Closing net ook value 13420 10,004 63 1,571 551 25,609

H2020%12A318 At31December 2020

A Cost 28,543 18,518 380 6,782 2,645 56,868

ZHMERAE Accumulated depreciation and

Ei impairment losses (15123) (8,514) (317) (5,211) (2,094) (31,259)

REFE Net book value 13,420 10,004 63 1,571 551 25,609

(@ MRFEAMK—EFEDER (@ A commercial property located in Mainland
019FRHBREMEEMDERE China was reclassified from investment property
TERAYE ZWEREERR to owner-occupied property in 2019 and its fair
BN ATFTERRRFEERAET value at the date of change in use was recognised
HIR A o as cost of building held for own use.

(b) MRFAEAME —BEEWER (b) A residential property located in Mainland China
019FRETERMESETH O was reclassified from owner-occupied property
RIEEME - EFHBEAINATF to investment property in 2019 and a fair value
BEEHKREEREEEEEHFH gain on revaluation immediately before the
AR o reclassification was recognised in leasehold

buildings revaluation reserve.
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14 M%% - ikgs skt (48) 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(0 ME+HE+HFERENERZF (c) The net book value of leasehold lands and land
BT : use rights are analysed as follows:
2020 2019
BT BB F T
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
EEERFAELY Leases held in Hong Kong
50F A £ Over 50 years 4,274 4,297
10FE504F Between 10 and 50 years 9,146 9,405
13,420 13,702
15 |F&EE 15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B
Software
2020 2019
BT JEIET T
HKS’000 HK$'000
HE12A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December
BRFIER AR (B Opening net book value 735 1,573
REZEEY Charge for the year (465) (838)
HARBRE FE Closing net book value 270 735
12 A31H At 31 December
[DEN Cost 2,850 2,850
S2EtEH Accumulated amortisation (2,580) (2,115)
SREFE Net book value 270 735

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2020 2019
BT T B TT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
NE At fair value
®1A1H At 1 January 159,415 169,632
NEHEWRE (BE) Fair value gains/(losses) 13,698 (7,109)
EFDEAYE  HEE  Reclassified to property, plant and
&t (FEE140)) equipment (Note 14(a)) - (6,048)
B - MR NERE Reclassified from property, plant and
EFHE (55 14(b))  equipment (Note 14(b)) - 2,940
M12H318 At 31 December 173,113 159,415

AEENREME R KREED T

The Group’s interests in investment properties at their

I carrying amounts are analysed as follows:
2020 2019
BETFT BETT
HKS’000 HKS$’000
EEBREMEY Leases held in Hong Kong
10FE504F Between 10 and 50 years 109,100 98,200
EBBAIMNGE L Leases held outside Hong Kong
10FE504F Between 10 and 50 years 64,013 61,215
173,113 159,415

—XWBRRFENAFEE 10,910
BT (2019 : B 9,8208 L) MHRE
B —IBREYENERZLOBRRE
EERHAE  UWHAEETHBENEER
= o

The title deeds in respect of an investment property in
Hong Kong with a fair value of HK$109.1 million (2019:
HK$98.2 million) held by a subsidiary are placed in the
custody of the Insurance Authority pursuant to the

relevant regulatory requirements.
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16 R&EM* (18)

16

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a) FERIB

TREVNAEEFEHIREWER 2020
FNRANBREELEEEFENAT
B WREESHEREERFE 135
[RFENE] TEEN=RATEEE
(i1 43() P - R FEFEDED
LW EHERETAESIRH I ER
MREBEHERETE -

(a) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
investment properties held by the Group measured at
31 December 2020 on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy (Note 4.3(a))
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique.

2020 2019
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
REMNAFETE Recurring fair value measurement
EF=ZZER Level 3
A [ P Mainland China
SEXES Commercial properties 56,337 53,683
FEWE Residential properties 6,000 5,810
==Xy Car parks 1,676 1,722
64,013 61,215
0 Hong Kong
[EEXZES Commercial properties 109,100 98,200
173,113 159,415

AEEFERAFEINRNABEREY
EERAQATERBNE=-FHNE -
FRLRER R TFERBE=FLNE
%o REBHBRARELEEBN 2R
HIRER A FERBSSLENES -

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

All the investment properties carried at fair value held
by the Group were measured using Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. During the year there was no transfer
into or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.
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16 R&EM* (18)

(b) RFERBR=FMHEN

REMERB L FETHED - F—AF
i fhE R EEER AR D E LK
HEBEEMNMBERARAR - 1220205
NRANEWAFEEESR - AEH
BEBEXN N RN EFELER
AR ERR R EES

AR BERMAEEMERBEAHAF
ERBWABEREEE - ERMGER
EFNEERAEBREESHE: ()E
EYENERNELEN T43EE45E
(20194F 1 43EXE45E) miHAHESE
NFEEARARBESD 2TE AR 76
JC (2019F : ARES2LE AR 76
70) M) EMNRMEAREEA28E (2019
F:28F) MHEAHESAETENAR
¥ 6307C (20194 : AR¥E6307T) ° A
FEFEEERNERERLEE - B
BRMES 2ELEEER -

frpA B A3t B (E =Y E B R FERA
MIBLBAERE - W2ERLRYED
HIN &P K EER U AEER
1) 3¢ ER AT L B 3 L B 0 45 5 A 3= 4D
I E N EEE R ERITEA A o
ERMENER  MEFNTABRY
BITEE -

NREBNAERMEN QAT RAT
BLEOAEE - X2 E AL BYRIE
BEVPHTRNHEEER L AKE
FY P 5% B A] Eb B 36 L BB B E R 2=
(flans A R AR EEE) 1FHE
EITREORE - @R UK 2AFE
BIK - BRANMGERER @ TEXNE
%T\)ﬂ%ﬁ?&%ﬁ(ﬁ%@%m%(zowi L
10%) °

16

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Information about Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy

The investment properties were revalued based on
their fair values at 31 December 2020 by independent
professional valuers, namely Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited and Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited. The Group has discussed with the
independent professional valuers on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results at each annual
reporting date.

The fair values of commercial properties and car parks
located in Mainland China were determined by income
capitalisation approach. The significant unobservable
inputs applied in valuation measurement are (i)
capitalisation rates ranged from 4.3% to 4.5% (2019:
4.3% to 4.5%) and monthly market rental ranged from
RMB52 to RMB76 (2019: RMB52 to RMB76) per square
meter for commercial properties and (ii) capitalisation
rate of 2.8% (2019: 2.8%) and monthly market rental
of RMB630 (2019: RMB630) per unit for car parks
respectively. The fair value measurement is negatively
correlated to the capitalisation rate and positively
correlated to the monthly market rental.

The fair value of residential properties located in
Mainland China was determined by market comparison
approach with reference to recent sales price per
square meter of comparable properties, adjusted for
a premium or a discount specific to the factors such
as the location and quality of the Group's properties
while compared to the comparable properties. The
unobservable input for discount applied in valuation
measurement was immaterial.

The fair value of commercial properties located in Hong
Kong was determined by market comparison approach
with reference to recent sales price per square foot
of comparable properties, adjusted for a premium or
a discount specific to the factors such as the longer
period of tenancy and the larger floor area of the
Group’s properties while compared to the comparable
properties. Larger discount will result in a lower fair
value measurement. The significant unobservable
input for discount applied in valuation measurement
was approximately 10% (2019: approximately 10%).
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16 ®BREME (88) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(b) RFERBEFE=FEHKERN (b) Information about Level 3 of the fair value
(#8) hierarchy (Continued)
FRNZRERATERBE=ZSHNERE The movements in the balance of Level 3 of the fair
;AT - value hierarchy during the year are as follows:
2020 2019
BENE GENE BENE HENR
Commercial Residential Ef 8% Commercal  Residenta Bf %
properties  properties  Car parks Total  properties  properties  Carparks Total

ERFr  BRTn ERTn BEFn | BETT BRI AR EETR
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS00 | HKSOMO  HKSOMD  HKSOOD  HKSOOO

®MA1R At 1 January 151,883 5810 1,722 159,415 165,044 2800 1,788 169,632

ATERE/ (BB)  Fairvalue gains/(losses) 13,554 190 (46) 13,698 (71113) 70 (66) (7,109)
ENHAME R Redassified to property, plant and

RE equipment - - - - (6,048) - - 6,048)
B EEREE  Reclassified from property, plant and

ENnE equipment - - - - - 2940 - 2940
R12A318 At 31 December 165,437 6,000 1,676 173,113 151,883 5810 1,722 159415

ERMGABERS  Total unrealised fair value gains/
[EHEE - 3] (osses)forthe year recognised in
MEDNASALTE  the consolidated income statement

Wi/ (BB)BE  aspartof Other losses - net” 13,554 190 (46) 13,698 (7.113) 10 (66) (7,109

17 BE /8] 17 ASSOCIATES
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
J‘ﬁﬁiéfﬁ)%’%ﬁ Share of net assets 6,106,303 5,521,512
BT —FKE<Z /7]l (b) Loantoan associate (b) 10,717 10,717
6,117,020 5,532,229

210 {5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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17 BE R3S (£8) 17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(@) AEBREEARZREDTTMNM (@) The Group’'s investments in associates are
™ analysed below:
EHREE Hitb k|
XIB Group Others Total
BEFT BEFT BEFT
HK$'000 HKS’000 HKSs’000
7201941 A1 H At 1 January 2019 4,942,748 45,925 4,988,673
fENZE%8 Translation differences (88,501) (655) (89,156)
FEIGBR LR S F Share of profit after taxation
35 B v A Profit before taxation 650,838 4,587 655,425
FTiSfisz B Income tax expense (75,671) (575) (76,246)
NFEEFES (FJfER)  Increasein fair value reserve
120 (recycling) 54,215 - 54,215
NEEFES (FAIfER) Increase/(decrease) in fair value
=, Csd) reserve (non-recycling) 954 (8) 946
JE(E—RE R AR Share of movement in capital
ERREeE reserve of an associate (1,628) - (1,628)
#2019%F 12431 B At31December 2019 and
20201 A1H 1 January 2020 5,482,955 49,274 5,532,229
fE N =58 Translation differences 298,934 2,465 301,399
FEIGBR B 5 F Share of profit after taxation
B35 Al A Profit before taxation 493,553 3,685 497,238
FTiSfi sz B Income tax expense (48,772) (1,535) (50,307)
EERERE Dividend declared - (4,754) (4,754)
N EFES (FJ{ER)  Decrease in fair value reserve
NERAR (recycling) (137,214) = (137,214)
NEERHES (T 0] fE¥R) Decrease in fair value
DEAn reserve (non-recycling) - (28) (28)
BERs Dilution of interest
WA 1BEERNER2  Loss on dilution recognised in
#EEE consolidted income statement (28,746) - (28,746)
feNENEREE R Release of exchange translation
NEEFER reserve and fair value reserve
(FIfEER) B (recycling) 7,203 - 7,203
M2020512A318 At 31 December 2020 6,067,913 49,107 6,117,020
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17

B=E,a (f8)

(b)

HERSANEEHZBE QR Z
K& WHREER 28 NME
PR E R R

B SR 2020F 12 B AR F
FETHBROERERA ([
B ) UBARARIFFHER
B A% 4 H 499.7635% 1% #E5E & 4
8.8543% o ZANE[E A It A F NELS
BEEBOEE 28758 T (1
6) ' U TR AN B #H £ 20204F
12A3TBIENEEZEETBE
B SRR HIE = 2020 12 A 31
BIEMEEZEETEER (KA
BAFEAEEN DT E) 51
B o A& E R G E R AR ER
B8 = 49 8.8543% [EIGBSE T 1E
& LEREES BARESK
NEERES C(TAER) &1L
B 148 EBETERABRERE
E A o

if3;

KNAREERTEAIEEBIE -
B BN R B A% = 3R 49 8.8543%
BEMNBRASFTEES L IR
ABREBEEROERIER  AQF
AU E A R NEE IR B K &
BRRTEERTEN - Bt
ARRIRBERBEBWHES
AARMEENR > MEMBFE
NS BEERREEYBR
SRR ETEAR -

A B % 150 E N 77 R
TERRBELRME BT
RBIEER & BB -

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)

The loan represented the Group’s investments in
that associate and was unsecured, interest free
and had no fixed repayment terms.

XIB completed the issuance of new shares to third
parties to enlarge its share capital in December
2020 (the “Capital Contribution”), which resulted
in the dilution of the Company’s shareholding in
XIB from approximately 9.7635% to approximately
8.8543%. Accordingly, the Group recorded a loss
on dilution of approximately HK$28.75 million
(Note 6) during the year based on the audited
consolidated financial information of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
audited consolidated financial information of XIB
for the year ended 31 December 2020 as adjusted
to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
The Group also transferred directly to retained
profits in total of approximately HK$148.02 million
from statutory reserve, general reserve, capital
reserve and fair value reserve (non-recycling)
attributable to the dilution of the shareholding in
XIB to approximately 8.8543%.

The Company had evaluated the applicable
accounting treatment in respect of its
approximately 8.8543% shareholding in XIB
immediately after the completion of the Capital
Contribution and considered that the Company
will continue to have the ability to exercise
significant influence over the financial and
operating policy decisions of XIB in accordance
with the terms of the constitutional documents
of XIB. Accordingly, the Company considered that
XIB will continue to be classified as an associate
of the Company and the Company’s interest in
XIB will continue to be accounted for using equity
method in accordance with the HKFRSs.

Bank deposits placed by the Group with
associated financial institutions in the normal
course of business are included in cash and bank
balances.
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17 B=22.38 (18)

17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(&) LATHEZERBIEN20205F 12 A 31 (e) The following list contains the particulars of those
HEAEENEESEEREKX associates at 31 December 2020 which principally
FEMNBERT  WEEEEE affected the results or assets of the Group. All
BHAEIELETRARUNERE A of these entities are unlisted corporates and are
N accounted for using equity method.

FRai BEIR AEEH

menk BRBAHE BiER
Place of Particulars Group’s TEER
incorporation of issued and effective Principal

e YNGIPA Name of associates and operations paid up capital interest activities

KA Directly held

EFERETRGA Xiamen International Bank Co, Ltd, 1 A R£H1E 04742k 8.8543% B RBELR

BRAF and its subsidiaries (AR 9474(8T0)
REWBAR The People’s 9,247.4 million shares Banking and
Republic of China (RMB9,247.4 million) investment holding
BEERRTRG Luso International Banking pil 261 BERER 43421% BT
ERAF Ltd. (&F%26.1 E7T)
Macau 2.61 million shares Banking
(MOP2,610 million)
ERBTERAA Chiyu Banking Corporation ik 2182427 6.1652% idh)
Ltd. (% 657787 7L)
Hong Kong 2,218.24 million shares Banking
(HK$6,577.87 million)
EFARRE Xiamen Interational i 64.1953 (2% 8.8543% A
ARAT Investment Limited (&M% 64.1953ETT)
Hong Kong 6,419.53 million shares Investment
(HKS6,419.53 million) holding
Rl Indirectly held
HEEERE Min Faith Investments &5 1000 40% A
ERAT" Limited"” (B%10070)
Hong Kong 100 shares Investment
(HK$100) holding
(1) WEEARNIMESH S ELAME (1) This associate is not audited by KPMG. Both the aggregate net

%o BT S AR 2 EEFERBRBA
BARME AR EEERE 4BRE 2 0.8% 2 0.7% ©

assets and profit before taxation attributable to this associate
represent approximately 0.8% and 0.7% respectively of the
Group's consolidated totals.
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17 B=E2138 (18)

(f) BEABERARPBEMBE (BN
SERME S BERRH - WK
B AP HRRAREESR)

17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(f)

Summarised financial information of the
material associate prepared in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted by the Group

BT

and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements is disclosed

below:
EREE
XIB Group
2020 2019
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
BE N Ty SIEHALE Gross amount of the associate’s

BE Assets 1,131,842,064 | 1,027,204,506
BfE Liabilities (1,048,982,197) | (957,661,654
FEFRRR AR Non-controlling interests (14,697,446) (13,385,170)
FIRME (a) Dividend declared (a) (3,586,724) -
PR (L = Equity attributable to shareholders 64,575,697 56,157,682
WA 4858 Total revenues 43,449,535 42,461,440
I IR RS Profit from continuing operations 4,555,546 5,890,999
E 2 mEl s Other comprehensive income (1,822,236) 656,964
PENEEEE Total comprehensive income 2,733,310 6,547,963

HEEZAEER Reconciled to the Group's interest

BN B MRS in the associate

B & NP EE FERE Gross amount of net assets of the associate 64,575,697 56,157,682
REEN B ER Group’s effective interest 8.8543% 9.7635%
fE(hEEFE Share of net assets 5,717,723 5,482,955
TR B Dividend declared 350,190 -

LA HRER A Carrying amount in the consolidated
AREE financial statements 6,067,913 5,482,955

(a) ZEHEBEFIERRTTERGEZ2018F
128318 %2019 12831 H I F/EAIRE °

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

(a)

This amount represented dividends for the year ended 31

December 2018 and 2019 declared by XIB.
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(9) U 3EMERIEAKAVE

fn ORI IR R RERE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

ZN AR BE 4E (g) Aggregate information of associates that are not

ErRHETENT ¢ individually material is disclosed below:
2020 2019
EBEFT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$'000
REr A BIIGRARANIIE  Aggregate carrying amount of individually
{(ENlEEp N 0] /NG immaterial assocates in the consolidated
WEREEETE financial statements 49,107 49,274
REBELZER S AT Aggregate amount of the Group’s share
T3 &I of those associates’
S SR Profit from continuing operations 2,150 4,012
H b2 miies Other comprehensive income 2,437 (663)
PHEU S BRE Total comprehensive income 4,587 3,349
RATFESTAHMERREN 18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
ERbEE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
2020 2019
EBETFT JEIT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
M1A1H At 1 January 423,343 570,417
RAFE#ES Fair value loss recognised in
(NAIEIR) SBBR 2 fair value reserve
N EEE (non-recycling) (62,342) (147,074)
M12H31H At 31 December 361,001 423,343
b /N ] At fair value
TR R Equity securities listed on
FEELEZSFT () Shanghai Stock Exchange (a) 361,001 423,343
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18 BRTFEFAHMEZEDNEN

EREE (18)

(@) 7N £ E R 20205F K& 2019512 A

BNABBERLEERFRS LT
AR T
NGIES Company name

18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

(@) The equity securities listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange held by the Group at 31 December
2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Rl TEXK AEENENER
Place of Principal Group's
incorporation activities effective interest

ERERENRD
BROE ([#8])

Inc. ("Huaneng”)

AEERETHEERABRKERR
FEFAEMEEEE (TAE
R) WHIARBRARERRHR
HRBEERMETA -

AR R AR & B0 FEae
A RS B BR 1S A B A A R T A A
BHENMFEERTER -
b ARELE R E M2 E R
AR TEAFERES (T
AIER) AN AT AFEZS
FEETIRZEA -

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

Huaneng Power International,

hEE ARAAE HRENHEES 0.43%
(816,795 BIRAIR)

The People’s ~ Generation and sale (approximately
Republic of China of electric power 67.95 million
A-Share)

The Group designated its investment in A-Share
of Huaneng as FVOCI (non-recycling) as the
investment is held for long-term and strategic
purposes.

The tax bureau in Beijing, Mainland China had
issued certificate of tax exemption for the gain
from partial disposal of A-Share of Huaneng by
the Company in previous year. Accordingly, the
Group has not provided any tax provision against
the fair value movements recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling).



19 REBEMNGTENEMNEE

20

AEEBZENESREERB2016FHEA
IR ERRGZIMES © % EFHFAETTRT
B BArEmBXAFHNEK31255E
FEFELIHFE  WEHR2020F4 A%
;]i\[,q °

MN2019F 12 A31 8 ZESIRERF
EURRTEBEKA - ReHBRRE -

fn ORI IR R RERE
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19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

The financial asset held by the Group was an
investment grade over-the-counter bond acquired in
2016. The bond was in United States Dollar, carried
fixed coupon interest rate at 3.125% per annum
payable half yearly and has matured in April 2020.

At 31 December 2019, the bond carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method and had

neither past due nor impaired.

iR RE BN 3 AN 20 DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Hm1A1H At 1 January 28,905 21,242
FEREE Increase during the year 78,368 50,512
F A Release during the year (66,833) (42,849)
R12A318 At 31 December 40,440 28,905
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21

EIEES

o B3 1 LU R 21 INSURANCE RECEIVABLE
2020 2019
BT JBEMEF T
HK$’000 HKS'000

RiEHR N ARE LB A Due from insurance intermediates and

KR contract holders 62,789 22,743
BRER AR Due from reinsurers 429 282
63,218 23,025

REBDRBREYR 2 EEHRBER 60
REIOKX - REBEWRZEEGRR(E
HRELHEHEFLAER ARBEE
REHNBRERABRE °

R2020F12 831 H ' R EKRZHER
BN GRBEEHE) #almT

The credit period for the majority of insurance
receivable normally ranges from 60 to 90 days.
The credit terms of insurance receivable, including
whether guarantees from third parties are required,
are determined by senior management of Min Xin

Insurance.

At 31 December 2020, the ageing analysis of insurance
receivable by invoice date was summarised as follows:

2020 2019
BT BT T

HK$’000 HKS’000

30HA Within 30 days 19,468 6,583
31260 H 31-60 days 10,796 6,560
61Z90H 61-90 days 14,583 4313
Bim 90 H Over 90 days 18,371 5,569
63,218 23,025

M2020512 8318 CiEEEREE
BR R FE U R B BR B D AT AR a0 T

At 31 December 2020, the ageing analysis of the
past due but not impaired insurance receivable was

summarised as follows:

2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

2@ HE Past due
90 H N Within 90 days 4,451 6,674
B3890 B Over 90 days 809 633
5,260 7,307

EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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fn ORI IR R RERE
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BRREE 22 REINSURANCE ASSETS
2020 2019
EBEFT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS’000
BiRB AFERREREE  Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities
(7F%226) (Note 26) 8,135 8,976
BRBAXGAREBGRESREHE L The amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims
RS ERENRIBY RN ERREEATE already paid by the Group on the contracts that are
R o ZAEFT AR EUWEKR (FEE21) reinsured are not recognised in the reinsurance assets.
A o They are included in insurance receivable (Note 21).
EF S MM EULR 23 LOANS TO CUSTOMERS AND INTEREST
RECEIVABLE
2020 2019
BT BB F T
HKS’000 HKS’000
NEEEFRET Micro credit business
EREN Guaranteed loans 154,741 149,847
BEHER Secured loans 92,750 96,864
L LIERER Pledged and guaranteed loans 11,410 10,738
IR - HIMLERES  Secured, pledged and guaranteed loans 4,516 4,250
ZEEX Loans to customers 263,417 261,699
FEUYCF] B Interest receivable 12,003 11,442
275,420 273,141
EREE Impairment allowances (254,386) (252,160)
21,034 20,981

M 20205 % 2019412 318 BF &
AW F SB35 HAR

EERIE °

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the loans to customers
and related interest receivable were overdue over 365
days and credit-impaired.
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23 BFEMKREWNSI (&) 23 LOANS TO CUSTOMERS AND INTEREST

RECEIVABLE (Continued)

The movement of impairment allowances recognised

220

QEJJZZD—F at amounts equal to lifetime ECLs was as follows:
2020 2019
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
R1A1H At 1 January 252,160 266,927
[EH =58 Translation differences 15,073 (4,651)
EEFEEIEIRLE Credited to current year’s income statement (9,404) (6,255)
HITIREE FFAEEE L Unwinding of discount of impairment
HEEERRE allowances recognised as
[FBHA “interest income” (3,443) (3,861)
R12A831H At 31 December 254,386 252,160
26 RV EEBERIKRNER 24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
B THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2020 2019
BT B F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BAYE At fair value
TR Equity securities listed on
5 32 F Stock Exchange 4,041 6,739
MATBEHFZ B The New York Stock Exchange - 2,412
IR EES Investment funds listed on
2 BT Stock Exchange 5,576 7,869
RAGERE M Principal-guaranteed structured
RITF A (a) bank deposits (a) 318,319 -
EHIGmE At quoted price
FLEHFREES (b) Unlisted investment funds (b) 42,042 80,802
369,978 97,822

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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24 BAFEBBERVIERNER 24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

& (18) THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(@) BcEATPEANMME TIRITE (@) The amount represented fixed-term and
TR E FEEIRR MR AR &M R T principal-guaranteed structured bank deposits
FRAOANRYE 26,783 BT © of approximately RMB267.83 million issued by

certain banks in Mainland China.
M2020F 12 A31H - A& E & At 31 December 2020, the Group held principal-
EER(FNEE - L 2 guaranteed structured bank deposits with a fair
) BITHRAZEMERITERR value of approximately RMB5 million (equivalent
FEARKES008 T (FELNBE to approximately HK$5.94 million) issued by XIB,
5948 7T) ° an associated financial institution of the Group.
b)) BELBEAREBRERELT (b) The amount represented unlisted investment

Ml RERELTRERS o 2
ZRELSHAINETRARY
5HE -

25 IRENKRITETF

(a)

ReERRTEGREAEELET
RAPBE AL HEKRPE TR
TZFEROARE 79,3828 T (&
B #7785 # 94,3458 7T) (20194 :
HANRE105,965 87T ° ZELE
#118,52287T) °

funds subscribed by the Group in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. These investment funds are in
United States dollars and Renminbi respectively.

25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

(a)

The cash and bank balances of the Group
included deposits of approximately RMB793.82
million (equivalent to approximately HK$943.45
million) (2019: approximately RMB1,059.65
million, equivalent to approximately HK$1,185.22
million) placed with certain banks by the Group
in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.
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25 IRENRRITETF (8)

(b)

BIBEREEEERNHATE  HE
EEN—R2EWBRAIBER
B HEE BT D RB 1,600
ETNESU RBEEERERP
MERBRERAF | 2HEB AR
TFRIERETEF © F220204F 12
A318  BERENES —RIE
T REEEEREFEERR
BERRAR] BETFHEE1,6008
JC (20194 : B #1,6008 T) &
THERAFEBBRT - W
BT IR RPIE1,5308 T
(ZEDBE1,4048T0) MBI
4203870 (20194 : JBFIHEE 1,532
Br SELBE14878B TN
2,621 8B IT) WIRITE KA
ABRPI(RBEBEEHE) BT
FRIE o

MR2020F 128318 BEARQ
AIR2018FHFTMEREE (5
E28) MRE —REBEWNBR
RIBEEHRE=ZFHETERAR
# 20,000 &7t (F1EX B 23,770
Er) (20194 + AR ¥ 20,0008
T BENAER 223708 T) TE
FERITRABEAL—RD1T 0 A
FZAPTEEUNEBERBRITAZ R
ARERERE -

BEEE—REBITHZAERR
AN—XR2EMBRRIERTIEA
SHERBBENBRRRAAIARX
= ANERERENER R
2020512 A31H » Z2EMER
RIETFA—F 81,500 8 LA R
TERERBRERENERR -

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

(b)

Pursuant to the requirements from the Insurance
Authority, Min Xin Insurance, a wholly-owned
subsidiary, shall maintain at all times a portion
of its funds of not less than HK$16 million in the
name of “Insurance Authority account Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited” in bank deposits as
a statutory deposit. At 31 December 2020, Min
Xin Insurance has placed fixed deposits of HK$16
million (2019: HK$S16 million) in the name of
“Insurance Authority account Min Xin Insurance
Company Limited” with a bank in Hong Kong for
fulfillment of such requirements. That subsidiary
has also maintained bank deposits of MOP15.39
million (equivalent to approximately HK$14.94
million) and HK$42.03 million (2019: MOP15.32
million, equivalent to approximately HK$14.87
million and HK$26.21 million) for fulfilling
certain requirements under the Macau Insurance
Ordinance.

At 31 December 2020, a wholly-owned subsidiary
has pledged its three-year bank deposit of
RMB200 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$237.7 million) (2019: RMB200 million,
equivalent to approximately HK$223.7 million)
to a branch of the lending bank in Mainland
China for the issuance of a standby letter of
credit in favour of the lending bank pursuant to
the requirements of the loan facilities (Note 28)
entered into by the Company in 2018.

Pursuant to the requirement of a standby letter
of credit issued by a bank in Hong Kong in favour
of a reinsurance company that has entered into
the Non-life Reinsurance Facility with a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, that wholly-
owned subsidiary has placed a bank deposit of
HK$15 million as a collateral for the standby letter
of credit at 31 December 2020.
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S 26 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS

0%

\

2020 2019
BEFT BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
EH Gross
D2HRERIBLFAE  Claims reported and loss adjustment
& expenses 18,008 11,122
BEABKREFRRE Claims incurred but not reported 42,339 28,620
60,347 39,742
RWEARE Unearned premiums 67,095 47,223
oo HA [ B 88 5 Unexpired risks provision 1,774 905
REBEETHEE £5 Total insurance liabilities, gross 129,216 87,870
BB RE ARIE Recoverable from reinsurers
BEHRRENIBLARE  Claims reported and loss adjustment
== expenses (2,540) (5)
BELBERERRE Claims incurred but not reported (3,138) (7,359)
(5,678) (7,364)
AR E Unearned premiums (2,457) (1,612)
BRBAEGRBEE  Total reinsurers’ share of insurance
e (T 22) liabilities (Note 22) (8,135) (8,976)
HE Net
BEE2ERREKRIELFAE  Claims reported and loss adjustment
& expenses 15,468 11,117
DEEBAREREE Claims incurred but not reported 39,201 21,261
54,669 32,378
RNmERE Unearned premiums 64,638 45,611
v B B 1 Unexpired risks provision 1,774 905
REESEEE  FE Total insurance liabilities, net 121,081 78,894
EE2RREERE  BLAABRERAREE The liabilities for gross claims reported, loss adjustment
EREREREZENEEDMBRTERATR expenses and claims incurred but not reported are net
B RARA W E R REE o of expected recoveries from salvage and subrogation.
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26 WREVKBRREE (18)

(a) RBSEBNRBRAEEHEE

26 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Movement in claims and loss adjustment

E2HHE
EEEERZR

M1A18
FRAREEN
MERE
EEEm/ (BD)
EFELRE
AFELRE
BREBAER
BEe 8

R128318

RE=
EELERER

R12831H

Notified claims
Incurred but not reported

At 1 January

Cash paid for claims settled
during the year

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities

Arising from current year claims

Arising from prior year claims

Movement in provision for claims
incurred but not reported

At 31 December

Notified claims
Incurred but not reported

At 31 December

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

expenses
2020 2019
% BRRE FH 8 BliRk it
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
BETT  BETr  BEFn | B¥Fr BEFT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000
11,122 (5) 11,117 17,022 (572) 16,450
28,620 (7,359) 21,261 31,490 (5,519) 25,971
39,742 (7,364) 32,378 48512 (6,091) 42,421
(14,844) 2,673 (12,171) (14,317) 44 (13,876)
11,225 (3,987) 7,238 4210 91) 4,119
10,505 (1,221) 9,284 4,207 217 4,424
13,719 4,221 17,940 (2,870) (1,840) (4,710)
60,347 (5,678) 54,669 39,742 (7,364) 32,378
18,008 (2,540) 15,468 11,122 (5) 11,117
42,339 (3,138) 39,201 28,620 (7,359) 21,261
60,347 (5,678) 54,669 39,742 (7,364) 32,378
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26 RIBEBHINBRIZEE (18) 26 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)
(b) RiMHAREBERTE (b) Movement in provision for unearned
premiums
2020 2019
% BRE R % BRRE HE
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
A¥Frn  BETT  BEFL | BETr EETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M AR At 1 January 47,223 (1,612) 45,611 32,934 (246) 32,688
FEREM/ (BD) Increase/(decrease) during the year (69,302) (7,549) (76,851) 46,293 (1,608) 44,685
FREE Release during the year 89,174 6,704 95,878 (32,004) 242 (31,762)
R128318 At 31 December 67,095 (2,457) 64,638 47,023 (1,612) 45,611
RmERELEHEE AN EWMAAEEA Provision for unearned premiums represented the
EEEHARIBENEERERENINE liabilities for short-term insurance contracts for which
o the Group’s obligations are not expired at the reporting
date.
(c) RinbARRERTEE (c) Movement in provision for unexpired risks
2020 2019
8 BRE et % BRE e
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net

BRFr  ERFr  ERFL | ERTT ERTT BRI
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 |  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKS000

m1A1H At 1 January 905 - 905 1,559 - 1,559
FEREM/ (BD) Increase/(decrease) during the year 869 - 869 (654) - (654)
R12A318 At 31 December 1,774 - 1,774 905 - 905
A v EA = B ZE 1 < B 7N R (B TE HA 2 AN S The provision for unexpired risks related to the
ERBLEERRREEESHNRR insurance contracts for which the Group expected
BREH - to pay claims in excess of the related provision for

unearned premiums.
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27 RIBETFR 27 INSURANCE PAYABLE
2020512 A31 B » {REEFER AR At 31 December 2020, the ageing analysis of the
oM (REZEAE) T insurance payable by invoice date was summarised as
follows:
2020 2019
BT JBEEF T
HKS’000 HKS$'000
30HA Within 30 days 8,998 7,566
31260H 31-60 days 5,879 4,152
61£90H 61-90 days 7,855 2,738
i@ 90 H Over 90 days 8,403 1,691
31,135 16,147
28 IRITEM 28 BANK BORROWINGS

2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000

REJIRITER Long-term bank loans
BHEM - UBITRERL(b) Secured, in Hong Kong dollars (b) | 199,983 | 199,965

RERITER Short-term bank loans
BEA - LABTTREN (o) Secured, in Hong Kong dollars (c) 111,600 60,000
A - IUBTTAEN (d) Unsecured, in Hong Kong dollars (d) 60,000 -
,,,,,, 171,600 | 60,000
371,583 259,965

B BERARBAEBAZ Less: Amounts due within one year

—FERNEIHIRFRIE included in current liabilities (371,583) (60,000)
- 199,965

226 {5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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—{H xh

Tiawk (88)

19 48 B 5B T B T R AR
5 8217 B A S 5 H A BE
M

(a)

28 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The maturity profile of the principal of bank loans
based on the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan facilities was summarised as follows:

2020 2019

EBEFT BT T

HKs’000 HK$'000

F—FNR Within 1 year 371,600 60,000
ZR—FERMFEN More than 1 year but within 2 years - 200,000
371,600 260,000

(b)

RITERSARRN2018FRAFE
B FERITIRIA T B EHEK
HIR(EE &R ©

ZEBEFRUEBHETRFRA
WO —RPTEENERERE
ERBUNBITARAGMNERE
Fe-ZBEREREHARAIRNRA
B —RE2EWNB AR S
2o FA20204F12 A31H - % M
BRREEWR —E£=-FHRTE
AAR 200008 T (FENE
¥ 23,7708 70) (20194F : AR
20,000 & JT © & {H 48 22,370
Bt) FERBITATFEAE—

ZEBMERNAEZEBRITR
ERBEMBEZFE  R2020F
12A31H EBEMNXEBI15E
(20194 : 3.5[&)

BIEBEZERBEENIER  KAAF
AHEEFEEREESEANZE
REEHAER (BREEZEXE
) BEARBBEBITRATDR
35% M E i ©

The bank loan represented the outstanding
balance of a floating rate term loan obtained from
a bank in Hong Kong by the Company in 2018.

The term loan was secured by a standby letter
of credit issued by a branch of the lending
bank in Mainland China for the fulfillment of
the Company’s repayment obligations. The
standby letter of credit was applied by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company in Mainland
China. That subsidiary has pledged a three-year
bank deposit of RMB200 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$237.7 million) (2019: RMB200
million, equivalent to approximately HK$223.7
million) to the branch of the lending bank in
Mainland China at 31 December 2020.

The term loan bore interest at a spread over Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the effective
interest rate was 1.5% (2019: 3.5%) per annum at
31 December 2020.

Pursuant to the terms of the loan facility, the
Company shall procure FIDG to maintain (whether
directly or indirectly) not less than 35% beneficial
interest in the issued share capital of the
Company during the tenor of the loan facility.

ZEZFF3R Annual Report 2020

227



228

> >

i O BT IR R REEAE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 FRfTEK (£8)

(©)

(d)

RER  RARABEEHN KRR
ITIRENABEE B H5 11,160 8 TTHI A2
HRTTRIRER - ARRENFE
RNEHEER2019FREENE
HRSRITIEIR B SR A5 548 5 6,000 8
T e

ZEEFUN—RE2EWBR A
BEARBANBERMEREMEE
AR - ZIE AW ER 2020612 A
STHMEEFENEEINSE T
(2019 : BH 941 BIT) °

ZEERMA BRBBRITRE
FENMEZFERENRESEN
REB BT =@AEE - 72020
F12H318 ' ZERBETEE
ERMERFNEA22[E (2019 :
38E)

REZFERBENGR - A2
AlAGE R ERERE K BARN %
FERBEHRNES (BREEX
BE%) BFARNRREBHITRATD
M35 EmEm REEHAR
AT (BmEZRAEE) B8
HlERES

ZEFNFEREBRITRER
BMBEERANRERZKAR
F=EAEE - 7£2020F12 A 31
H  ZERNERFHNER2IE -

BIBZEREENIER - ~NAF
AERFEEREEEANZE
REEBHANERS (EREEZEXH
) BEARBBETRATNDR
51% M B i M A H AR AT
fF (EmEEEE) 8B EH
WS e

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

28 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

()

During the year, the Company drew down short-
term revolving bank loans in the aggregate
amount of HK$111.6 million from a bank in Hong
Kong. The outstanding balance of the short-term
revolving bank loan of HK$60 million in 2019 was
fully repaid by the Company during the year.

The loans were secured by the self-use office
building owned by a wholly-owned subsidiary
in Hong Kong with a net book value of
approximately HK$9.15 million (2019: HK$9.41
million) at 31 December 2020.

The loans bore interest at a spread over Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate and shall be
repayable within three months from their
respective drawdown dates. The effective interest
rates was 2.2% (2019: 3.8%) per annum at 31
December 2020.

Pursuant to the terms of these loan facilities,
the Company shall procure FIDG to maintain
(whether directly or indirectly) not less than 35%
beneficial interest in the issued share capital of
the Company and have the power to exercise
(whether directly or indirectly) management
control over the Company during the tenor of
these loan facilities.

The loan bore interest at a spread over Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate and shall be payable
within three months from its drawdown date.
The effective interest rate was 2.3% per annum at
31 December 2020.

Pursuant to the terms of the loan facility,
the Company shall procure FIDG to maintain
(whether directly or indirectly) not less than 51%
beneficial interest in the issued share capital of
the Company and have the power to exercise
(whether directly or indirectly) management
control over the Company during the tenor of the
loan facility.
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EIRIRREM

ARER2019F A EERIVEEEHE
FUE 20,0008 T ([IREREZK]) - 1B
BZmigs o BMRERAESBER
BN (i) MR ER B R 12@A 8 R
B8 B 500087T : (i) RIEEERA
Hiztm24E B & BEE B 50008 7T :
K (i) RIEME R H Bzt m36 @A E
H{EE B 10,000 87T - KA BIERF
NEE B 5,000 8T °

RERE R AEEA LA SE3EREE
RITRZERLE 21 EE - 720204
12A318B BREREFTNERFNZX A
2.5 (2019 : 45[F)

FARRERNBBIE L AEE
5835 JT (2019 : B¥490E L) © MK
2020 12 A 31 HWAAB RS R B ABE
w2287 (2019 : BHES4ETT) -
BEHREFENTHEREYR  BEE
AL B H BT

29 LOAN FROM THE CONTROLLING

SHAREHOLDER

The Company drew down a floating rate term loan of
HK$200 million (the “Shareholder’s Loan”) from Vigour
Fine in 2019. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement,
the Shareholder’s Loan shall be repayable by
instalment, namely (i) HK$50 million on the date falling
12 months after the drawdown date; (ii) HK$50 million
on the date falling 24 months after the drawdown date;
and (iii) HK$100 million on the date falling 36 months
after the drawdown date. The Company had repaid
HK$50 million during the year.

The Shareholder’s Loan was unsecured and bore
interest at three-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate plus 2.1%. The effective interest rate was 2.5%
(2019: 4.5%) per annum at 31 December 2020.

The related interest expense of the Shareholder’s Loan
was HK$5.83 million (2019: HK$4.9 million) for the year
and the related interest payable was HK$0.22 million
(2019: HK$0.54 million) at 31 December 2020.

The maturity profile of the principal of Shareholder’s
Loan based on the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the agreement was summarised as follows:

2020 2019
BT T B F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
F—FNA Within 1 year 50,000 50,000
ZH—FERARER More than 1 year but within 2 years 100,000 50,000
ZIHMEERAEA More than 2 years but within 5 years = 100,000
150,000 200,000

fHEaE LEASE LIABILITIES

M2020F 12 A31H  RIEBENZTH
WEMFEGEOEHAERMT

At 31 December 2020, the remaining contractual
maturity profile of the present value of the minimum
lease payments was summarised as follows:

2020 2019

BT T BT T

HKS’000 HKS’000

FE—FN Within 1 year 65 191
ZN—FBRAMENRN More than 1 year but within 2 years - 65
65 256
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31

EIEES

IR FE PRSI

BEAMSHRAABREINEREZRIES
HETIEZ B E16.5% (20194F : 16.5%)
Ko /R B g 4 A5 T8 2 B %R 25% (2019 4F -
25%) tEZ 8 HE - EBETRFIATH
SN EEERENHEAGEE  m
EIEFRSHS R B — RIS R 5 R — (&
ERTAEEE - BIRIIRIEFS I & E i
BELEFTSHAETAEKE -

EILFSRAE / (BIE) 2 2B
mT

31

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a taxation
rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) for Hong Kong taxation and
25% (2019: 25%) for Mainland China taxation. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same taxation authority on
the same taxable entity.

The movement on the deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities) was summarised as follows:

2020 2019

BT T BT T

HK$'000 HKS’000

®1A1H At 1 January (35,925) (23,571)

PE N =58 Translation differences 6 (6)

EEFEERESRIE Deferred income tax charged to

RS current year’s income statement (24,952) (11,616)
FHEEEEMHES Deferred income tax charged to leasehold

M 2 IEEFTEH buildings revaluation reserve - (732)

M12A8318 At 31 December (60,871) (35,925)

BEFTBREE YA EABREF R
B O Re B oK K FE AR T i B 3R M LA
e BB IERERR - 102020412 A 31
B AEERERNA AR KE
R AT IBL B 41018 T (2019
F B 3931E L) MIETRIBI &
MRE] -

EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefits through future taxable profits
is probable. At 31 December 2020, the Group did not
recognise tax losses of approximately HK$410 million
(2019: approximately HK$393 million) that can be
carried forward against future taxable profits and have
no expiry date.
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31 EEFRET (£8) 31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

RENBLEMSHEENABZES
(B[R —EH S < AR SEAT) B

—

BEIEFRSREE

The movement in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the

same taxation jurisdiction) during the year was
summarised as follows:

MERERER
REMXEMR

Accelerated tax depreciation

Deferred income tax liabilities

and revaluation of BREBA X
investment properties Dividend income Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
BETTL | BEFT | BEFT | BETr | BEFr | BETI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B1A1H At 1 January 31,698 35,484 16,076 - 47,774 35,484
EXER Translation differences (1) - = - 0 -
EEEEEHER  (Credited)/charged to current year's
() /4B income statement 5,931 (4,518) 18,943 16,076 24,874 11,558
HHEBRESR  Charged toleasehold buildings
BESTR revaluation reserve - 732 - - - 732
W12A831H At 31 December 37,628 31,698 35,019 16,076 72,647 47,774
EXEFFERMERE Deferred income tax assets
BATEERERNE
NEREELNTHEEE
Fair value adjustment HERE
EiER for financial assets Write down of it @
Accrued expenses measured at FVPL inventories Tax losses Total
200 09 2020 019 2020 0W9 2020 0W9 2020 2019
BETL| BETT | BEFL| BEFT| BETT| BETT | BETRL| BEFL| REFL| EETT
HKS'000 HKS'000 | HKS'000 HKS'000 | HKS'000 HKS'000 | HK$'000 HKS'000 | HK$'000 HKS'000
#A1A At January (188) (s (330) - . gen| masnl 0y (189 (1913
EiZE Translation differences (5 16 - (10) - 5) 6
EEFRRER Charged{credited] to current
e/ (E) year'sincome statement 39 240 (346) o 377 (201) i 18 58
“2A38 At31 December 149) 189) (95) 330) - 1530 (1330 _(11,776) (11,849
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31

32

EIEES

IEFRISTR (18)

EFABSHEBEREMSEHEERAE
& Tole@IiELEMBRRERA
e

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting of deferred income tax assets and liabilities,
are shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position:

2020 2019
BT JBEMEF T
HKS’000 HKS’000
ELEFTERREE Deferred income tax assets
#1218 A& Uk To be recovered after 12 months 27 405
128 A Rk To be recovered within 12 months 143 46
,,,,,,,,,,, 170 | 451
BEEFTETREE Deferred income tax liabilities
HER 12 18 A 18 80~ To be settled after 12 months (26,022) (20,300)
HER 12 18 A MRS To be settled within 12 months (35,019) (16,076)
~___(e1,041)| (36,376)
(60,871) (35,925)
SN EE 32 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(a) BRIN (a) Share capital
2020 2019
Ri&#E BET T R17EH BT
No. of shares HK$’000| No. of shares HKS$'000
ERTRBZKRE Ordinary shares, issued
TER and fully paid 597,257,252 _ 1,715,377 | 597,257,252 1,715,377

RIE CRBUEDI) EB1351% - RAFIEB
PR I R (E ©

C WHEARRNRRAES LR ERE
EMRERE - A EBREBROEAR
ARG EERB RS -

EERFAABRKREEE KK
g8

EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies
Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the Company do not
have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of
the shareholders of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.
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aRKfttwE (&)

(b) REEEHMERAE
i) ZZE@EE
EERBEIERRE

- —FEESREERE CRFE
TR R AR BIR) (R E A
Bz AR D EEEE FRE o

- —REZEeREEIRER KR
M (EMEEERBSFTIRER
P70 (B4 (201212097 ) s 89—
BEE - Z—REFREANEBES
BopR 28 + W0 1F A AR SR A 2 4 AR 30
3+ PR LA SR R R R 9 B9 B TR R
B8 -

- —FEEECREBRERESR
EERHRERREENEDL
EERE -

lii) BE#BEE

BREES IR SN B A E—R
P& ©

liii) BHAEHEE
BERRHLERE

- 20001 AVBURBERS G
NG EBERRMEEANHTER
REBEERKEENITZRHAE
E-BERIABEHRATFE
B AME R B

- BERR RENEB R ERE R
AR ERRNTET SR E RN R
B2 EARL

32 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

li]  Statutory reserve
The statutory reserve mainly comprises the following:

- Non-distributable reserve set aside by an
associated financial institution from its retained
profits in accordance with the Financial System
Act of Macau.

- General reserve established and maintained
within shareholders’ equity of an associated
financial institution pursuant to Caijin [2012]
No. 20 “Regulation on Management of Financial
Institutions for Reserves” issued by Ministry of
Finance. The general reserve was established
through the appropriation of income to cover
unidentified potential impairment losses.

- Regulatory reserve set aside by an associated
financial institution from its retained profits in
accordance with the requirements of the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority.

(il  General reserve

The general reserve is transferred from retained profits
and is available for general use.

liii] Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the following:

- goodwill and the excess of the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of business combination and the
investments in associates prior to 1 January 2001;

- capitalisation of retained profits and reserves
for the purpose of increasing the share capital
and capital reserve of associates and their
subsidiaries;
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32

EIEES

ankiEEE (8)
(b) fREfEEHMERAE (&)

liii) EXEEE (&)

- EREBEAAETERKEELM
B 2 R4 R 4 0 2 BB R A M
DELEY- R

livl X FEREE (TBR)

NP EFRES (JER) SRN2RH
AEFERAFEFARLMEAKETE
MEBRENZFA A FEZHFE (N
BARREER A )

v AFEEBE (FTEE)
AFEMRES FTEE) 2ER2H
ARG AFEM AR 2R
SEMRERENZH AT ERYFE
GURABRERE ) -

Vil BEREEGEES
BEEREHRESOEREEREE
T ERNEEN O EARANEL B
EEMAFEREFE -

vii) INESTHRHE

SNEI E H S BITREITN KB A A

LB ERRNPBEREREARAZ2RE
EHELNMAENZ5

EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

32 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

liii] Capital reserve [Continued]

- share of movement in reserves recorded in equity
of associates for the change in the interest in
their subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of
control.

liv] Fair value reserve [recycling]

The fair value reserve (recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of debt
investments measured at FVOCI (less related deferred
tax charge) held at the end of the reporting period.

lv]  Fair value reserve [non-recycling]

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments designated at FVOCI (less related deferred
tax charge) held at the end of the reporting period.

lvi] Leasehold buildings revaluation reserve

The leasehold buildings revaluation reserve comprises
the net change in the fair value of leasehold buildings
at the date of reclassification from owner-occupied
property to investment property.

(vii] Exchange translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising on translation of
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries and
associates into the reporting currency of the Company.



33

34

fn ORI IR R RERE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rz 33 COMMITMENTS
2020 12 A31 H » NEBEKE At 31 December 2020, the Group had capital
BN commitments as follows:
2020 2019
BT T B TT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
EELEREE Contracted but not provided for
— B - investment properties 197 185
— BB E - B - intangible assets - software 50 -
247 185

TiH &7 42
LA

R2020F12 A31H @ KEBEREAA
HSH 2 £ FH & i pA R SR FEUNER 2 S R

34 LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessor

At 31 December 2020, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments receivable under non-

MENRET - cancellable operating leases as follows:
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
= HE Land and buildings
EF—FNRA Within one year 9,759 6,652
BEZFEERFA In the second to fifth year
(BIEEEMT) inclusive 26,519 1,596
ERNENIAE In the sixth year and thereafter 19,584 -
55,862 8,248

AEBLHE BAEME 2 HEFHE—
FENFAEF  HEMAZEEHEE

B e

The lease terms for commercial properties leased out
by the Group range from one to eight years and with
fixed rentals throughout the lease periods.
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35 BIIREMERTE 35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) PBRiADGRNMELEEEIRE (a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to
m P 2R ¥ R net cash outflow from operations
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
75 Bl v ) Profit before taxation 472,187 593,585
I Adjustments for:
= A YNGIE Share of results of associates (446,931) (579,179)
REYESHATE Fair value (gains)/losses on revaluation of
(Wz) /BB investment properties (13,698) 7,109
HrE N i Depreciation and amortisation 1,923 2,227
BEFERMEWTIE Write back of impairment loss on loans to
S B B TR B[] customers and interest receivable (9,404) (6,255)
HFERERED Reversal of write down of inventories = (1,509)
NS Loss on dilution of interest in an
WHESER EE associate 28,746 _
MEWHE - MBEREE Loss on disposal of property, plant and
BB equipment 125 29
FIBUA Interest income (38,232) (46,920)
SERERXFPENRFE Interest income from credit-impaired
WA loans to customers (3,443) (3,861)
e Interest expenses 14,326 18,645
FEH U (E1B) F5  Net exchange gains/(losses) (6,141) 2,836
MEELEEIFN Changes in working capital:
FERL Decrease in inventories - 11,944
B IEEE Ak AN 32 0 Increase in deferred acquisition costs (11,535) (7,663)
IRE FE UL IE AN Increase in insurance receivable (40,193) (9,891)
BiREEE Increase in reinsurance assets 841 (2,639)
REERRERFE Decrease in loans to customers and
NN interest receivable 14,099 11,657
SRITEGEZH D Decrease in banker’s acceptance - 56,186
HuEWEET - FERTR (Increase)/decrease in other debtors,
Rizg (3gm) R prepayments and deposits (1,764) 154
RN EEBIERR Increase in financial assets at fair value
He s A EERE N through profit or loss (272,156) (97,516)
fRba & #4935 0 Increase in insurance contracts 41,346 4,865
FRB FEAS FRAZ 0 Increase in insurance payable 14,988 6,951
E A e BRI K B ST Increase in other creditors and
&M accruals 3,783 8,274
RESTEIR SR R Net cash outflow from operations (251,133) (30,971)
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35 LREREREXRFRE () 35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) FEHINEBRSEH) (b) The table below details changes in the
FrEELaEinEasE o Group’s liabilities arising from financing
FIRS RIEIBSEE o activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes.
2020 2019
EhRER EH&LM
£ it £ et
BOER Lonfomthe  HEBE  HOFR BOR3 lanfomthe  EERE  BAER
Bank  controlling lease  Pledged k] Bank  controlling Lease Pledged et
borrowings  shareholder liabilities bank deposits Net  borowings ~ shareholder liabilies bank deposits Net
AFr  BEFn BETr BTn BEFa | BREr BETr BRFr BERT BT
HK$'000 HKs'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKs'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
REIRIE At Janaay 3995 199886 56 (3700 3647 [ w0 - - [mgo) g
BEEETEY  Changesfiom finanding
cash flows
WERRENESS Loan obtained from the
controling shareholder - - - - - - 200,000 - - 200,000
EEORTRES  Loanrepaidtothe
controlling shareholder - (50,000) - - (50,000) - - - - -
DEgnER Bankloans obtained 171,600 - - - 171,600 60,000 - - - 60,000
BESAER Bankloans epaid (60,000) - - - (60000) | (200000) - - - (200000)
SHEBESRAL  Otherborowing costs paid - - - - - (16) (150) - - (166)
QS Lease payments - - (191) - (191) - - (14 - (124
HEESHEED  Total changes from
a8 franngahfows | TSN G0N (90 - e | pWy Wm0 (4 - s
229 Non-cash changes
EizE Translation differences - - - (14,0000 (14,000 - - - 4100 4100
ERETUFREM  Increase inlease liabilites
EIMEEEE  fomenteringintonew
lease during the year - - - - - - - 380 - 380
EWESHREE  Amortisation of other
borrowing costs 18 57 - - 15 121 36 - - 1,247
FREABEE  Totalnoncashchangs | 1 % = (14000 (39s)| ¥ B 400 5
M2A318 At 31 December 371,583 149,943 65 (2377000 283,891 259,965 199,886 256 (223,700) 236407
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36

AR S

BRI AER S M R B B0 RSN
AEBAELTEBBENET 2 EKREE

i

(a)

RHMEWMT

72020612 318 » &K % B 4
GFRER SR FBIR (2EAK
SECEERR) NFREFHEE
34,802 87T (20194F : B 33,676
BT c WEFEROFEA—KE
¥FEFE AEERFAAI
FTEAMFEBWAEBE1,1498
7T (20194 = BE1,15187T) ©

ARBERERZEEEER (K
EE-XBESRLE) NRER
IRITE B 6,0008 T °

FARNZRTERNEEFNE LA
B 1028 JT (20194 B #5446
BIT) MM2019F 1284318 8

HEARNMEAE® 2287T -

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, significant related
party transactions which were carried out in the
normal course of the Group’s business are as follows:

(a)

At 31 December 2020, the Group had deposits
with XIB, CYB and LIB, all are associates of
the Group, totalling HK$348.02 million (2019:
HK$336.76 million). These deposits carried
interest at normal commercial rates and had
generated interest income of HK$11.49 million
(2019: HK$11.51 million) to the Group during the
year.

During the year, the Company had fully repaid
the outstanding bank loan of HK$60 million from
CYB, an associated financial institution of the
Group.

The related interest expense of the bank loan
was HK$1.02 million for the year (2019: HK$4.46
million) and the related interest payable was
HK$0.22 million at 31 December 2019.
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36 RAMEAHR% (18)

()

RER - AEB—R2EWBR
A AR & S B S B IR BR M Uk
BMIBRITHNENERBRAEGG
B 5128 70 (20194 © 7B ¥ 459
Br) WEREHAREEARE
HE=ZEBEREFER 26 RMEK
BMEBRAERE - ZWBRAAITR
FAR—ZRBZECREEENZE
BIAEBREZ SRS EK 977

4 —

BT (20194 : BB ETT) °

TEEEAR

=RITA B B E 2020 FF 22019
F12A3BLEFEZMERT -

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(o)

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
underwrote insurance policies with gross
insurance premiums less discounts of HK$5.12
million (2019: HK$4.59 million) to the associated
financial institutions of the Group at prices and
terms not less favourable than those contracted
with other third party customers of the Group
during the year. That subsidiary also paid
commissions of HK$9.77 million (2019: HK$8.11
million) to an associated financial institution for
business referred to the Group during the year.

Key management personnel
The senior executives’ emoluments for the year

ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are detailed
as follows:

2020 2019

BT T BT T

HKS’000 HKS$’000

Yk Directors’ fees 970 970
i - BENEAM  Salaries, housing and other allowances,

FEALLAREYAZ  and benefits in kind 5,585 5,576
RIREFIETZIE R Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 926 96
b Bonus 4,055 3,956

10,706 10,598
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37 AR E 37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY
BAARFIRERFROFBMARAKE Information about the statement of financial position
BT of the Company at the end of the reporting year is as
follows:
2020 2019
BT B F T
HKS’000 HKS$’000
RBEE Non-current assets
M - HER N ERE Property, plant and equipment 3,533 6,250
KEWE Investment properties 63,929 61,148
B AR Subsidiaries 1,458,646 1,433,786
Fl=W/NE] Associates 972,776 972,776
BAFEFAEMAEE  Financial assets at fair value through
W TR E E other comprehensive income 361,001 423,343
H At R YR X Other debtors 8,546 3,385
IRITHETF Bank balances 121,702 114,534
©.2,990,133 | . 3,015,222
REEE Current assets
Hib Ut BEZX - FJEftF  Other debtors, prepayments and
Mige deposits 2,780 739
BN FEFEBIBZEYIER  Financial assets at fair value through
MEREE profit or loss 9,160 8,514
W —ZKM B ARIARE  Dividend receivable from a subsidiary 4,500 -
e RIBITERF Cash and bank balances 47,091 53,472
,,,,,,, 63,531 | 62725
REBEE Current liabilities
HhERTBRIA R FEETE A Other creditors and accruals 17,258 16,703
HEBE Lease liabilities - 2,602
RITIER Bank borrowings 371,583 60,000
PERR AR R B 3K Loan from the controlling shareholder 49,958 49,943
FET AR HRFR 18 Current income tax payable 24,874 23,409
,,,,,, 463,673 | 152,657
REBEEEE Net current liabilites | (400,142) | (89,932)
BEERABERS Total assets less current liabilities 2,589,991 | | 2,925,290
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37 R aHIFIARE (88) 37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)
2020 2019
BT B F T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
RITIE R Bank borrowings - 199,965
AR R E X Loan from the controlling shareholder 99,985 149,943
EIEFASFEaE Deferred income tax liabilities 56,045 35,510
,,,,,, 156,030 | 385418
EEFE Net assets 2,433,961 2,539,872
s Equity
A& 2 Share capital 1,715,377 1,715,377
HibfEES Other reserves 139,955 202,297
IREB s A Retained profits 578,629 622,198
R Total equity 2,433,961 2,539,872
BR1E YAN Zheng
EZE Director
BR=F CHEN Yu
EZE Director
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37 M3 FiRIRE (48)

37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

@ BFRAFARREREHEEHEN (@) Information on the movement of the total equity
U during the year is as follows:
HAftftae
Other reserves
A HERE Rft
REE  EfRES e
(RUER)  Leasehold &g BEL i
RE&  Fairvalue buildings Total RERF ]
Share reserve  revaluation other Retained Total
capital (non-recycling) reserve reserves profits equity
R BT Vil Vil BETT Vil
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#2019F1 A18 At 1January 2019 1,115,377 347,031 2,340 349,371 702,530 2,767,278
AEEEE Loss for the year - - - - (20,606) (20,606)
Hi2ENE Other comprehensive income - (147,074) - (147,074) - (147,074)
sy Dividend - - - - (59,726) (59,726)
72019128318 At 31 December 2019 1,115,377 199,957 2,340 202,297 622,198 2,539,872
?2020F1A18 At 1 January 2020 1,715,377 199,957 2,340 202,297 622,198 2,539,872
KEERH Profit for the year - - - - 16,157 16,157
Et2ENE Other comprehensive income = (62,342) = (62,342) = (62,342)
RE Dividend - = = = (59,726) (59,726)
#2020612 4318  At31December 2020 1,715,377 137,615 2,340 139,955 578,629 2,433,961

B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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38 BT 38 SUBSIDIARIES
UWTHRZEIEEN2020F12 4318 The following list contains the particulars of those
NEBNES  BESABEEATE subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 which principally
BB AR - affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.
ik BETR A5E
mEing BREAEE  MbER
Place of Particulars Group's TEER
incorporation of issued and equity Principal
INEA Name of company and operation paid up capital interest activity
BERBE Directly held
SERRERAR Dorfine Development Limited ) 2R (B%27T) 100% ST
Hong Kong 2 shares (HKS2) Property investment
BREGRABRAR Fujian Minxin Investments Co, Ltd. MEARHLAE BEX 100% REER
(74%1,010,536,2007C)
The People’s Paid-in capital Investment holding

Republic of China (HK$1,010,536,200)

AERBERAT Min Xin Insurance Company Limited ) 55008 100% AR
(B%235%7T) ~RERES

Hong Kong 55 million shares Writing of general

(HK$235 million) insurance business

ST =TRER ) EEH Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin hE ARLAE EWER 100% R NEER
ARAR Micro Credit Company Limited (AR¥3%1) REFETER
The People’s Paid-in capital Provision of

Republic of China (RMB300 million) micro credit and

entrusted loans

AEERAR Take Chance Company Limited &% 2R (B%27T) 100% ST
Hong Kong 2 shares (HKS2) Property investment

EBER LA Thousand Limited Ek 11 (A7) 100% KA
Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) Investment holding

TARERERAR Welljet Development Limited ) 2R (B%27r) 100% ES
Hong Kong 2 shares (HKS2) Property investment
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE GROUP

REER2020F 12 A3EFAEREZT

BYEERFBOT

Details of the Group’s principal property interests held for
investment as at 31 December 2020 are as follows:

P31 | Bars
ik 3§ BER
ERE Group's Approximate
Lease attributable gross floor RERR
fi Location expiry interest area Existing use
BAL% Fiksq.

1 NERTERE 847865 % Shops 7 &8 on ground floor including 2049 100 17,190 [EES
KEREH T AL 75 R85 store 8 on the cockloft therein and Commercial
BV EE 2R the whole of 1t and 2nd floors
zE Winfield Building

847-865 Canton Road, Yaumatei
Hong Kong

) REARENERRERMT 22/F (excluding partial area of unit no. 1) 2044 100 37,090 mE
AR 158 FRIES 28 and 23/F, Worldwide Plaza Commercial
(FeE1BzdhER) 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian
R3E The People’s Republic of China

3 REARENERRERMD Carpark Nos. #24 to #28 and #42 to #48 2044 100 5,207 [
AMEI8SRNB S T =8 Basement Level 3, Worldwide Plaza Commercial
B 424 2 428 [ #42 % #48 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian

The People's Republic of China

4 HEARANERRERMT West Half of 14/F, Reliance Building 2043 100 3025 S
AMEN9REERE14E 119 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Commercial
TEE The People’s Republic of China

5 hEARANERRERENT Unit C2&D2, 25/F, Huafu Building 2063 100 2450 frx
ARBINFERAE 121 Gutian Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Residential

BEQRDET

The People's Republic of China

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED
RIEEEBRAQE

17th Floor, Fairmont House
8 Cotton Tree Drive
Central, Hong Kong

ERPRAMKSHEREKRE17IE
Tel E&E ¢ (852)2521 5671

Fax {§E : (852) 2530 5488
Website #83t : http://www.minxin.com.hk
Email E# : mxhl.enquiry@minxin.com.hk
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